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VISION =

The Leader in Construction, Property and Related Services.

PRREiE  BIERARREMITRREEE -

MISSION f& &5

We are committed to:

BB

e creating value for our customers and delivering quality
services at world-class standard; and
REFPAEEERREHEARNEE RS &

e delivering value to our shareholders through maximising
market share and returns.

BATSEEERREAR®R R RAEESNEE-

VALUES E{&

Heart and Harmony

202E MRELH

o We strive for perfection through service from the heart
and work harmoniously together by complementing and
supplementing each other.

BMPBORYE HBEZE LAZAD RUEHES -

Can-do attitude and Commitment to quality

LEBE BEAE

e We uphold a can-do attitude with integrity and are
committed to delivering quality that will earn the respect
and loyalty of our stakeholders.
BMBSEBEERNEE BFRERENES UEE

NEE RS WM ENEEEBH-

VLU
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= SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF THE YEAR
——— AFAEMOE

JAN 2015

Awarded a market positioning and
sales agency service contract of
Taizhou Baodai Shopping Mall in
Jiangsu.
BEIHORMNESTEDPLONTIS
EMAMHERERBEL -

MAR 2015 FEB 2015

Awarded the "10 Years Plus Awarded a new technical/engineering
Caring Company Logo" by the support services contract for Cathay
Hong Kong Council of Social Pacific Cargo Terminal.

Service. BEREBRRME BN, TRY

EEBSHEREHEETI0F | EREEH-
Plus [ SRR EE 12 ] 155

MAR 2015

Awarded of a renovation works
contract for G/F, 4/F and 9/F,
Kee Wah Industrial Building at
Castle Peak Road.
BEESLETET XN
T AERIEMBFIEE S -

APR 2015
MAR 2015 Renewed the status of "Manpower

Awarded of MUJI HK Hopewel Centre Developer" in the Manpower
Store and Café & Meal project. Developer Award Schemg organized
BREEEREDRSA MDD E—IE by the Employees Petraning Board,
oM E R EEENEIEE - jxfgé-\ﬁ{n lﬂ”%i@:ﬁ%ﬁ?% [ERBA
TEETE - ATRE]-

APR 2015

Awarded a facility management,
asset management and leasing
management services contract from
the English Schools Foundation.
RERESRBENREERE &
EEBRLEBERRBEEL-
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF THE YEAR EEE==s
AERBIE ==

APR 2015

Provision of asset

APR 2015 management services

Provision of property management for EC Mall Sﬂhopplng
services for Hong Kong Housing Center in Beijing.

b RERSE RS i
Authority Headquarters Blocks 3 and 4. AL TERXER YL

=] > = °
AEBEEE A M BRER B RRRERERE
W RERIRA
APR 2015
Provision of property management
services to Beijing University of
Posts and Telecommunications
Apartments in Beijing.
RIARBERAENBRENEE
IR AR A% o
MAY 2015
MAY 2015 Awarded a new facility maintenance
The renovation project in Butterfly Plaza in Tuen Mun and logistics support services
won a Bronze Award in the “Health and Welfare” contract for AsiaWorld-Expo.
category of the Innovative Safety Initiative Awards 2015. EETNERIE SR IEREERY
LRI EISBIR B 20158 R TRLE2R [RE | nuiERiEsay.
BRI | KB RIS 82 -
MAY 2015
MAY 2015 Awarded of Tropicana Garden
Awarded of the property HK JEBN power upgrade
management consultancy services project for No. 110 Lung
contract of China Shipbuilding Cheung Road, Wong Tai Sin.
Industry Corporation. B A 110 S
BEREREMMEISEQREL Bl FRET— T HRFER o
MARMEERZARERHEEH. L—

20154 % FEEEEEERAT 3



SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF THE YEAR
REXREERE

JUN 2015

Provision of consultancy services to
Jiangxi Lifestyle Mall in Zhejiang.
AT R EEE R RMEEP O

TR B TR A AR o

JUL 2015
Awarded of filling up
of voids at G/F, 1/F
& 2/F at China Hong
Kong City in TST.
B 08 AR B B
T 1 R i K&
BRIER ©
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JUN 2015

Won the Silver Award for Excellence
in Training and Development 2015
from the Hong Kong Management
Association for two consecutive years.
HEMTEREEEZEERE (2015
HEEEREIINERR] RE-

AUG 2015

Awarded of MUJI HK — Harbour
City Store Renovation Project.
BRERBEIR GBS E
HHE-

JUN 2015

Awarded a property services
contract for the new laundry
building of Vogue Laundry
Service Limited.
EERZARERAF
HEREOERBEL -

JUN 2015

Provision of property
management services to
Huaihai New Sunshine Mall in
Shanghai.

R EBERIFER UM
Y EE IR R o

JUL 2015

Awarded a customer service and
backup accounting management
services contract from MTR covering
23 stations of 4 railway lines.
BREBE A RINMABY - & Ho3(EE
R R BR O RES ST EIRRE
GHY e




SEP 2015

Registered as a Volunteer Movement
participating organization under the Social
Welfare Department, showing a determination
to help those in need.

B AL ERANE [ETED | W2 a#E -

BRRAEBBRAOGIHAREALHIRD

SEP 2015

Awarded of an alteration and addition
works contract of existing transformer
room “L” and shops 304-306 at B1/F
to G/F of Gateway Il at Harbour City,
Canton Road.
ERERBESBHER _HB1IEEM
THREFERE (L] %304-3065

BB R INEIER &4 -

OCT 2015

Awarded the “Heart to
Heart Company logo” by
the Hong Kong Federation
of Youth Groups.
BEEEEFHEREIA

INSIaE SR

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF THE YEAR

KEKREEE

SEP 2015

Provision of asset

management services

to Shanghai Corporate

Avenue Phrase 1.

REBEER—H

REEETERK-
OCT 2015
Awarded of main fit
out work for office at
49/F One Exchange
Square.
R 5 &% —Hi49/F
BFEREIER -

OCT 2015

Joined the “Heifer Race to

Feed 2015” organized by Heifer
International Hong Kong and receiving
a medal from the organizer.
2MABERNEEEED SR
[N G ETT2015]) - BAEHEE
B o

OCT 2015

Awarded of a proposed residential development at
28-32 Aberdeen Street, Central, Hong Kong.

BEESETRBOEE28-32RMETERRER -

2015 HEBEEEERAT



= SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF THE YEAR
—— AFAEERE

DEC 2015

Awarded of a fitting-out works contract of M+ at
West Kowloon Cultural District.

EEMAXEEOMEEREBEAL -

DEC 2015

Kong.

TR
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Awarded of renovation, alteration and addition works
to Food Street and canopies at Causeway Bay, Hong

RETERBEEREIMSMIRES R BUE M NE

NOV 2015

Awarded of the main contract for A&A
works of Pakpolee Commercial Centre
at G/F to 3/F, 1A -1K Sai Yeung Choi
Street, Mongkok, Kowloon.
BETATEFEEIAIKAEENEE
RO T E=EMEGERBEIEE -

NOV 2015

Awarded of the main contract for renovation
works to G/F lobbies of Centre A & Centre B and
drop-off areas & G/F public areas between G/F
Lobbies of Centre A & Centre B (package 2).
BEREDNEREYR T OATL) ARBEM T RE K&
NRAERIIER -

DEC 2015

Awarded of the main contract for proposed
residential development at Discovery Bay North
Phase 16.

BERERSELFICHEETETRRIER -

DEC 2015

Awarded of Fortune Pharmacal New
Factory Development, 50-68 Wang
Lok Street, Yuen Long Industrial
Estate, Yuen Long.

B TR 7R 4 750-685% JT B T34
FRBENDRERER -




CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERE

Chairman, Ir. Joseph Choi Kin Hung
EE, ERBIREM

Overview

| am honoured to have been appointed Executive Director and
Chairman of Synergis Holdings Limited (the “Company” or
“Synergis”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) last year and
to have the opportunity to work closely with the team who make
Synergis a name that is recognized for service excellence.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, | am pleased to report
that the Group achieved record-breaking performances in terms of
revenue, EBITDA and profit attributable to shareholders. Indeed, we
are heading into 2016 with strong orders on the books for our Interior
and Special Projects (the “ISP”) business.

The management service business continued to be one of the
leading independent property and facility management service
providers in Hong Kong due to our ability to offer one-stop-shop
services to customers with our strength in property management,
facility management and asset management. Keen competition
in the market and a continued rise in operating costs have had
some impact on our financial results but | am confident Synergis
can overcome these challenges with our steadfast commitment to
provide service from the heart.

*  for identification purposes only (£ 5 5l

BE

A5 B E R EFEZ T ASynergis Holdings Limited
(FEEBEEARAT) ([RATIK[HMEERE] -
BRAMBARSGE [ AEE]) CRTESERER &
ARRBEEKOT@E N2 T FEEENEWRE
BXET AR EREEEABREE RARBESE.

KATRARE M HE2015F12831H IEFE - KEEH
U a5 T BT EE N B 8 AT R R K B SR FE AR R A B T 4D 8%
Fe BB L RN T AS2016FNERNE LI
BWIEE ([EREMHRERIEE ) KIS
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EEERRESHEE  BETE  2O02EHREHAERIR
5o
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QHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FERE

Our business on the Chinese Mainland entered a defining period
of growth and, for the first time, is registering a profit. Apart from
generating more revenue, the management team has exercised
stringent control on general and administrative expenses to achieve
an approximately one-third reduction from 2014 levels.

Our ISP business remains the engine and driving force for our
growth. This business segment contributed over two-thirds of the
Group’s total revenue and HK$62.8 million in operating profit.

Financial Performance

With continued business growth and success in diversifying our
business through acquisition of the ISP business, we are able to
report a number of records for the year, in particular:

()  arecord high HK$2.2 billion in new orders received;

(b)  the total outstanding value of contracts on hand at year end
set a new high of nearly HK$3.0 billion; and

()  record highs for our consolidated revenues of nearly HK$2.5
billion and profit attributable to shareholders of HK$55.3
million, up 22% from 2014.

Business Overview

In the year, Synergis continued to maintain its property and facility
management portfolio in Hong Kong and the Chinese Mainland.
| am delighted to report that the Group has successfully secured
several sizeable new contracts in Hong Kong, inter-alia, the Hong
Kong Housing Authority (“HKHA”) with a 2-year management
contract of Block 3 and Block 4 of their Headquarters Buildings,
a 3-year technical and engineering support services contract with
Cathay Pacific Cargo, a 3-year facility maintenance and logistic
support services contract with AsiaWorld-Expo next to Hong Kong
International Airport and property services for Vogue Laundry
Services Limited’s new laundry building.

8 Synergis Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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With our experience and concerted efforts in developing our
business on the Chinese Mainland, the performance in 2015 was a
turning point as more focus was put on the strategy of developing
businesses in Beijing, Shanghai, Shenyang and targeted second
and third tier cities. The team has strengthened capabilities across
the business lines to enhance “one-stop-shop” solutions to meet
customer needs. The major source of income this year came from
facility management and property management services for Huawei
Integrated Center and EC Mall in Beijing. In future, the team will
be looking to draw our main source of income from the asset
management business such as leasing and tenancy administration of
commercial projects which is expected to generate higher margins,
especially as the property development projects for our parent
company, Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd., to be renamed Hsin
Chong Group Holdings Limited in April 2016, will be gradually coming
on stream.

Our Interior & Special Projects Division continued to deliver good
results in 2015. With a consistent track record of steady growth,
evidenced through the winning of eight new contracts from an
expanding portfolio of new and repeat prestigious clients, we are
reporting a record high HK$2.2 billion in new orders in 2015. These
include fitting-out works for the M+ Museum in the West Kowloon
Cultural District, a residential development in Discovery Bay North
Phase 16, a proposed residential development at Aberdeen Street
and a new factory development for a well-established pharmaceutical
company.

Our strength and capability in managing large scale renovation
projects are widely recognized and the ISP business is well
positioned for stable long term growth. The two new projects in
Aberdeen Street and Discovery Bay mentioned above followed the
footsteps of two other substantial construction projects that we won
in 2014 for commercial developments. The total outstanding value
of the large scale renovation projects and fitting-out contracts that
we are carrying forward into 2016 through to 2018 are in excess of
HK$2.8 billion.

Dividends

Taking account of the strong results, the Group’s available cash
reserves and working capital requirements, the Company’s board
of directors (the “Board”) has recommended the payment of a final
dividend of 2.5 HK cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2015 (81 December 2014: 4.0 HK cents per share), demonstrating
our unwavering commitment to enhance returns for our shareholders.
Conditional upon approval by shareholders at the forthcoming 2016
annual general meeting of the Company, the proposed final dividend
will be paid on or around 8 June 2016.

Together with the interim dividend of 2.5 HK cents per share (2014:
3.0 HK cents per share) already paid, total dividends for the 2015
financial year will amount to 5.0 HK cents per share (31 December
2014: 7.0 HK cents per share), representing a payout ratio of 39%
(2014: 64%) on earnings for the year.

*  for identification purposes only {£ 5l

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEHRE
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QHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FERE

Outlook

The end of 2015 marked a new beginning with a new and
strengthened senior management team for Synergis. Ms. Brenda Yau
and Mr. Terence Leung have joined forces as Co-Managing Directors
to give the expertise and attention required for the two main arms
of the Group’s business in service management and interiors and
fitting-out projects. | look to them to lead Synergis towards an even
brighter future, with sound strategies to develop both the Property
and Facility Management business and the ISP business as the
Group continues to strive for greater achievements and new chapters
of success.

The Company’s outlook is positive based on record high levels of
outstanding works for the ISP business and secured contracts for
Property and Facility Management. Nevertheless, we will remain
prudent in the approach we take in bidding for and taking on new
jobs in consideration of the upward pressures on salaries and wages
as well as keen industry competition. It is to be expected that the
undertaking of large-scale projects will come with their own set of
challenges. The Group will focus on the prudent control of costs
and cash flows, as well as careful management of its finances and
resource allocations to ensure the delivery of attractive returns on our
projects.

In 2016, we will continue to implement measures to intensify our
strategic focus, add further capability to our service mix to strengthen
the core businesses and selectively expand our value-added service
lines in Hong Kong and the Chinese Mainland. Leveraging on our
existing management portfolio, the management will strive to identify
new strategic growth opportunities within the challenging market
conditions.

The Chinese Mainland business has significantly boosted growths in
revenue and operating profit. Looking ahead, the Group will continue
to focus on developing the asset management services business
by leveraging on the property development strategies of the parent
company.

ISP business will focus on expanding its project pipeline through
building on its varied and robust client base and taking advantage
of increasing market demand for renovation and fitting-out works for
hotels and the retail sector. In addition, we plan to develop new lines
of business including a curtain wall business and materials sourcing
and purchasing specialist trading business.

With our broadened business base after successful acquisition of the
ISP business, quality track record and strong client base, supported
by our competent, professional and dedicated teams, | am confident
that the Group will advance strongly.

1 0 Synergis Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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Appreciation

Our results are a reflection of the quality and commitment of
our people across the Group and business lines, from senior
management to the many staff on site. The enthusiasm and loyalty of
our colleagues are what make Synergis a success. On behalf of the
Board, | would like to thank all of our colleagues for their continued
contribution and commitment to our clients, our customers and our
values.

| would also like to take this opportunity to express heartfelt thanks
to our shareholders, business partners, clients and suppliers for their
support and continued confidence in our team.

Last but not least, | would like to sincerely thank Dr. Wilfred Wong
Ying Wai, who stepped down as Non-Executive Director and
Chairman in December last year, for his leadership and valuable
contributions during his term of service.

Joseph Choi Kin Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEHRE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRRINT S

Co-Managing Director®, | Co-Managing Director”,
Ms. Brenda Yau Shuk Mee | Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong
BMEESAKE, | HMEESHLgE
WREZL | REREXE

Financial Overview BEELE

In 2015, Synergis continued to deliver shareholder value through 20154 @ #1 8 B IR AR BISRIE R SR RAIEEE -
steady growth. Profit attributable to shareholders was HK$55.3 B ER B @ F A 7& #55,300,0007T ' 8 EAFIEK22.1% °
million, representing a growth of 22.1% over the last year.

. Revenue increased by 28.4% . I #4532 . 28.4%

e Operating profit improved by 17.2% . R NIER17.2%

. Profit attributable to shareholders recorded a year-on-year e AR FE (RS PSR B R R22.1% T EHN KA
growth of 22.1%, mainly due to strong results from the ISP ENEMNRFRIBER ¥ 2 RHRE -
business.

2015 2014 Chenge

Revenue HK$’ million 2,447.4 1,906.3 +28.4%

& BEBEET

Gross Profit HK$’ million 186.0 186.1 -0.1%

EN| BEBEET

Operating Profit HKS$’ million 81.6 69.6 +17.2%

Fegewpl BEAET

Profit attributable to Shareholders HK$’ million 55.3 45.3 +22.1%

% 3R B {4 ) BEBHET

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation

and amortisation (“EBITDA”) HKS$’ million 87.2 78.0 +11.8%
750 ST B T 48 85 A AR BEBHET
(I EREHFE])

Gross Profit Margin 7.6% 9.8% -2.2%

EERFIE

Net Profit Margin 2.3% 2.4% -0.1%

g 1RlbE

Basic Earnings Per Share HK cents 14.9 11.9 +25.2%

BREKXERF PSS

A This title has been changed to Managing Director with effect from 2 BT H2016F4 ACHRE E N AE SRR -
5 April 2016.
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EBITDA & Profit Attributable to Shareholders

Bt ST B I 4 65 A R 5B 2 R SR BB A g A

HK$ million
BERET
100
87.2
- 78.0
CAGR CAGR
BEFERE EAFERER
33% 68.4 36%

55.3

Il EBITDA
DASSIEYSE 3 S EIRlbe

Profit attributable
to Shareholders

R AR T

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Synergis recorded new highs in both revenue and profits contributed
by a diversified business portfolio comprising property and facility
management, ISP and other ancillary services.

The Group reported consolidated revenues of HK$2.4 billion for the
year ended 31 December 2015, an increase of 28.4% as compared
with 2014. Despite keen competition and rising costs in both the
property and facility management and ISP businesses, the Group
has managed to maintain gross profit at a level consistent with that
of 2014. By imposing tight control on costs and expenses, operating
profit improved 17.2% to HK$81.6 million. After amortization of
intangible assets and interest on bank loans related to the ISP
business, profit attributable to shareholders was HK$55.3 million, an
increase of 22.1% from 2014. Earnings per share was 14.9 HK cents
(2014: 11.9 HK cents).
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Business Review and Prospects

Business Overview

The Group’s Property and Facility Management business continued
to maintain its solid market position, whilst the ISP business once
again achieved steady growth in 2015. Management considers that
the ISP business will continue to be a significant contributor for the

Group’s revenue and net profits.
Revenue W

HK$ million
BEEET

89.4

Property and Facility Management - Hong Kong

MERBEEE B

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFEWR DN

EBOERA =R
EBRHE

Gross Profit & ¥l

HKS$ million
BEEET

18.0

92.3

Property and Facility Management - Chinese Mainland
MEREEE R —PEAM

AEBZMERRBEREEFBE RS HBET S
i = AR RFTRIE B XHBR2015F B RREGIEE
BE-EEERARENEMMBREBREBEESN
SEZWERAMERIFHERER -

Interiors and Special Projects . Ancillary Business
EREMRERIER EES S
Revenue Operating Profit/(Loss)
(HK$’ million) (HK$’ million)
Wz (BREET) "ERA (FR) GB¥EETR)
Change Change
2015 2014 @%ﬁ 2015 2014 Q%J
Property & Facility Management %)% K 5% i & 12
- Hong Kong —B% 582.3 624.9 -6.8% 33.2 38.2 -13.1%
Ancillary Business BN ETE
- Hong Kong —B% 89.4 84.1 6.3% 7.3 9.4 -22.3%
Management Services ERRBER
Business - Hong Kong -B#
Sub-total NEE 671.7 709.0 -5.3% 40.5 47.6 -14.9%
Property & Facility Management %) 2 K 3% 6 & 12
- Chinese Mainland —HE A 91.8 86.0 6.7% 0.1 2.1) 104.8%
Management Services ERRBEEL D
Business Sub-total 763.5 795.0 -4.0% 40.6 455 -10.8%
ISP Business EREHR
WHRIEE XK 1,683.9 1,111.3 51.5% 62.8 50.6 24.1%
Corporate Overhead THER - - - (21.8) (26.5) 17.7%
Total wet 2,447.4 1,906.3 28.4% 81.6 69.6 17.2%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

Management Services Business

“This segment generated steady contributions with
improvement on the operating profit of the Chinese Mainland
business when compared with 2014.”

Property and Facility Management Services

As at the end of 2015, the Group managed 304 property and facility
management service contracts comprising 269 contracts in Hong
Kong and 35 contracts in the Chinese Mainland. Together, the
gross floor area managed was approximately 12,200,000 square
metres (“sgm”) (Hong Kong: 9,800,000 sgm and Chinese Mainland:
2,400,000 sgm).

Hong Kong:

The Property and Facility Management business in Hong Kong
maintained a well-diversified portfolio of contracts comprising
different sectors of government, public institutions and private clients.

(i) Hong Kong Housing Authority (“HKHA")
The Group secured a new 2-year management contract for
HKHA'’s Block 3 and Block 4 Headquarters Buildings in April
2015 with a total contract sum of HK$17 million.

(ii) Corporate Clients and Public Institutions

The Group obtained the following facilities management
contracts with a total contract sum of HK$94 million for three
years during the year:

° Technical and Engineering Support Services at Cathay
Pacific Cargo Terminal in February 2015;

° Facility Maintenance and Logistic Support Services for
AsiaWorld-Expo at Hong Kong International Airport in
May 2015; and

° Property Services for the new laundry building of Vogue
Laundry Services Limited in June 2015.
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(iii) Private clients

The Property Management Portfolio has been expanded with
the award of several management contracts during the year.

We were able to achieve a high retention rate for the contracts
due for renewal during the year. Major contracts successfully
renewed are listed below:

(@  Property Management Contracts

- Lung Mun QOasis, Shan King Estate, Fu Shin
Estate, Kwong Ming Court, Hong Pak Court and
Link Property Management Support Services
contracts.

(b)  Facility Management Contracts

- Cathay Pacific Cargo Terminal, Town Campus
of HKU SPACE, Customer Service for the
Tseung Kwan O Line and West Rail Line of MTR
Corporation, Asia Airfreight Terminal and the
English Schools Foundation.

Most of the contracts have been renewed with an increase in
service fee and expanded scope of work. The high contract
retention rate reflects that Synergis’ quality services are well
received by customers.

The additional revenue from newly secured contracts and
the full year result impact of the Le Prestige and HKHA car
park contracts which commenced in 2014 have been offset
by the expiration of contracts for HKHA Property Services
and the Government Property Agency in September 2014
and March 2015 respectively. Revenue for this management
services business segment remains stable but operating profit
decreased by 14.9% to HK$40.5 million. This was a result of
the operating environment which continues to be challenging
with inflationary pressures in wages and keen industry
competition.

Looking forward to 2016, Synergis will be placing more
emphasis on expanding its Facility Management Service. Apart
from exploring opportunities in expanding the service scopes of
existing projects, the facility management team will also focus
on business opportunities in the airport region, institutions and
corporate clients requiring integrated facility management.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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With a stable market position in Property Management,
Synergis will continue to explore opportunities in private
residential projects whilst continuing to provide a high standard
of service to clients in its current portfolio. Apart from private
housing, business opportunities in managing carparks for Link
will also be pursued.

In order to enhance communication with external and
internal customers, further promotion will be undertaken
for the Synergis Community App and Synergis Internal
Communication App (SICA). These apps have been launched
with positive feedback from clients and users. With SICA,
frontline staff can conveniently access company information on
their mobile devices even if they do not have a computer. The
two smart phone apps have effectively enhanced both internal
and external communication to support ever higher service
standards, the sharing of information and the planning of future
businesses with large customer bases.

Chinese Mainland:

2015 was a rewarding year for the Chinese Mainland

business as it starts to turn around. The management team

on the Mainland has built up solid experience in the asset

management services business over the past several years.

With their efforts in developing business and good relations

with clients, the team was able to secure the following

contracts on consultancy, asset management service and

agency service with a total contract sum of HK$4.8 million in

2015:

° EC Mall Shopping Center in Beijing;

° China Shipbuilding Industry Corporation in Beijing;

° Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications
Apartments in Beijing;

. Taizhou Baodai Shopping Mall in Jiangsu;

o Jiangxi Lifestyle Mall in Zhejiang;

° Huaihai New Sunshine Mall in Shanghai;

° Corporate Avenue Phase 1 in Shanghai; and

° La Viva Foshan in Guangdong.
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With different skill set requirement in Northern China and Eastern
China, the management has adopted different strategies in
developing business in these two regions. The management
team in Northern China will focus on developing the consultancy,
sales and leasing businesses, while the Eastern China team will
focus on developing business in property management and asset
management services. With recent relaxation of the policy in the
China real estate market and property management opportunities
expected from the parent company’s China projects in Guangdong
and Shandong Provinces, Tianjin and Tieling in the coming few years,
the team is confident of achieving even better results in 2016.

Ancillary Business

Total revenue from the ancillary businesses of security, cleaning,
trading and laundry saw a 6.3% increase over 2014 to HK$89.4
million. Due to the increase in general administrative expenses for
business development, the operating profit of this business segment
reduced to HK$7.3 million in 2015.

Interiors and Special Projects

“ISP has consistently delivered good results and has secured
new contracts worth over HK$2.2 billion during the year with
the outstanding value of contracts on hand exceeding HK$2.8
billion.”

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the ISP business recorded
HK$1.7 billion in total revenue and HK$92.3 million gross profit,
representing a growth of 51.5% and 13.6% respectively when
compared with 2014. A significant contribution came from the
proposed commercial development in Wong Chuk Hang, the
development of a 28-storey commercial building in Causeway Bay
and renovation projects in Tsuen Wan and Tuen Mun. The gross profit
margin and operating profit margin was 5.5% and 3.7% respectively.
Efforts in streamlining operations and cost reduction initiatives
associated with the cost monitoring mechanism have delivered
satisfactory returns in 2015. As a result, operating profit for the ISP
business increased by 24.1% to HK$62.8 million this year.
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= MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

New Contracts Awarded

New contracts amounting to HK$2.2 billion for the year was very
similar to the amount in the contracts awarded in 2014.

A number of projects with significant contract sums has been
secured in 2015. The major projects are listed below by nature:

Construction and Special Projects

° Residential development at Discovery Bay North Phase 16;
and

. New factory development in Yuen Long for a well-established
pharmaceutical brand.

Alteration and addition (“A&A"), Renovation and
Conservation

o Residential development at Aberdeen Street;

o A&A works for a transformer room and shops at Harbour City;

° A&A works of Pakpolee Commercial Centre;

° Renovation works to G/F lobbies, drop-off areas and public
areas of ATL Logistics Centre A & Centre B; and

° Renovation works, A&A works to Food Streets and Canopies in
Causeway Bay.

Fitting-out
° Fitting-out works for the M+ Museum Project in the West
Kowloon Cultural District.
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Outstanding Workload

The total outstanding workload for contracts on hand, as of 31
December 2015, exceeds HK$2.8 billion of which over half will be
completed in 2016. With the substantial outstanding contracts on
hand and the capability to replenish orders, management believes
that the ISP business would deliver sustainable growth in the coming
years through the team’s commitment and dedication to excellence.

HK$ million
BEEET
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With the good performance of business in fitting-out, renovation,
A&A and special construction works in the past few years, the team
will continue to drive expansion in these three sectors in 2016. Plans
are also in hand to develop new lines of business including curtain
wall business, materials sourcing and purchasing specialist trading
business to help reduce project costs.

Financial Position and Financial Risk
Management

After acquisition of the ISP business in November 2012, new banking
facilities and liquidity lines have been obtained to support the
increased scale of operations.

As of 31 December 2015, the total outstanding bank loan was
HK$294 million, which is scheduled to be repaid over the next two
years. This includes an outstanding balance of HK$108 million (which
around HK$84 million due over 1 year) relating to the banking facility
drawn down for acquiring the ISP business in November 2012. The
remaining sum represents working capital loans to mainly support
ISP operations and business development. The management will
continue to proactively monitor the financial positions of the Group
so as to maintain sufficient buffer in our financial capacity while taking
advantage of attractive business opportunities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Interest costs on bank borrowings are primarily charged based
on a spread over HIBOR. With regard to the current portfolio of
businesses, management expects that financial requirements for the
future will be met from a combination of retained earnings and bank
borrowings.

RITIEE

MEFEK

ZHBRAT2RBBRITRAEFBIMEET
H-RAANEBEAME EEERERATEERARKZ
BESAR B BN RIRITIEE B -

Financial position (HK$’000) B EARR (BT ) 2015 2014
Total assets EEH#E 1,229,575 950,114
Receivables and other assets EURER R R E & = 877,235 629,142
Deposit, cash and cash equivalents FR-BHekRE&EE 129,841 91,195
Current assets RBEE 1,007,076 720,337
Net assets EERE 279,392 245,954
Current liabilities EBEE 938,974 693,361
Bank loans RITER 293,536 247,000
Gearing ratios and liquidity EEERBLEERRBES

Net debt to net assets FREHEEFAEILE 58.6% 63.3%
Total debt to net assets HMEBREEFAELE 105.1% 100.4%
Current ratio B = 1.1 1.0
Per share data sRER

Shares in issue (all classes) EEITR D (FTE%ER)) 427,676,000 415,890,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRERZF (FBEA) 14.9 1.9
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FREERF (BB 12.8 10.8
Dividend per share (HK cents) RS (B 5.0 7.0
Net assets per share (HK cents) FREEFE BB 65.3 59.1
Other key ratios HihFxZtb &

Return on shareholders’ equity (ROE) P BR A A 1B 3 19.8% 18.4%
Dividend payout ratio KB ER 39% 64%

The Group adopts a conservative approach in the management of its
financial risks and resources, under the supervision of the Executive
Directors.

Interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings as interest rates are
fixed for short-term periods, to take advantage of the lower rates
thus available. The interest rates will be subject to fluctuation at the
time of renewal.

The Group’s business is conducted primarily in Hong Kong, and the
majority of its assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, therefore it has minimal foreign currency exposure. The
growth in Chinese Mainland has been funded via permanent capital
injection, which is for the long-term and as such foreign currency
hedging is considered unnecessary.

It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative transactions for
speculative purposes. It is also the Group’s policy not to invest its
financial resources in financial products, including hedge funds or
similar instruments, with significant underlying leverage or derivative
exposure.

22 Synergis Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

AEBRATEZZEE THEY KRR MERRRE
EHAER-

RITIEE Z F R AR 7Y d 70 M R 50 58 B A A B E A 2 1
B B A A A EER K - F RGN BERINE)

AEENEBIZERBET EXFNEENEEY
PABHE R E BN R AN BIRSME R B - £ 5
Wi 2 B RBBKAOTERPENES AU AEER
A B S BAETT M S

AEEZ - BEBRRETGIUTETARSIEREDE
A& TAallBERRENTREANERBERDT
ETARBzZEBERL BREIIESHBLURET
Ho



Cash Management

The Group operates a centralized cash management system. Cash
balances surplus to immediate requirements are mainly placed as
short-term bank deposits with a number of licensed banks in Hong
Kong.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed a total of 5,792 staff
(4,963 staff in Hong Kong/Macau and 829 staff in Chinese Mainland)
(2014: 6,197). The latest figure reflects changes in the portfolio of
property and facility management contracts in 2015.

To cope with operational needs and the Group’s sustainable
business growth, coupled with implementation of Statutory Minimum
Wages, a series of staff retention measures are adopted with two
main focuses: employee engagement and staff development. The
Human Resources Effectiveness Committee, with members from
senior management as well as representatives from operational
units, has continued to review all related policies and work out new
staff retention initiatives including regular visits to sites for better
communication and extension of compassionate leave to frontline
staff to show the Company’s care for staff in times of need. Proactive
initiatives for staff retention have also been implemented to share the
fruits of the Group’s business growth, different awards to recognize
the hard work and contributions of staff; a share options scheme is
available for senior management staff to provide them with incentives
to align their performance with the development of the Group.

In 2015, the Learning and Development Team has placed its focus
on enhancing service standards to clients. Reinforced Total Customer
Experience Management trainings offered an opportunity for staff to
serve clients with a more comprehensive approach. With the result
obtained from the previous Training Need analysis, the team aims at
enhancing staff competency by strengthening the writing skills and
service mindset of staff. The Group will continue to support qualified
staff to attain the Recognition of Prior Learning under the Qualification
Framework. Up to the end of 2015, the team assisted over 1,400
employees to obtain accreditation for Qualifications Framework
Levels 1 to 3; with around 20 staff members successfully achieving
the Qualification of Housing Practitioner through Qualifications
Framework Level 4.

Looking forward to the year ahead, building on its continuous efforts
to invest in enhancing staff engagement and talent attraction, the
Group will further enhance efficiency and effectiveness in human
resources management through workflow re-engineering and
process automation at both the site and headquarter levels. Roster
compilation and salary payment could be automated through
implementation of the newly-developed Synergis Attendance
Management System, which is designed to relieve the workload
of frontline staff and allow for redeployment of manpower to uplift
service standards.

Brenda Yau Shuk Mee
Co-Managing Director

Terence Leung Siu Cheong
Co-Managing Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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-~ PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

= BEEHN

Ir. Jos%gh Choi Kin Hung
SR8 TR
Executive Director and Chairman

HITEFRLE

Ir. Joseph Choi Kin Hung
BSec, RPE, CEng, FHKIE, FHKIHT, MICE (aged 68)

Ir. Joseph Choi Kin Hung (‘Ir. Choi”) is an Executive
Director and Chairman of the Company. He is a
member of each of the Executive Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee.

Ir. Choi is an executive director and the chief executive
officer of Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.) (“‘Hsin
Chong”, together with its subsidiaries, collectively, the
“Hsin Chong Group”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of Hsin Chong.

Ir. Choi is a fellow and the senior vice president of the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers (‘HKIE”). He is
the chairman of the Administration Board, and an ex-
officio member of the Planning Committee of HKIE,
the vice chairman of Council of China’s Foreign Trade
of the China Council for the Promotion of International
Trade, a member of the Engineers Registration Board,
and a fellow and a council member of the Hong Kong
Institution of Highways and Transportation. He is also
a member of the Infrastructure Development Advisory
Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council since 1 April 2016.

Ir. Choi is @ member of the Institution of Civil Engineers
of the UK, a chartered engineer of the UK, a registered
professional engineer of Hong Kong, a director
of Engineering Forum Limited, a member of the
Departmental Advisory Committee for the Department
of Civil and Environmental Engineering of the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, and a director of the Joint
Professional Centre Limited to represent HKIE.

Ir. Choi joined the Hsin Chong Group in August
2009 as assistant managing director and has been
promoted to his current positions in Hsin Chong. He
has over 45 years of multi-dimensional and multi-
functional experience across contracting and client
organisations in Hong Kong, Chinese Mainland,
Taiwan, Macau and overseas. Before joining the
Hsin Chong Group, he was the general manager of
the Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation and MTR
Corporation Limited, responsible for the design and
construction of various new railway lines.

Ir. Choi graduated from the University of Aston in

Birmingham, United Kingdom with a degree of
Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering.

*  for identification purposes only £ #7545
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Ms. Brenda Yau Shuk Mee

BHousMan (Hons), CIHCM, MHKIH, RPHM,
VBAS Assessor (List 2B) (aged 55)

Ms. Brenda Yau Shuk Mee (“‘Ms. Yau”) is an Executive
Director and Co-Managing Director® of the Company,
Ms. Yau is also a member of the Executive Committee.

She is also the chief operating officer of Synergis
Management Services Limited, and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Yau is
responsible for the strategic planning, business
development and overall operations of the Group.

Ms. Yau holds a Bachelor of Housing Management
degree from The University of Hong Kong. She is a
registered professional housing manager under the
Housing Managers Registration Board, a member
of The Chartered Institute of Housing (Asian Pacific
Branch), and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Housing. Ms. Yau joined the Group in 2000 and has
over 32 years of experience in property management
and functional administration.

o This title has been changed to Managing Director with effect form ~

5 April 2016.
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Mr. Terence Leunﬁ Siu Cheong
REKEXE

Executive Director and
Co-Managing Director

HITEFRBIEEFHEE

This title has been changed to Managing Director with effect form ~

5 April 2016.

Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong

BSc, MHKIE, MCIOB, MHKICM, ACIArb, R.PE.
(aged 50)

Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong (‘Mr. Leung”) is an
Executive Director and Co-Managing Director® of
the Company. He is also a member of the Executive
Committee.

Mr. Leung is the managing director of Hsin
Chong Interiors (Hong Kong) Limited, Hsin Chong
Construction (Engineering) Limited and Everich
Construction (Macau) Limited, and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a member of
the supervisory board of certain joint ventures of the
Group.

Mr. Leung is responsible for the business development
and project monitoring of all addition and alteration
works, renovation works, fitting-out works,
conservation and revitalisation works, and special
projects. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers and a registered professional engineer.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Leung was a senior
management member of Hsin Chong, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, where he established
and coordinated the interiors and special projects
division. He has over 28 years of experience in project
planning and monitoring, building construction and
coordination, cost control, renovation and fitting-out
works.
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Mr. Lui Chun Pong

BA, MAce, LLM, MBA (Executive), FCPA, FCCA,
ATIHK, CTA (HK), ACS, ACIS (aged 47)

Mr. Lui Chun Pong (“Mr. Lui”) is an Executive Director
of the Company. He is also a member of the Executive
Committee.

Mr. Lui is an executive director and chief financial
officer of Hsin Chong. He joined the Hsin Chong
Group in 2010 as group financial controller. He
was promoted to finance director of Hsin Chong
Construction Company Limited in 2014, to acting chief
financial officer of the Hsin Chong Group in July 2015,
and has been further promoted to his current position
in Hsin Chong on 11 September 2015.

Mr. Lui is responsible for overseeing the finance and
accounting operations, budgetary control, group
financial control and cashflow management of the Hsin
Chong Group. He is a director of certain subsidiaries
of Hsin Chong. He has over 24 years of experience in
corporate accounting, financing and tax administration
in the real estate business like property development,
property investment and property management, in
addition to company secretarial practices of Hong
Kong listed companies. Before joining the Hsin Chong
Group, Mr. Lui held senior positions of a number
of Hong Kong companies listed on the main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Lui obtained a Bachelor degree of Arts from the
University of Hong Kong, a Master degree of Laws
in the Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Master
degree of Accountancy from Charles Sturt University in
Australia and an Executive Master degree of Business
Administration from the City University of Hong Kong.
He is a Certified Public Accountant and a Certified
Tax Advisor in Hong Kong, and a Chartered Certified
Accountant and a Chartered Secretary in the United
Kingdom.

Mr. Lui also serves the community through
participation of promoting sports, and youth and
students’ affairs in Hong Kong. Mr. Lui was a baseball
coach and was appointed as a team secretary and
a deputy delegate leader of Hong Kong Women’s
Baseball Team to join the Women’s Baseball World
Cup in 2006 and in 2014 respectively. For the public
services in youth and students’ affairs, Mr. Lui is a
leader of various leadership mentoring programmes
in Hong Kong United Youth Association, Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and Hong Kong
Professionals and Senior Executives Association.
Mr. Lui was a director of Hong Kong United Youth
Association in 2014/2015 and is currently a member
of Hong Kong Student Affairs Sub-committee of
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan
HERE
Independent Non-executive Director

BUINTEF

Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan
GBS, JP (aged 64)

Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan (“Mr. Ip”) has been
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
since 27 September 2008. He is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee, a member of the
Nomination Committee and the Special Committee.

Mr. Ip joined the Hong Kong Government in November
1973 and was promoted to the rank of Director
of Bureau in April 1997. He worked in the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region Government
as a Principal Official from July 1997 to June 2007.
Senior positions held by Mr. Ip in the past included
Commissioner of Insurance, Commissioner for Labour,
Secretary for Economic Services and Secretary for
Financial Services.

Mr. Ip took up the position of Secretary for Economic
Development and Labour on 1 July 2002. His portfolio
in respect of economic development covered air and
sea transport, logistics development, tourism, energy,
postal services, meteorological services, competition
and consumer protection. He was also responsible
for labour policies including matters relating to
employment services, labour relations and employees’
rights. Mr. Ip retired from the Hong Kong Government
in July 2007.

Mr. Ip was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star from
the Hong Kong Government in 2001, and is an
unofficial Justice of the Peace. Mr. Ip graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a degree in Social
Sciences in 1973.

Mr. Ip is an independent non-executive director of
China Resources Cement Holdings Limited, Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited, Lai Sun Development
Company Limited and Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited, all of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange.

He was formerly an independent non-executive
director of United Photovoltaics Group Limited
(formerly known as Goldpoly New Energy Holdings
Limited), Milan Station Holdings Limited, PICC
Property and Casualty Company Limited, Viva China
Holdings Limited and Yangtze China Investment
Limited.
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Mr. Kan Fook Yee
GBS, SBS (aged 79)

Mr. Kan Fook Yee (“Mr. Kan”) has been appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director since 27
September 2008. He is also the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and the Special Committee,
and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Kan has ceased his barrister practice from
1 September 2014 and is now the principal and
proprietor of FY. Kan Property Consultancy & ADR
Services Co.

Mr. Kan continues to hold his membership as a Fellow
Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
and a Fellow Member of the Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators.

Mr. Wong Tsan Kwong
OBE, QPM, CPM (aged 70)

Mr. Wong Tsan Kwong (“Mr. Wong”) has been
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
since 27 September 2008. He is also a member of the
Audit Committee and the Special Committee.

Mr. Wong joined the Hong Kong Police Force as
an inspector in 1963 and was appointed as Deputy
Commissioner in July 1994. He retired from active
service in January 2001.

Mr. Wong has attended professional courses overseas
including FBI National Academy in Quantico, United
States, Henley Management College in United
Kingdom and Royal College of Defence Studies in the
United Kingdom.

Mr. Wong was a director of Sunbase International
(Holdings) Limited from 2001 to 2008 and he was
also a director of Sunbase International Properties
Management Limited from 2003 to 2008. He was
a board-appointed member of the Disciplinary
Committee of the Estate Agents Authority from 2007
to 2014.
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Mr. David Yu Hon To
BEE L
Independent Non-executive Director

BUINTEF

Mr. David Yu Hon To
(aged 67)

Mr. David Yu Hon To (“Mr. Yu”) was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 27 September
2008. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Special Committee.

Mr. Yu is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and an associate
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has extensive experience in the fields
of auditing, corporate finance, financial investigation
and corporate management. He was formerly a
partner of an international accounting firm.

He is currently an independent non-executive
director of several other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange, namely Bracell Limited (formerly
known as Sateri Holdings Limited), China Renewable
Energy Investment Limited, China Resources Gas
Group Limited, Great China Holdings Limited,
Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd., Keck Seng
Investments (Hong Kong) Limited, Media Chinese
International Limited, One Media Group Limited,
Playmates Holdings Limited and New Century Asset
Management Limited (the manager of New Century
Real Estate Investment Trust).

Mr. Yu was formerly an independent non-executive
director of China Datang Corporation Renewable
Power Co., Limited, Crown International Corporation
Limited (formerly known as VXL Capital Limited) and
TeleEye Holdings Limited.
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PROFILES OF THE GROUP'S KEY PERSONNEL £

Mr. Wilson Wong Siu Kwan
(aged 57)

Mr. Wilson Wong Siu Kwan (“Mr. Wong”) is the
Deputy Managing Director (China), responsible for
the overall strategic planning, business development
and management operations of the real estate service
business in the Chinese Mainland. He is a member of
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and the
Chartered Institute of Housing. Mr. Wong joined the
Group in 2009 and has over 37 years of extensive
experience real estate service in Hong Kong, Taiwan
and the Chinese Mainland.

Mr. Terence Ng Chun Man
(aged 50)

Mr. Terence Ng Chun Man (“Mr. Ng”) joined the Group
as Director — Ancillary Services Business with effect
from 1 March 2016. Mr. Ng is responsible for the
strategic planning, business development and overall
operation of the Group’s ancillary services business.

Mr. Ng obtained a Bachelor degree of Social Sciences
from the University of Hong Kong. He has been a
director of Business Environmental Council (BEC) and
the vice chairman of the Federation of Environmental
and Hygienic Services (FEHS). He is also a member
of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association (HKPASEA). Mr. Ng has over 20 years
experience in top management position including
ancillary services business management in listed
companies.

Mr. David Chan Tat Wai
MCIOB, MHKICM (aged 56)

Mr. David Chan Tat Wai (“Mr. Chan”) is a director
of Hsin Chong Interiors (Hong Kong) Limited, Hsin
Chong Construction (Engineering) Limited and Everich
Construction (Macau) Limited. He is also a director
and general manager of Hsin Chong abp Company
Limited, a specialist curtain wall, cladding and related
products company.

Mr. Chan is responsible for the business development
and project monitoring of certain alterations and
additions works, renovation works, fitting-out works,
facade works and special projects. He is a member
of the Chartered Institute of Building and Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers.

Mr. Chan joined Interiors and Special Projects Division
(ISP) in 2010 and has over 34 years of experience in
project planning and monitoring, building construction
and coordination, estimating and budgeting, cost
control, procurement, renovation and fitting-out works.
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— PROFILES OF THE GROUP'S KEY PERSONNEL
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Mr. Danny Tsui Chi Hou
(aged 51)

Mr. Danny Tsui Chi Hou (‘Mr. Tsui”) is a director of
Hsin Chong Interiors (Hong Kong) Limited, Hsin
Chong Construction (Engineering) Limited and Everich
Construction (Macau) Limited.

Mr. Tsui graduated from the United Kingdom and
qualified as a member of each of Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors, Chartered Association
of Building Engineers and Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors since his graduation. He is also an
authorized person and registered inspector under the
Hong Kong Buildings Ordinance. Mr. Tsui is currently
appointed as a member (2015-2018) of the Appeal
Tribunal Panel (Buildings) under the Planning and
Lands of the Development Bureau of the Government
Secretariat.

Mr. Tsui possesses over 28 years of experience in the
building construction industry in the areas of project
planning, design and construction management with
exposure in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China and
Singapore. He has been involved in various mega
sized projects including several entertainment projects
in Macau, theme park and property developments
in Singapore, numerous international brand hotel
developments in various provinces of Chinese
Mainland, and a wide range of new build, fitting-out,
and alterations and additions work projects in Hong
Kong territory.

Mr. Yu Chi Wing
(aged 48)

Mr. Yu Chi Wing (“Mr. Yu”) is a director of Hsin
Chong Interiors (Hong Kong) Limited, Hsin Chong
Construction (Engineering) Limited and Everich
Construction (Macau) Limited.

Mr. Yu is responsible for the business development,
tendering, project monitoring and commercial issues
of all alterations and additions works, renovation
works, fitting-out works, conservation and revitalization
works and special projects. Before joining the Group,
Mr. Yu had worked as a senior staff member for over
24 years under Hsin Chong, the holding company
of the Group. He has over 27 years of experience in
building construction and coordination, cost control,
renovation and fitting-out works.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company recognises the interests of and its responsibility to
one of its most important stakeholders — the shareholders. Synergis
is committed to upholding high standards of corporate governance
as a means of protecting and enhancing shareholder value and
ensuring the integrity of operations of the Group. Synergis’ corporate
governance standards are built on the principles of independence,
accountability, transparency and fairness with an appropriate system
of checks and balances.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company has applied the principles of the code provisions
and certain recommended best practices set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has
fully complied with all code provisions of the CG Code.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct for regulating
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Board has further adopted the Model Code as the written
guidelines for regulating securities transactions by the senior
management (whose names appear in the annual report of the
Company) and certain employees of the Group (collectively, the
“Relevant Employees”). The Board believes that the Relevant
Employees may, by virtue of their positions, likely be in possession
of unpublished inside information of the Company and/or its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”).
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Board of Directors

Composition

As at 23 March 2016, the Board comprised eight Directors, including
four Executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The names of the directors are set out below:

Executive Directors

Ir. Joseph Choi Kin Hung (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 11 December 2015)
Ms. Brenda Yau Shuk Mee (Co-Managing Director)”
(appointed with effect from 10 April 2015)
Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong (Co-Managing Director)”
(appointed with effect from 10 April 2015)
Mr. Lui Chun Pong
(appointed with effect from 11 December 2015)
Dr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai
(resigned with effect from 11 December 2015)
Dr. Fan Cheuk Hung
(resigned with effect from 1 September 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan
Mr. Kan Fook Yee

Mr. Wong Tsan Kwong
Mr. David Yu Hon To

An updated list of directors identifying their roles and functions is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Company (www.synergis.com.hk).

Coming from diverse business and professional backgrounds,
the Board members possess a balance of skills and expertise
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Group and
they are collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. Save
as disclosed in the Profiles of Directors set out on pages 24 to 30 of
this annual report, there is no relationship among the members of the
Board.

The Company currently has four Independent Non-executive
Directors representing more than one-third of the total number of
Board members and is in compliance with the requirement under
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The views of the Independent Non-
executive Directors carry weight in the Board’s decisions, and
their participation helps the Board exercise judgement, make
decisions and act objectively in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

B This title has been changed to Managing Director with effect from 5
April 2016.
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Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has given to the
Company an annual confirmation of independence in compliance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all
the Independent Non-executive Directors are and have remained
independent. Mr. David Yu Hon To, chairman of the Audit Committee,
has the appropriate accounting and financial management expertise
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Members of the Board, including the names of all the Independent
Non-executive Directors, are expressly identified in all corporate
communications which disclose the names of the directors of the
Company.

Functions

The Board has an ultimate oversight of the Group’s activities. Its
primary functions are to set and direct the Company’s strategy
and to monitor and measure the management’s performance. It
is accountable for the overall strategic development of the Group
with the objective to enhance shareholder value. Material matters
are reserved for the Board’s considerations or decisions which
include, among other things, overall strategy of the Group, business
plans, annual budgets, significant capital expenditure, interim
and annual results and reports, dividend policy and payments,
material acquisitions, disposals or investment proposals, directors’
appointments, re-appointments or removal, and other material
transactions.

The Board has delegated certain of its responsibilities to the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee,
Special Committee and Executive Committee. It has also delegated
the day-to-day operations of the Group’s business to the senior
management. Delegation of duties to the Board committees and daily
business operations to the management are discussed on pages 41
to 48 of this report.

Board Chairman and Co-Managing Directors

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established and set out in writing. Dr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai was
the Chairman of the Board until 10 December 2015, when Ir. Joseph
Choi Kin Hung has been appointed to replace him as the Chairman
of the Board with effect from 11 December 2015. On the other hand,
Dr. Fan Cheuk Hung was the Managing Director until 31 August
2015, when both Ms. Brenda Yau Shuk Mee and Mr. Terence Leung
Siu Cheong have been appointed as the Co-Managing Directors with
effect from 1 September 2015.
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At all times, the chairmen and chief executives are not related to each
other and there are clear divisions among their responsibilities with a
view to achieving a balance of power and authority. The Chairman of
the Board provides leadership to the Board in terms of formulating
policies and strategies, and discharges those duties set out in code
provision A.2 of the CG Code. The Co-Managing Directors have
the overall responsibility of implementing the decisions, policies
and strategies approved by the Board, and overseeing the Group’s
business and operations. The duties of the Chairman and the Co-
Managing Directors are set out in their respective service agreements
entered into with the Company.

With the support from the Executive Directors and the Company
Secretary, the Chairman of the Board ensures that all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising from Board meetings and receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The Board has assumed the responsibility to consider the
appointment, re-election and removal of the Directors. The Board set
up a Nomination Committee in 2011 to recommend the appointment,
re-election and removal of the Directors.

All the Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors have entered into letters of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years subject to the requirements of the Listing
Rules and the bye-laws of the Company (‘Bye-laws”), including the
requirement of retirement by rotation and re-election or standing for
re-election at annual general meetings of the Company at least once
every three years. The term is renewable upon expiry.

Any new Director to be appointed by the Company shall be
provided with information on duties and obligations of director,
relevant regulatory requirements and the Group’s business affairs.
All Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy would be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting of the Company
after appointment.

Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Tentative dates of regular Board
meetings for next year are scheduled approaching the end of each
calendar year in order to facilitate the Directors to plan for attendance
of the meetings. Additional Board meetings will be convened, as
and when required, to deal with ad hoc issues. Any Director who is
not able to present physically may participate at any Board meeting
through electronic means of communication, such as conference
telephone or other similar communication equipment, in accordance
with the Bye-laws.
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Board Proceedings

Notice convening each regular Board meeting is sent at least 14 days
in advance, and reasonable notice is given for other Board meetings.
The Company Secretary assists the Board chairman to prepare the
meeting notice and agenda. Each Director may include any item
in the agenda. The agenda, accompanied by meeting papers with
sufficient and reliable information, are sent to each Director not
less than three days before the date of a Board meeting to enable
the Directors to make informed decisions on the matters to be
discussed, except where a Board meeting is convened on a very
urgent basis to consider any urgent ad hoc matter.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the
Board meetings, drafts and final versions of which will be circulated
to directors for comment and records, respectively, and in both
cases, within a reasonable time after each meeting. Minutes
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board at
the meeting and decisions reached, including any concerns raised
by the Directors or dissenting view (if any) expressed. Minutes of
Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and open for
inspection to any Director on request.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Directors have
full and timely access to all relevant information, including reports
from the Board committees and reports from the management. They
are also provided with updates on the latest developments of the
Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory changes and
matters of relevance to the Directors in discharging their duties as
and when appropriate.

To assist the Directors to discharge their duties, the Board has
adopted written procedures in case any director wishes to seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

Board approval is also given by circulation of resolution in writing
pursuant to the Bye-laws on urgent matter which requires decision in
a tight timeframe and hence convening a Board meeting is difficult or
not practicable. In the case where a resolution in writing is circulated,
sufficient information and explanatory materials will also be provided
to the Directors at the same time. These written resolutions were
tabled for the Directors’ review at the next following Board meeting
so that directors were given the opportunity to raise any further
comment (if any) on the relevant matters.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter (including material transaction with connected persons) which
the Board determines to be material, the Board will hold a meeting
(as long as time is allowed to convene a Board meeting) to consider
the relevant matter first before any subsequent approval is given by
way of circulation of resolution in writing.

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities has
been arranged to protect the Directors and officers of the Group.
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Attendances of Meetings

Four Board meetings, two Audit Committee Meetings, two
Remuneration Committee meetings, two Nomination Committee
meetings, two Special Committee meetings and two general
meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2015.
Attendances of these meetings by Directors are set out below:

ERHFERER

REZE2015F 12831 B IEFER K
HO2OREREEEER 2RFTHNEE

BITAREEEE
BEE 2RIEA
BEH 2NN R EEERNORBRAE - TERHE

JIEEHEZEER BN

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HE/BEREEER
Audit Remuneration Nomination Special General

Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Directors Espg Ezg ENZEY FHZEEE REZEE BIZEE BRRAE
Chairman IE
Joseph Choi Kin Hung * s 1/1 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Executive Directors HTES
Brenda Yau Shuk Mee 2 B2 3/3 n/a n/a n/a n/a 11
Terence Leung Siu Cheong 3 2SS 3/3 n/a n/a n/a n/a 11
Lui Chun Pong * & iR e 1/1 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Fan Cheuk Hung Bt 2 1 1/3 n/a n/a n/a n/a 1/2
Non-executive Director FHTES
Wilred Wong Ying Wai © FHE 3/4 n/a 2/2 2/2 n/a 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors B F#HTES
Stephen Ip Shu Kwan EHE 4/4 n/a 2/2 2/2 2/2 2/2
Kan Fook Yee GlEEE 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2 2/2 2/2
Wong Tsan Kwong o 4/4 2/2 n/a n/a 2/2 2/2
David Yu Hon To BER 4/4 2/2 n/a n/a 2/2 2/2

! Ir. Joseph Choi Kin Hung has been appointed as an Executive
Director and the Chairman with effect from 11 December 2015.

2 Ms. Brenda Yau Shuk Mee has been appointed as an Executive
Director and Co-Managing Director with effect from 10 April 2015
and 1 September 2015 respectively.

8 Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong has been appointed as an
Executive Director and Co-Managing Director with effect from 10
April 2015 and 1 September 2015 respectively.

4 Mr. Lui Chun Pong has been appointed as an Executive Director
with effect from 11 December 2015.

5 Dr. Fan Cheuk Hung resigned as an Executive Director and the
Managing Director with effect from 1 September 2015.

6 Dr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai was re-designated as a Non-executive

Director and the Chairman with effect from 1 November 2015, and
resigned as a Non-executive Director and the Chairman with effect
from 11 December 2015.

n/a: not applicable 7~
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During the year under review, the Chairman of the Board also held
meetings with the Non-executive Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) without the Executive Directors present.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that Independent
Non-executive Directors and other Non-executive Directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. All Non-executive Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) attended the special general
meeting and the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25
February 2015 and 22 May 2015 respectively.

Directors’ Training and Professional
Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of
the Company. The Company provides all members of the Board with
monthly updates on the Group’s performance and financial position.

Directors are aware of the requirement under the code provision
A.6.5 of CG Code regarding continuous professional development.
During the year, the Company provided reading materials to the
Directors for self-study. In addition, the Directors has attended
external courses, conference or luncheons organized by various
organizations.

Directors also reviewed the monthly business and financial updates
and other reading materials provided to them concerning latest
developments in corporate governance practices, and relevant legal
and regulatory developments. A record of the Directors’ participation
in various continuous professional development program is kept by
the company secretarial department. A summary of training received
by the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2015 is according
to the records provided by the Directors as follows:
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general business,
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conferences/forums and regulations, etc

B4 8 B A A S -

—REE-

gi5t-EZE

358 R R R

BITHEEREEHNE EFHEZHE -

Name of Directors BESS 28 WwiE BT R ZHEN
Joseph Choi Kin Hung ! e yiEy V N
Brenda Yau Shuk Mee 2 ViR V=R v v
Terence Leung Siu Cheong @ 2IES v v
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EEERRE
Reading newspapers,
journals and
updates relating
to the economy,
Giving talks or general business,
attending seminars/ accounting, laws, rules
conferences/forums and regulations, etc
REERRE -
—RE%
RS
RAIRER
BTRERHEHTE EFHEZBE
Name of Directors EEHR a8 wiE M REHENR
Lui Chun Pong * B IR Fp4 Vv v
Stephen Ip Shu Kwan g Vv vV
Kan Fook Yee e v vV
Wong Tsang Kwong =R v vV
David Yu Hon To BER ) V
Fan Cheuk Hung ® B e5 1S vV v
Wilfred Wong Ying Wai © T B (e v v

Ir. Joseph Choi Kin Hung has been appointed as an Executive
Director and the Chairman with effect from 11 December 2015.
Ms. Brenda Yau Shuk Mee has been appointed as an Executive
Director and Co-Managing Director with effect from 10 April 2015
and 1 September 2015 respectively.

Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong has been appointed as an
Executive Director and Co-Managing Director with effect from 10
April 2015 and 1 September 2015 respectively.

Mr. Lui Chun Pong has been appointed as an Executive Director
with effect from 11 December 2015.

Dr. Fan Cheuk Hung resigned as an Executive Director and the
Managing Director with effect from 1 September 2015.

Dr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai was re-designated as a Non-executive
Director and the Chairman with effect from 1 November 2015, and
resigned as a Non-executive Director and the Chairman with effect
from 11 December 2015.
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Board Committees

Each of the Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Special Committee (established on 9 April 2015) and the Executive
Committee, is to assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities
and to oversee particular aspect of the Group’s affairs. Each Board
committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties properly, and holds meetings in accordance with the Bye-
laws, its specific written terms of reference and, where applicable, the
proceedings of Board meeting.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprised Mr. David Yu Hon To (Independent
Non-executive Director) as chairman, Mr. Kan Fook Yee (Independent
Non-executive Director) and Mr. Wong Tsan Kwong (Independent
Non-executive Director). None of the Audit Committee members
is or has been a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors for the past one year.

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for conducting an
independent and objective review of the financial reporting process,
internal controls and audit function with emphasis on:

(i) appraise the quality of the audit effort of the Company’s
internal and external auditors;

(i) serve as an independent and objective party to review
the financial information presented by management to
shareholders, regulators and the general public;

(i)  ascertain the adequacy of the Company’s system of internal
control which management and the Board have established;
and

(iv)  serve as useful channel of communication between the Board
and the external and internal auditors on matters relating to
and arising out of the external and internal audit.

The authority and duties of the Audit Committee are set out in its
specific written terms of reference. Full text of the terms of reference
of the Audit Committee is available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, among other
things, recommending to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment or removal of the Company’s external auditor and on its
remuneration; reviewing the Company’s interim and annual financial
statements and other financial reports; and reviewing the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control procedures (including
monitoring the effectiveness of the internal audit function) and risk
management systems. The Audit Committee has explicit authority to
investigate any activity within its duties and responsibilities and the
authority to obtain outside legal or other independent professional
advice if it considers necessary.
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The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, two Audit Committee meetings were
held. Attendances of the meetings have been disclosed on page 38
of this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee
members reviewed () the audit strategy memorandum from the
external auditor; (i) with the participation of the internal and external
auditors and the management, reviewed the internal control system
of the Group; and (iii) with the participation of the internal and external
auditors and the management, the interim and annual results and the
related financial statements of the Company with a view to ensuring
that these financial statements were prepared in accordance with
the accounting principles and standards generally accepted in Hong
Kong. The Audit Committee also considered the reports from the
external auditor on the scope and findings of its independent review
of the interim and annual financial statements.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee’s view on re-appointment of external auditor, and
they both have agreed to recommend the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for the
ensuing year at the 2015 annual general meeting of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprised Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan
(Independent Non-executive Director) as chairman, Mr. Kan Fook
Yee (Independent Non-executive Director) and Ir. Joseph Choi Kin
Hung (Executive Director appointed as a member with effect from 11
December 2015) as members.

The authority and duties of the Remuneration Committee are set
out in its specific written terms of reference. Full text of the terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing
the remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages
of the directors and senior management of the Company. Its duties
are summarised below:

(i) make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(ii) review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;
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(i) ~ make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management;

(iv)  make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors;

(vy  consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities, and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

(v review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(vi)  review and approve compensation arrangement, relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

(viii)  ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, two committee meetings were
held. Attendances of the meetings have been disclosed on page 38
of this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Remuneration
Committee members reviewed (i) the bonus distribution proposal
of the Directors and the senior management for the year ended
31 December 2014; (i) the remuneration packages of the newly
appointed Executive Directors; (iii) the bonus structure of the
Executive Directors and senior management; (iv) the salaries of
Executive Directors and senior management; (v) the salary increment
of the general staff; (vi) the directors’ fees for the financial year ending
31 December 2016; and (vii) recommended the aforesaid matters to
the Board for approval.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December
2015 is set out below:

RIBCEEARTAZTAEXEBASE UTHESE
BIEABREE2015F12A31 B I FENH AR :

Number of individuals

Within the band of # B F R A
up to HK$1,000,000 F5 1,000,000 8 A T 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 78 51,000,001 7T 2 7% #52,000,0007T 4
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 78 2,000,001 7T & 7 #3,000,0007T 2
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 78 4,000,001 7T 2 7% ¥5,000,0007T 2

Remuneration Policy of the Group

The Group sets its remuneration policy by making reference to the
prevailing market conditions and benchmark of the industry, and by
formulating a performance-based reward system. It is to ensure that
the Group is able to attract, retain and motivate executives of the
highest caliber, essential to the successful leadership and effective
management of the Group. The performance measures are balanced
between financial and industrial comparatives. The components
of remuneration package may consist of base salary, allowances,
benefits-in-kind, fringe benefits including medical insurance and
contributions to pension funds, as well as incentives like discretionary
bonus, participation in a share option scheme or long-term rewards.

The remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company are determined by the Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board by reference to their
respective duties and responsibilities in the Group, individual
performance, achievement of the Group'’s targets and the prevailing
market terms in the industry.

The remunerations of the Non-executive and Independent Non-
executive Directors are determined by the Board under the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee by reference to
their duties and responsibilities in the Group, time involvement and
the prevailing market situation.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprised Mr. Kan Fook Yee
(Independent Non-executive Director) as chairman, Mr. Stephen Ip
Shu Kwan (Independent Non-executive Director) and Ir. Joseph Choi
Kin Hung (Executive Director appointed as a member with effect from
11 December 2015) as members.

The authority and duties of the Nomination Committee are set out in
its specific written terms of reference. Full text of the said terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee is available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for formulating
nomination policy and leading the process of identifying and
nominating suitable candidates. Its duties are summarised below:

M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

review the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, skills, knowledge, professional experience and
length of service) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s corporate strategy;

identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

identify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies of
directors for the Board’s approval;

taking into account the Group’s corporate strategy and mix
of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in
the future, to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief
Executive;

assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors and review the Independent Non-executive Directors’
annual confirmations on their independence; and make
disclosure of its review results in the Corporate Governance
Report;

regularly review the time required from a Director to perform
his/her responsibilities and report to the Board of their findings;
and

review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and
review the measurable objectives that the Board had set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress on
achieving the objectives; and make disclosure of its review
results in the Corporate Governance Report annually.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, two committee meetings were
held. Attendances of the meeting have been disclosed on page 38 of
this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination
Committee members (i) reviewed and considered that the structure,
size, diversity and composition of the Board are appropriate: (i)
assessed the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors,
(i) recommended the appointments of new Executive Directors; and
(iv) recommended the aforesaid matters to the Board for approval.
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The “Board Diversity Policy” sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. It is believed that a truly diverse board will
include and make good use of differences in the skills, background,
experience, knowledge, expertise and other qualities of members
of the Board. These differences will be taken into account in
determining the optimum composition of the Board. The Nomination
Committee will review the Board composition by considering the
benefits of all aspect of diversity, including but not limited to those
described above. The “Board Diversity Policy” shall be reviewed
by the Nomination Committee, as appropriate, to ensure its
effectiveness.

Special Committee

The Special Committee comprised Mr. Kan Fook Yee (Independent
Non-executive Director) as chairman, Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan
(Independent Non-executive Director), Mr. Wong Tsan Kwong
(Independent Non-executive Director) and Mr. David Yu Hon To
(Independent Non-executive Director) as members.

The authority and duties of the Special Committee are set out in
its specific written terms of reference. Full text of the said terms of
reference of the Special Committee is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Company’s head office and the location at which it provided
property management services for Garden Vista were attended
by officers of the Independent Commission Against Corruption
of Hong Kong on 25 March 2015 to execute search warrants
relating to certain matters in connection with the contracts awarded
for a renovation project of Garden Vista, one of the properties
managed by the Group (the “Matters”). The Special Committee was
therefore established on 9 April to deal with the Matters with duties
summarised below:

(i) review, as appropriate, the adequacy of internal procedures
and related checks and balances in relation to the provision
of property and facility management services of the Group
(including managing any tender processes for client properties
or facilities) and internal training programmes implemented by
the Group in such procedures and legal/regulatory compliance
and recommend measures to strengthen the procedures and/
or training programmes as the Committee deems necessary;

(i) monitor the progress of investigations on the Matters, and
to consider the impact of any further developments on
the operations and financial position of the Group and to
recommend action to be taken by the Board;

(i) where the Committee considers it appropriate, appoint external
legal counsel or other independent professional advisors (the
“Advisors”) (the terms of engagement and scope of work of
which shall be determined and finalized by the Committee) to
provide advice and assistance in conducting the investigation
into the Matters, to review and comment on the findings and to
consider the advice of the Advisors;
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(iv) authorise any further investigations that may be deemed
necessary in the Committee’s sole opinion; and

(V) report on any irregularities identified by the Advisors and
from the results of any investigations to the Board as and
when the Committee considers appropriate and to make
recommendations to the Board on the action to be taken.

The Special Committee shall meet from time to time and as
necessary. During the year ended 31 December 2015, two
committee meetings were held. Attendances of the meeting have
been disclosed on page 38 of this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Special Committee
members reviewed and considered the report from the management,
and the report from an independent professional firm on the review
of the internal procurement control and tendering process of the
property and facilities management services.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprised four members, namely, Ir.
Joseph Choi Kin Hung, Ms. Brenda Yau Shuk Mee, Mr. Terence
Leung Siu Cheong and Mr. Lui Chun Pong.

The authority and duties of the Executive Committee are set out
in the specific written terms of reference adopted by the Board.
Its principal duties are to approve banking matters, the issue of
guarantees to third party customers and issue of shares under share
option scheme and other duties delegated by the Board from time to
time.

The Executive Committee shall meet as and when required
depending on business and operation needs. Members’ attendances
would depend on the importance of the matters to be transacted.
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Executive Committee
held six meetings to discharge their duties.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

(i) develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(i)  review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements;

(v)

BAZESBETHAREVNBERETER

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERRE

EEI>

EREETAERRBLEZE[E—

=
= B

PR

np

O]

D+ X

REER REEFREBREATE K
ERPEBSN 2 ERMTETR LHET
AEESFLEHZ-

\m]u

REB 2R
E BES
78

“*%775
N:I

R X

o B 22015

12)5]31E|ﬂ:¢r LL"T}D]U;/\EI;—"?'—%TTT2/AEE§ er_a
ZIERE AR EEIBE IR

HE2015F12A31HIEFE FRAZEENECER R
ZEAAEMYELZEEE RS < NSRBI L&
ERENEEABRERBIEERR ZHRE -

HITEES

WITZE

S4B K BB BIEEEE TA2E0 B &K

T REKERERBIRMELLE-

HITZE 2R EBEHN

MREFERMZEEER

BREEN - HEER s TBRE SHERTER MF
=HBRPHEARER RBREEETRGO R TERTT
HEFSRENEMBE-

WTZREQARNEERLEEFTECARSA - KEAR

BTREEEZEER

MHFEEE - HE2015612H31H

IHFE RITEESR{TTOREEUNETRE -

P EERB AL
EERREEEARAICEERBRERBEITANRESE
AME

(i) FIET BT AR R EERBR L ER

(i)

(i)

BAREREENSEERAB ZHIINFESR
ERR:

B RERARRRETHE LR REEREM
HEZBERER:

o155 praEREmERan 47




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERBRE

(iv)  develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(v)  review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board has in place Procedures for Directors to seek Independent
Professional Advice.

Delegation to Management

The monitoring of the day-to-day business operations of the Group
and the implementation of the business plans and strategies adopted
by the Board are performed by the senior management led primarily
by Co-Managing Directors of the Company.

The Group has also organised a management meeting for senior
management and other relevant staff to meet on a monthly basis to
review business operations with significant issue, review the financial
and business performance against the budget approved by the
Board, and review the implementation of the strategies and policies
adopted by the Board.

Internal Control

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining and reviewing
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group. In
meeting its responsibility, the Board, through the Audit Committee
and senior management, is kept appraised of the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Group and any recommendations
for improvement. The associated policies and procedures for internal
controls, which are properly documented and communicated to staff,
are designed to help ensure that the Group’s assets are safeguarded
against unauthorised use or disposition; relevant rules and
regulations are adhered to and complied with; complete, accurate
and reliable financial and accounting records are maintained; and key
risk factors including business risks, operational risks, financial risks
and compliance risks which may impact the Group’s performance
are appropriately identified and managed.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group through
discussion with the Audit Committee on audit findings and control
issues. These procedures provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material errors, losses and fraud, and manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s operational
systems and in the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The Board has also considered the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.
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Internal Audit

The internal audit team regularly reviews the effectiveness and
efficiency of the Group’s internal control system based on internal
audit plan agreed by the Audit Committee. Reports on findings,
recommendations and follow-up actions are submitted to the
Audit Committee for review. During the year, the internal audit
team adopted a 3-year audit plan focusing on examination of the
financial and treasury management, tendering procedures, business
development procedures, procurement, payment controls, payroll
process controls, compliance with applicable rules and regulations
and management of information technology. The primary objective
of internal audit is to provide an objective assurance on the internal
control system and to ensure that a reliable internal control system is
in place.

Based on the review and reports of the internal audit team, the Audit
Committee and the Board are satisfied that no significant control
weakness was identified in the existing control environment, and the
internal control system of the Group is effective and adequate.

Risk Management Committee

With a view to further enhancing risk management at all levels, a
Risk Management Committee, as approved by the Audit Committee
and the Board, has been established to assume the responsibility
for identifying, evaluating, assessing and managing risk areas from
company-wide perspective. The Risk Management Committee
comprises senior management, and corporate managers of the
Group. Its findings and recommendations will be reported to the
Audit Committee.

Integrity Monitoring Committee

Each of our staff is given clear guidelines and codes of standard
in the staff handbook with integrity being put as the first and
foremost code of conduct. A whistle-blowing-type channel which
is implemented by the Integrity Monitoring Committee is to provide
staff and contractors a channel to report issues which might cause a
significant financial loss to, or an adverse impact on, the image of the
Company. The Integrity Monitoring Committee comprises members
of manager of quality assurance as chairman of the Committee, with
senior finance manager and human resources manager as members.
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Directors’ Responsibility for Financial
Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group on a going
concern basis. With the support of the accounting and finance
functions led by Chief Financial Officer of the Group, the Directors
have ensured that the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015 have been prepared in accordance with
appropriate accounting policies applied, if any, consistently save for
those new and amended accounting standards as disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the interim and annual financial statements,
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules, the Directors aim at presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of the Group’s position and
prospects. Financial information put before the Board for approval by
management is accompanied by sufficient explanation to enable the
Directors to make an informed assessment.

The independent auditor’s report, which contains the statement
of the external auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the
Company’s financial statements, is set out in pages 86 to 87 of this
annual report.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s
external auditor, for services rendered for the year ended 31
December 2015 are set out as follows:

Services rendered

EENMBERSEL

EFPRRSHERGAVBRENET WHHREA
BEERAFHRBMARG MAEBIFELLEEENES
MR- EAEEEEYSAREREND T LI R

ET BE@REEE2015F12A31BILFEZLEZAUE
WEROCRBEEREANBEESHEE (WB)HRE - HER
BRI BENZEHE LSBT ERIBR
Hho

AR ISR T B IR - 45 AR SR L R R 2 98
AT RE BN  EEHARE GEWRS
IR 2 AR A KB 2 R R AR B B R - B IR
REFEFERUNN AR BERTTRE FEF
T 501 37 £ o

B AZBENIRE (B h AN RBE AR BB R
KRZEFRETMERR) MR AFRFLOESTH °

REEHE

HZE2015F12A31HIEFE AR BIINEZEENZE K
BB G RHATE TR RS M B 2 A Ek Y1 40
—F:

Fees paid/payable

PR 2 AR 75 B ENEH
HK$’000
BT
Audit services EiZR% 1,269
Non-audit services IEEZ R 198

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board
process, as well as communications among Board members. The
Company Secretary complied with all the qualifications under the
Listing Rules.
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Shareholders’ Rights, Investor Relations and
Communications with Shareholders

In addition to publishing interim and annual reports, announcements,
circulars, quarterly business updates and press releases, updates
on the Group’s developments are also provided on the Company’s
website which is updated on a timely manner.

Comments and suggestions from shareholders or investors are
welcome through the following channels to the Company:

(i) by post to the Company’s Hong Kong principal place of
business at 10/F., Hsin Chong Center, 107-109 Wai Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(ii) by facsimile transmission to (852) 2751 8784
(i) by telephone at (852) 2579 8313
(iv) by email at investor@synergis.com.hk

(v on the Company’s website at www.synergis.com.hk under “IR
Contact” of “Investor Relations”

An annual general meeting is deemed as a forum for shareholders
to communicate directly with the Board members. Notice of 20
clear business days together with detailed agenda is given to
shareholders for the annual general meeting of the Company and 10
clear business days for all special general meetings of the Company.
Separate resolution is proposed at an annual general meeting on
each substantially separate issue, including the election of each
individual director.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, any shareholder holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at a general meeting shall have the right, by written
requisition served to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be convened by the Board for
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Any vote
of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll. The
chairman of meeting will explain the poll voting procedures at the
relevant general meeting.

Continuous Corporate Governance
Enhancement

The Board is committed to continuous corporate governance
enhancement including giving closer attention to any regulatory
changes with a view to maintaining a corporate culture built on ethics
and integrity and increasing shareholder value as a whole.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRE
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TEMEEERS

Synergis has been an integral part of the corporate and social
landscape of Hong Kong since its establishment in 1987. We strive
for perfection through service from the heart and work harmoniously
together by complementing and supplementing each other. The
Group also upholds a can-do attitude with integrity and is committed
to delivering quality that will earn the respect and loyalty of our
stakeholders. The business of the Group is founded on the values
Heart & Harmony and Can-to Attitude and Commitment to Quality.

As a good corporate citizen, we are dedicated to ensuring that
our business activities bring sustained value to our shareholders,
employees and customers and make a positive contribution to the
communities.

The Group has established the Corporate Social Responsibility
(“CSR”) principles focusing on the four key areas:

° Safety and Health
We will be constantly vigilant in improving our safety
performance and ensuring safety in the workplace.

° Caring for the Environment
We will continue to develop and improve our environmental
management practices so as to minimise waste, maximise
efficiencies and reduce our impact on the environment.

° Caring for our People
We will be sensitive to the needs and aspirations of our staff
and equitable in our dealings with them. We will provide a
safe, congenial and healthy working environment and positive
opportunities for growth and advancement.

° Caring for the Community
We will be considerate and open in our dealings with the
communities in which we operate and be sensitive to cultural
diversity. We will make positive and tangible contributions to
assist worthwhile community causes.

The Quality Steering Committee of Property and Facility Management
(“PFM”) is responsible for (a) setting targets on activities and initiatives
under the four dimensions of the CSR policy; and (b) monitoring
the overall progress and performance of various committees to
implement various CSR activities and initiatives, which includes Green
Operations Committee, Quality Management Committee, Human
Resources Effectiveness Committee, Quality Assurance Committee,
and Safety & Health Committee.
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Safety & Health

The Group is committed to the safety and health of our employees,
sub-contractors and members of the public.

We have well-established operation-wide safety and health policies
and standards. We comply with all regulations and have developed,
implemented, managed an occupational health and safety (“OHS”)
system which has been OHSAS 18001 certified. We employ
registered safety officers to implement the safety management
system in our operations. Our policies and management systems are
reviewed regularly.

We aim at not only complying with statutory and contractual
requirements. More than that, we adopt viable and progressive
practices initiated in industries, and even try to initiate innovative
practices. Responsible suppliers, service providers and
subcontractors are selected on the basis of their willingness to work
in line with our concept of managing health, safety and quality at
work.

The work environment and facilities are regularly monitored in order
to provide a safe and healthy environment for our employees. Our
workplace is thoroughly checked for any health threats or safety
issues by safety professionals frequently. Safety audits are conducted
regularly to ensure that our company can continually provide a safe
and healthy environment. We also create a user-friendly workplace
with various modern amenities.

We conduct regular OHS trainings for staff to enhance their
knowledge on health, safety and environmental management. More
than 1,000 hours of safety training were conducted by the Group in
2015.

PFM team organized trainings, workshops and programmes for
operation and management staff to raise their safety awareness
at sites, such as while working at height, being involved in manual
handling, etc.

Interiors and Special Projects (‘ISP”) team cooperated with external
experts to run in-house safety workshops covering issues of
particular relevance to our site operations. The topics of these
workshops include crane and rigging safety, and temporary works
safety. Frontline supervisors as well as many young engineers who
are pillars of our future society all attended those workshops with
enthusiasm.

ISP team also provided extensive support to staff and sub-
contractors in their daily duties and fulfillment of responsibilities.
Safety culture workshops and safety leadership workshops were
carried out at sites and head office respectively. To ensure safe
practices of our staff members, a safety practice handbook has been
widely distributed. It outlines safety rules and regulations for different
trades and provides guidelines on various safety aspects. The
handbook successfully raises the staff's awareness on safety issues.
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PFM team actively promotes safety culture, and is strongly
committed to key improvements in safety and health. Our
safety strategy focuses on priorities such as reducing significant
occupational exposure to workplace hazards and maintaining
regulatory compliance. We continue to implement and review the
initiatives to actively promote safety culture amongst all levels of
management operations, such as enhancing our safety management
system, issuance of safety newsletters to stakeholders and providing
staff with guidelines on various safety aspects.

PFM team has implemented effective safety measures in the portfolio
that they managed and such efforts have been duly recognised. Nine
of our managed properties have been accredited in the Hong Kong
Safe and Healthy Estate Accreditation Scheme which is organised by
the Occupational Safety and Health Council.

Three of our managed properties were awarded in the Best Property
Safety Management Award 2014/2015 as follows:

Awards

#®15 ESE

Name of properties

MELRREEREEFEREEL 2 EARFHHE IR
TEURERELERER BRMANKEREEXRDHRE
HTESMBEZBRRRRLETEELDER -]
MFEET IR BAER AMSRERESIFIE
BEBLZE2XE - IR 2 ERGE - MFHEERL
2B REIHEIEARME TRESEES -

MERREEEBRKCHEEMEENEBEBERERZ
R MABERCESED R - RAMEENE
FNEVMECEBREXLZE2RERTI N BB REEIE

2 277 2%
RETEIRE -

BMFEIE N = ANEEERERTRYETIA
#2014/20152 ZIEI T -

Award companies

EREQF

Best Safety Enhancement Program for Working
at Height — Gold Award
BREREILFEL2HETE 2%

Best Property Contractor in Occupational Safety and
Health — Silver Award
REBZRMEBTEADE —RE

ORRE TR

Best Property Management Award in Occupational Safety
and Health — Bronze Award

REBRTRMEEREANE PR

EEW

Cathay Pacific Cargo Terminal
B SR 2 BBk

Shek Kip Mei Estate

Fu Shin Estate

Synergis Management
Services Limited

MEEERBEARDA

Master Clean Service Limited
RRRBER AT

Synergis Management
Services Limited
MEBEREERAA

Safety and health has always been the Group’s top priority. The
Company pledges to continue our emphasis on safety and health
issues, and improve its already impressive safety and health record
proactively.
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Caring for the Environment BERIR

We consider environmental protection is essential to long-term IR ARBREHAEB REXREEAETE - RR
development of the Group. The Group has an Environmental Policy — B8 52 51|87 - ANEE 8 7]
stating clearly that we are committed to:

e The promotion of environmental awareness among our staff, e MEEES T XBBH RS EERERRE M
business partners and the community

. Continuously improving environmental performance . FENERRERR
. Regulatory compliance . BFEEE R

The Green Operations Committee ensures that environmentally- 4@ HZE B SRS HIIRMENRLCEEEBKZ ¥
sound practices are followed by all departments and business & EEMNBTIRRIEE - ZEZEShme M ECEESE
operation units of PFM team. The committee is led by senior WA EHEZESRE -MELEEEEEK 2 T2
managers and reports to the Quality Steering Committee. PFM team & i& R 7 B JEISO14001 3R R E R B R RE

has been accredited the 1ISO14001 certification for environmental

management systems in key business operations.

Energy Management REREE

For PFM team, we acknowledge that we play a crucial role in  FLEFIMYEREBEEEBERM S RMVRMNA G ENR
improving energy efficiency across our managed properties. Our EMEVELEBRUFHTE N EZLCEENAE - H M
Technical Task Force was assigned to conduct energy management 3R 1iT T e/ NMEEIRRETRRE BTG AATEED
assessment to identify suitable energy management opportunites E¥EABENEREIEMKE o F B RE R HFIGE
for the properties managed. Through the energy management fEREREE TN TRBENMEZEFREHERENSHE
assessment, we provide suggestions and improvement proposals — fH E1TAIEERT & - 20155 - H PN B FEHRIUT 7
under different categories of Energy Management Opportunities to == Z &1 g6 2 Z 48 7 -

our clients for their implementation of the energy saving plan. In the

year 2015, the following substantial improvement works for energy

saving initiatives have been adopted by our clients:

. Replacement of four sets of chiller at Black Point Power Station e EHESERERNNERERENE2TTITR
with total cooling capacity of 2,771kW to achieve an energy R)2 R BB FA1RE6S0,668T FLAF
saving of 680,668kWh per annum

. Replacement of eight sets of passenger lift at Harrison Court to EHEFENNERTEARKE BERTFEHE
achieve an energy saving of 10,000kWh per annum 10,000F FL B

20154 % HagEEEERAT DD
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tEHEEIRS
Reducing Waste W EEY

The largest source of waste in Hong Kong comes from residential BHEEYHNETERREEEDE - RNITEEEMEEDN
properties. At Synergis managed residential and commercial {EEREEMES  RIUREEL BB - B LIFTEH
properties, we provide recycling bins for paper, plastic, cans and  BIUURE + LANNSREE ¥R S8 25 48 o T P9 IR ELIE BT & ot
glasses to promote source separation of waste. We also co- NEBIRMANVELXESERUEE - HMABERAE
organised with the Non-governmental Organisations and encouraged 32 &) 4 % M 1T IR (R ¥E 1

our sites to participate in different kinds of recycling activities. We

actively promote the environmental protection measures in our

properties.

In 2014/2015, more than 80 properties have participated in the  7A2014/2015%F - fBIBESOEY XD L HIRBRES BN
Source Separation of Domestic Waste Competition organised by the ~ R/EREYRE DB B R EENT
Environmental Protection Department and have been awarded as

follows:

Awards Name of properties

#2I18 NEER

Award for Lowest Waste Disposal Quantity Ka Shing Court

REBYEES KR AT
Hollywood Terrace
AERERE

Award for Enhancement Po Ming Court

EH R HEAGE

Diamond Award Po Ming Court

i Paf LR

Silver Award Evelyn Towers

RR ERA
Hollywood Terrace
RERERE
Rise Park Villas
By ERIE

Bronze Award Ka Shing Court

7 88 AT

Caring for the People BIEET

It is the goal of the Group to be the best employer within the industry ANEEZ BiZARAEARNSZERET AAEEZEER
providing a secured, challenging and rewarding work environment for %215 - EPk8; X B3R 2 TEIRIE - 120154  AEER
employees of the Group. In 2015, the Group employs a total of 4,963 &E MBI EA S H£4,9632 E T (BMH 125078 & &
staff in Hong Kong and Macau (Male: 2,597 and Female: 2,366). We £ :2,366% ) - B M2 A8 TEEFEEK I Z2Z 0 F
believe that people are central to the success of our business. We {IERE THERKGEBZIERLILILETIKEAEZE
emphasize staff development and lifelong learning, and value the — JJ°

strength of a diverse workforce.
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Employment Strategies and Initiatives

Human Resources Effectiveness Committee comprising senior
management (Co-Managing Director, Human Resources Manager
and various senior managers), focus on developing strategies and
action plans for attracting talents and building employee satisfaction
and loyalty.

In 2015, major human resources strategies and initiatives are:

° Staff Engagement: Encourage two-way communication
through site visits and mestings to collect frontline’s comment
on staff engagement policy

° Explore different recruitment channels for strengthening talent
acquisition effectiveness

° Continue to reinforce competence-based management model
to recruit, develop and retain talents

° Review and invest in new learning & development initiatives for
staff competence enhancement

The Group conducts salary review annually by benchmarking
salary level of the industry and the pay trend survey conducted by
professional organisations. The pay trend and market data helps the
Group offer competitive remuneration and benefits to attract talents.
The Group has different channels and means to obtain employees’
feedback and to understand their career and development needs in
the Group.

1. Exit Interview/Survey on Resignation: Staff are invited to attend
exit interviews or participate in surveys when they decide to
resign. The findings are consolidated for management’s review
and actions against areas of concern.

2. Performance Review: A two-way communication approach
is adopted for performance review management. The Group
has developed a very comprehensive appraisal system for
assessing staff competence and training needs for better
succession planning of the Group. Since 2013, e-Appraisal
has been launched for all staff of officer grade or above. By
adopting e-Appraisal, the Company can make better use the
performance data to identify competency gaps for different job
families and plan for improvement initiatives.

All the findings are reported to the Human Resources Effectiveness
Committee to enable more targeted review of strategies and policies
on staff development, retention, attraction and succession planning.
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Training and Development

The Group also makes dedicated effort to provide various
development opportunities for staff at all levels. These include internal
training, cases sharing, seminars and external training sponsorships.

Since 2011, the Group has actively supported qualified staff to attain
the Recognition of Prior Learning under Qualification Framework. Up
to December 2015, our PFM team has facilitated over 1,400 frontline
staff members to successfully obtain the award of Level 1 to 3,
and 20 frontline staff members to obtain Level 4 in Management of
Security Operation Works.

The Group believes staff quality is one of the most important
factors in sustaining its leadership position in the market. We
invest continually in developing our staff performing their roles
well and preparing them for future challenges and opportunities.
To enhance quality and competence of human capital, the Group
encourages our staff to be committed to continuous learning and
personal development. PFM team has developed a comprehensive
learning curriculum to provide various technical and management
training modules to equip our staff with professional know-how and
management competences, which enables them to perform well in
current jobs and to prepare them for career advancement.

For achieving better results in lifting competence level of our staff,
we have a comprehensive training system to deliver different core
trainings to different position levels. All staff members are able to
obtain the required knowledge and competence to perform their
respective job well through the core training arrangement.

We strive to cultivate a learning culture throughout the Group with
its commitment to continuous learning. The Group wishes everyone
can be actively involved in all learning and development initiatives to
facilitate their career development and the growth of the Group.

Work-life Balance

The Group aims to promote a positive and work-life balance
among our staff to build a joyful workplace. Numerous events and
recreational activities were organised during the year including annual
dinner, autumn excursion, Vision Day, latte making class, crystal ball
making class, bonsai DIY workshop, etc.
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Caring for the Community

As a socially responsible company, the Group demonstrated
our commitment in CSR initiatives by making strategic use of
our resources and network to contribute to society. Under this
dimension, we have set three major strategies and actions, namely
(i) actively participating in charity activities, (i) supporting charity
organisations through regular donations and (i) encouraging and
educating our customers to join various charity activities regularly for
helping the needy. We have achieved encouraging results in actively
promoting and participating in the activities and events relating to the
three strategies.

Major achievements in 2015 are:
° Over 150 rice bags were delivered to the underprivileged
through taking part in a series of voluntary rice distribution

initiatives set up by the Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups

° Organised an annual corporate blood donation day and helped
relieving the pressure of the blood bank

o Sponsored “Heart to Heart Company” programme under The
Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups for 10 consecutive
years

° Supported Heifer International — Hong Kong’s annual

fundraising event “Heifer Race to Feed 2015”

° Successfully encouraged a couple dozen of properties enrolled
in the festive gift transfer campaign and collected edible
surplus festive food for the People’s Food Bank of St. James
Settlement

o Received the 10 Years Plus Caring Company Logo from the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
ESEEHRE

The Board have pleasure in submitting to the shareholders their
report and the consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are the provision
of property management and facility management services, ISP
business and ancillary business in Hong Kong, Chinese Mainland and
Macau. Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are
set out in notes 33 to the financial statements.

Segment Information

Details of segment information are set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

Business Review

Details of the business review information are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 13 to 23
of this annual report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

We consider environmental protection is essential to the long-
term development of the Group and will constantly improve
a management practices so as to minimize waste, maximize
efficiencies and reduce our negative environmental impact on the
environment.

For details, please refer to the section headed “Corporate Social
Responsibility Report” on pages 52 to 59 of this annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with such requirements.
The Group has been allocating system and staff resources to ensure
ongoing compliance with rules and regulations.

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the Chinese Mainland while the
Company itself was incorporated in Bermuda and listed on the
Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. Our establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, Bermuda and the Chinese Mainland.

To ensure compliance with the new Competition Ordinance, the
Group has conducted trainings for our staff. We also step up
measures to increase safety awareness amongst our management
and staff to prevent accidents in contravention with safety
regulations.
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Risks and Uncertainties

Various risks that the Company may face have been disclosed in
the Corporate Governance Report and the Notes to the Financial
Statements of this Report.

Relationships with Employees, Customers
and Suppliers

The Group ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated and we
regularly review and improve our policies on remuneration and
benefits, training, occupational health and safety.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. A
customer complaint handling mechanism is in place to receive,
analyse and study complaints and make recommendations on
remedies with the aim of improving service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a
fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 88; the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 89 and
the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company at 31 December
2015 are set out in the consolidated balance sheet on page 90.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of 2.5 HK cents per share (2014: 4.0 HK cents per share)
for the year ended 31 December 2015. Subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming 2016 annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”), the proposed final dividend will be paid on
or around Wednesday, 8 June 2016 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Monday, 30
May 2016 (Hong Kong time).

Together with the interim dividend of 2.5 HK cents per share (2014:
3.0 HK cents per share) already paid, total dividends for the year will
amount to 5.0 HK cents per share (2014: 7.0 HK cents per share),
representing a payout ratio of 39% (2014: 64%) on the earnings for
the financial year.

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Thursday, 26 May 2016 to Monday, 30 May
2016, both days inclusive (Hong Kong Time), during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend (subject to members’ approval at the AGM),
all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 25 May 2016 (Hong Kong Time).
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Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 91 and in note 23 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the operating results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last four financial years and for the year ended
31 December 2015 is set out on page 145. This summary does not
form part of the financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment, and
Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in note
14 and note 15 to the financial statements respectively.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2015,
calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted to HK$89,088,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$92,316,000).

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws although there is no restriction against such rights under
the laws of Bermuda.
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Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Ir. Joseph Choi Kin Hung (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 11 December 2015)
Ms. Brenda Yau Shuk Mee (Co-Managing Director)”
(appointed with effect from 10 April 2015)
Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong (Co-Managing Director)”
(appointed with effect from 10 April 2015)
Mr. Lui Chun Pong
(appointed with effect from 11 December 2015)
Dr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai*
(resigned with effect from 11 December 2015)
Dr. Fan Cheuk Hung*
(resigned with effect from 1 September 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan
Mr. Kan Fook Yee

Mr. Wong Tsan Kwong
Mr. David Yu Hon To

The profiles of Directors who are in office as at the date of this report
are set out on pages 24 to 30 of this annual report.

In accordance with Bye-laws 86(2), Ir. Joseph Choi Kin Hung and Mr.
Liu Chun Pong shall hold offices up to the AGM and in accordance
with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2), Mr. Kan Fook Yee and Mr. Wong Tsan
Kwong shall retire by rotation at the AGM, but all of them, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the AGM. Save for
the aforesaid, the other remaining Directors would continue in office.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers that all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent in accordance
with the terms of the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

o This title has been changed to Managing Director with effect
from 5 April 2016.

# Dr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai and Dr. Fan Cheuk Hung resigned
as a Director in the financial year ended 31 December 2015.
They have confirmed that they have no disagreement with
the Board and there is nothing relating to the affairs of the
Company that needed to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company or the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEgRE

B=E
REE2015F12A31B IEFE A RE EARRE B HIE
EHWNT:

HITES
BRI TIRE ()
(B2015F12A11 B REZT)
WRBRL (B EEFREE)
(8201554 4108 BEZEF)
BIKEFRE (B fFE FABATHE)
(B201554 4108 BEZE)
BRI E
(B2015F12A11 B RERT)
THEEHL
(82015512811 B #EBHE)
B g
(B2015F9R1 B EET)

BUFHTES
£ b A
FTE A4
B
AR A

RAFEBHAEBZEEZEAN R A FRF24E30
Ho

TR HE 4RI 5£586(2) 16 - £ e T 12D & B 3R 75 5% 4 FE T 5
EERFAFARS  MIBEMBIZEST(1)R87()&  f1E44 T
ERERENEEBERARREREFAS LHESR HHESE
HRFEERTEENBRRBAFTARS FEREM -FRaTa
HFIHibsp T o EEHEEERT-

ARFREERBRESMUBEIFNTESHEBIMERE L
MRAESABGEIEH 2 FEERSE AR BB BULIE
WAITESRE ERRIESASGME 2 BB S 1EHH
RBINL

= BT E2016F4 A HEE B AT AL

# THEHE L RMSHELREZE2015F12A31H
Y BRFEBTEE FEEARSHESTS T E
D MEHMEBAARARNEE 2 EEEHEARD
AR R Sk Bt K AT T

20154 % HegEEEERAT 63




DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEERE

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at AGM
have entered into a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

There were no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company’s subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director and the Director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Emoluments

Details of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

Pursuant to the Bye-law 168 of the Bye-laws, every Director or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his
office or otherwise in relation thereto, and no Director or other officer
shall be liable for any loss, damages or misfortune which may happen
to or be incurred by the Company in the execution of the duties of
his/her office or in relation thereto, provided that this Bye-law shall
only have effect in so far as its provisions are not avoided by the
Bermuda Companies Act. The Company has maintained Directors
and officers liability insurance during the year.

Bank Loans and other Borrowings

Analysis of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2015 is set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company and
its Associated Corporations

At 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO, or otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of Number of interest in the

ordinary underlying issued share

Name of Directors Capacity shares held shares held Total capital

EE BT

BREZEER BEZ R 2 B4

EEnR 5% iy 4= HERGEE et ERZEDL

(Note (i) (Note (ii))

(BTFE()) (BT =% i) )

Brenda Yau Shuk Mee Beneficial owner - 540,000 540,000 0.16%
B ExnEAA

Terence Leung Siu Cheong Beneficial owner - 900,000 900,000 0.26%
ZIE ExnBEAA

Stephen Ip Shu Kwan Beneficial owner - 400,000 400,000 0.12%
E953p: EREAA

Kan Fook Yee Benechial owner - 300,000 300,000 0.09%
R en ERERA

Wong Tsan Kwong Benechial owner - 100,000 100,000 0.03%
HEK ExnEAA

David Yu Hon To Beneficial owner - 100,000 100,000 0.03%

AR

BEsBEAA
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EERHE
Notes: B 5t
() The interest in the underlying shares represented share options (i) R RN 2 BB IR AN A 717200399 A 19 H £ 4%
granted pursuant to the old share option scheme adopted by the 2 EEREEE (A —BR2013F6A17TEEAR R A
Company on 19 September 2003 (terminated by the ordinary RREBFARE LERBZEBARRKIL) RARTA
resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the Company R2013F6 A17TB M 2 FIERETEI TR T 2 B
on 17 June 2013) and a new share option scheme adopted by the o FTIR T2 BIREF BT
Company on 17 June 2013. Details of share option granted are set
out below:
Number of share
options held
as at
31 December Exercise price
Name of Directors 2015 per share Exercisable period
(HKS) (dd/mm/yyyy)
A2015%5F
12A31H
EERE s RES B BRITEE 17658
(B¥T) (B/R/%F)
Brenda Yau Shuk Yee 540,000¢ 0.952 27/05/2016 — 27/05/2019
HERUE
Terence Leung Siu Cheong 900,000® 0.952 27/05/2016 — 27/05/2019
2IKE
Stephen Ip Shu Kwan 300,000 0.952 27/05/2014 — 27/05/2017
=g 100,000 0.850 16/10/2013 — 15/10/2018
Kan Fook Yee 300,000 0.952 27/05/2014 — 27/05/2017
=8
Wong Tsan Kwong 100,000 0.952 27/05/2016 — 27/05/2017
David Yu Hon To 100,000 0.952 27/05/2016 — 27/05/2017
BEE
@ Share options to be vested in equal portions on 27 May e B % 12 45 5 B FA20164E ~ 20174F 201845 A
2016, 2017 and 2018 respectively, and become exercisable 27HEREZEHHEBE YENZEHEER
for a period from the respective dates and ending on 27 201958278 I BARS Al 171 -
May 2019.
& Share options were or to be vested in equal portions on I B2 R B B R 8B 20144 « 20154 122016
27 May 2014, 2015 and 2016 respectively, and became or FEATHRAEHHEE WENIHRER
become exercisable for a period from the respective dates HHI# E2017F5 8278 1 BRI A F77(F -

and ending on 27 May 2017.

(ii) There were 347,676,000 ordinary shares of the Company in issue RNATIR2015F12A31 A 2 B BT L @EIRIEHD A
at 31 December 2015. 347,676,0008% °
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Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying RAEATEBELIEROREBEARD ZHFE
Shares in Associated Corporations of the
Company

At 31 December 2015, Ir. Joseph Choi Kin Hung, Mr. Terence Leung 20156123310 - & @k TR - 2KELE R A
Siu Cheong and Mr. Lui Chun Pong have the following interests in R FH 5o £ R TS £ B ZE AR A R 2 7 (AT #Hsin Chong
Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Hsin Chong  Construction Group Ltd. 1S &= E£EBER A F*) ([#

Construction Group Ltd.) (‘Hsin Chong’): ENHPHEETIIER:
Number of Approximate
Number of underlying percentage of
Name of Directors Capacity shares held shares held Total shareholding
BEZ AR
= 20 RFEZROHE HERGEE HEt Bk
(Note (i) (Note (ii))
(B EEq) (B3 (i) )
Joseph Choi Kin Hung Beneficial owner - 1,334,000 1,334,000 0.03%
B ERBEA
Terence Leung Siu Cheong Beneficial owner - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.02%
RIE ERBEEA
Lui Chun Pong Beneﬂ\cial owner - 750,000 750,000 0.01%
A iR ExRERA
Notes: Bt o
0] As at 31 December 2015, the interest in the underlying shares of (i) MR2015F12A31H R EHEBERH 2B RIE
Hsin Chong represented share options granted pursuant to the #TEF200845 A 22 H R4 v RARHEET &I I 2 R
share option scheme adopted by Hsin Chong on 22 May 2008. EPIFRREZFFET

Details of share options held are as follow:

Number of shares Exercise price
Name of Directors options held per share Exercisable period
HK$) (dd/mm/yyyy)
EEHE s BREHE BRITEE 1TEH
(AB¥T) (B/R/%)
Joseph Choi Kin Hung 1,334,000* 1.02 04/12/2010 — 03/12/2019
E2giEN
Terence Leung Siu Cheong 1,000,000# 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
2 E
LLui Chun Pong 750,000" 1.29 30/09/2012 — 31/08/2021
= IR B
* Share options were vested in three portions on 4 December * A FE D BIFAR20104F ~ 20114 201212 A4
2010, 2011 and 2012 respectively, and became exercisable HIZ3E PR WNE& B HE# E2019F12 A4
for a period from the respective dates and ending on 3 SH LA A F1T{E -

December 2019.

*

for identification purposes only 1£ 2 5/
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# Share options were vested in three portions on 1 January
2009, 2010 and 2011 respectively, and became exercisable
for a period from the respective dates and ending on 22
May 2018.

Share options were vested in three portions on 30
September 2012, 2013 and 2014 respectively, and became
exercisable for a period from the respective dates and
ending on 31 August 2021.

(ii) There were 5,188,576,651 ordinary shares of Hsin Chong in issue
as at 31 December 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company or their associates had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO
or otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Share Option Schemes

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 17 June
2013, the shareholders approved the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “New Option Scheme”) and the termination of the share
option scheme, which was adopted on 19 September 2003 (the
“Old Option Scheme”). Share options granted under the Old Option
Scheme remain effective. Details of the Old Option Scheme and the
New Option Scheme as required to be disclosed under Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules are set out below:

(1) Summary of the Old Option Scheme
(a) Purpose of the Old Option Scheme

The Old Option Scheme was set up for the purpose of
recognising and motivating the contribution of the Eligible
Persons (as defined below) to the Company and/or any
of its subsidiaries and/or any Invested Entity (as defined
below).

(b) Participants of the Old Option Scheme

Eligible persons entitled to participate in the Old Option
Scheme (the “Eligible Persons”) include:

(i) any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of
the Company, any of its subsidiaries, or any entity
in which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
holds an equity interest (the “Invested Entity”);
including any executive director of the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity and
any employee employed or to be employed by the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity, whether in Hong Kong or in The People’s
Republic of Ching;
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(i)

)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

any non-executive director (including any
independent non-executive director) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

any shareholder of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity or any holder
of any securities issued by the Company, any of
its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity who had,
in the opinion of the Board, made contribution to
the business growth of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

any supplier of goods and/or services to the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

any business collaborator, business consultant,
joint venture or business partner, technical,
financial, legal and other professional advisers
engaged by the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity;

any associate (as defined under the Listing Rules)
of the directors or the substantial shareholders
of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity who had, in the opinion of the
Board, made contribution to the business growth
of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity; or

the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the
Board, the beneficiary (or in case of discretionary
trust, the discretionary objects) of which included
any of the above-mentioned persons,

and, for the purposes of the Old Option Scheme, the
options might be granted to any company wholly-owned
by one or more of the above Eligible Persons.

(i)

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)
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(d)

Maximum number of shares available
for issue under the Old Option Scheme

As at 283 March 2016, the total number of shares
available for issue was 1,394,000 shares, representing
0.40% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible
Person under the Old Option Scheme

No option might be granted to any one Eligible Person
in any 12-month period which, if exercised in full, would
result in the total number of Shares already issued to
such Eligible Person under all the options previously
granted to him/her which had been exercised and,
issuable to him/her under all the options previously
granted to him/her which were for the time being
subsisting and unexercised, exceeding 1% of the share
capital of the Company in issue on the last date of
such 12-month period unless being approved by the
shareholders of the Company in a general meeting.

Where any proposed grant of option to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules), would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) and to be granted to such person in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of the
proposed grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the total
number of Shares in issue for the time being; and

(i)  the aggregate value of which, based on the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
the proposed grant, was in excess of HK$5.0
million,

such proposed grant of option shall be subject to the
prior approval of the shareholders of the Company at a
general meeting in which all connected persons for the
time being of the Company (if any) (except where any
connected person intends to vote against the proposed
grant of option and his/her intention to do so has been
stated in the circular) should abstain from voting at such
general meeting and at which any vote taken should be
taken on a poll.
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(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Period for and payment on acceptance
of an option

An offer for grant of an option must be accepted by
an Eligible Person (and by no other person except the
Eligible Person) in respect of all the Shares for which
the offer is made. Acceptance should be made by such
Eligible Person by signing and returning the duplicate
of the offer letter together with the payment of a
consideration of HK$1.00 for such grant to the Company
within the time period specified in the offer letter.

The basis of determining the
subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any option granted
under the Old Option Scheme should be a price
determined by the Board and notified to each grantee
and should not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal
value of a Share; (i) the average of the closing prices
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date on which an offer for grant of an
option (the “Old Offer Date”) was made to an Eligible
Person; and (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the Old
Offer Date which must be a business day, provided that
the subscription price shall be rounded upwards to the
nearest whole cent.

Minimum period for holding an option
before exercise

There was no minimum holding period for which an
option must be held before exercise pursuant to the Old
Option Scheme. The commencement date of an option
period should be specified by the Board in the relevant
offer letter.

Remaining life
The Old Option Scheme was terminated pursuant to

resolutions passed by the shareholders on 17 June
2018.

(e)

()

(9)

(h)
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(2) Summary of the New Option Scheme

(@) Purpose of the New Option Scheme

The New Option Scheme is set up for the purpose of
recognising and motivating the contribution of the Eligible
Persons (as defined below) to the Company and/or any
of its subsidiaries and/or any Invested Entity (as defined
below).

(b) Participants of the New Option Scheme

Eligible persons entitled to participate in the New Option
Scheme (the “Eligible Persons”) include:

(i

(i)

(i)

(vi)

any employee (whether full time or part time) of
the Company, any of its subsidiaries, or any entity
in which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
holds an equity interest (the “Invested Entity”);
including any executive director of the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity and
any employee employed or to be employed by the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity, whether in Hong Kong or in The People’s
Republic of China;

any non-executive director (including any
independent non-executive director) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

any shareholder of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity or any holder
of any securities issued by the Company, any of
its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity who has,
in the opinion of the Board, made contribution to
the business growth of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

any supplier of goods and/or services to the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

any business collaborator, business consultant,
joint venture or business partner, technical,
financial, legal and other professional advisers
engaged by the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity;
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(@

(d)

(vi) any associate (as defined under the Listing Rules)
of the directors or the substantial shareholders
of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity who has, in the opinion of the
Board, made contribution to the business growth
of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity; or

(viii)  the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the
Board, the beneficiary (or in case of discretionary
trust, the discretionary objects) of which includes
any of the above-mentioned persons,

and, for the purposes of the New Option Scheme, the
options may be granted to any company wholly owned
by one or more of the above Eligible Persons.

Maximum number of shares available
for issue under the New Option Scheme

As at 23 March 2016, the total number of shares
available for issue was 100,000 shares, representing
0.03% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible
Person under the New Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any one Eligible Person in
any 12-month period which, if exercised in full, would
result in the total number of Shares already issued to
such Eligible Person under all the options previously
granted to him/her which have been exercised and,
issuable to him/her under all the options previously
granted to him/her which are for the time being
subsisting and unexercised, exceeding 1% of the share
capital of the Company in issue on the last date of
such 12-month period unless being approved by the
shareholders of the Company in a general meeting.

Where any proposed grant of option to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules), would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) and to be granted to such person in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of the
proposed grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the total
number of Shares in issue for the time being; and

(i) the aggregate value of which, based on the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
the proposed grant, is in excess of HK$5.0 million,

(@
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(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

such proposed grant of option shall be subject to the
prior approval of the shareholders of the Company at a
general meeting in which all connected persons for the
time being of the Company (if any) (except where any
connected person intends to vote against the proposed
grant of option and his/her intention to do so has been
stated in the circular) shall abstain from voting at such
general meeting and at which any vote taken shall be
taken on a poll.

Period for and payment on acceptance
of an option

An offer for grant of an option must be accepted by an
Eligible Person (and by no other person) in respect of
all the Shares for which the offer is made. Acceptance
shall be made by such Eligible Person by signing and
returning the duplicate of the offer letter together with the
payment of a consideration of HK$1.00 for such grant to
the Company within the time period specified in the offer
letter.

The basis of determining the
subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any option granted
under the New Option Scheme shall be a price
determined by the Board and notified to each grantee
and shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal
value of a Share; (i) the average of the closing prices
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date on which an offer for grant of an
option (the “New Offer Date”) is made to an Eligible
Person; and (jii) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
New Offer Date which must be a business day, provided
that the subscription price shall be rounded upwards to
the nearest whole cent.

Minimum period for holding an option
before exercise

There is no minimum holding period for which an
option must be held before exercise pursuant to the
New Option Scheme. The commencement date of the
period during which an option may be exercised shall be
specified by the Board in the relevant offer letter.

Remaining life
The New Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of ten years commencing on 17 June 2013,
the date of adoption of the New Option Scheme, unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with the rules of the
New Option Scheme.
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(3) Movements in Options (3)

Details of movements in the share options under the Old
Option Scheme and the New Option Scheme, and the share
options outstanding at the beginning and the year ended 31
December 2015 are set out as follows:

Weighted
average price
of closing
Number of Number of Closing price price per
share share per share share
options Changes during the year options immediately  immediately
held as at EREE held as at Exercise before date of  before date of
1 January 31 December price Exercisable grant of exercise of
Name of grantees Date of grant 2015 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 2015 per share period  share options  share options
12015 34
20155 £12A318 RERRE  fRBAN
181R%EZ b2y RILBAN BRME
RRARA REAH BREHE i ik b3 i BRE®R  SRORE %8  SRUTE  THUHE
(dd/mmyyyy) (HKS) (dd/mm/yyyy) (HKS) (HKS)
(R/B/%) (B%7) (R/B/%) (B¥%7) (B%7)
Directors
g2
Brenda Yau Shuk Mee’ 27/05/2013 720,000° - (180,000) - - 540,000 0952 27/06/2015 - 27/05/2019 094 3.3
HFAE
Terence Leung Su Cheong®  27/05/2013 1,200,000° - (300,000) - - 900,000 0952 27/05/2015 - 27/05/2019 094 362
2KE?
Stephen Ip Shu Kwan 27/05/2013 300,000° - - - - 300,000 0952 27/06/2014 - 27/05/2017 094 -
£ 161072013 600,000 - (500,000) - - 100,000 0850 16/10/2013- 15102018 085 212
Kan Fook Yee 27/05/2013 300,000° - - - - 300,000 0952 27/05/2014 - 27/05/2017 094 -
gt 161072013 600,000 - (600,000) - - - 0850 16/10/2013- 151012018 085 280
Wong Tsan Kwong 27/05/2013 300,000° - (200,000) - - 100,000 0952 27/06/2014 - 27/05/2017 094 301
o 161012013 600,000 - (600,000) - - - 0850 16/10/2013- 151012018 085 300
David Yu Hon To 27/05/2013 300,000° - (200,000) - - 100,000 0952 27/05/2014 - 27/05/2017 094 339
MER 161072013 600,000 - (600,000) - - - 0850 16/10/2013- 151012018 085 294
Ex-directors
HES
Wifred Wong Ying Wai®  25/09/2009 2,000,000 - 2,000,000) - - - 0820 25/09/2010- 24/09/2015 081 331
THfo 27/05/2013 1,200,000* - (480,000) (720,000) - - 0952 27/05/2014 - 27/05/2019 094 3
Fan Cheuk Hung® 25/09/2009 1,500,000" - (1,500,000) - - - 0820 25/09/2010 - 24/09/2015 081 230
gaf 01/09/2011 1,500,000° - (1,500,000) - - - 0.760  01/09/2012 - 31/08/2015 073 230
Employees (n aggregate)  28/06/2010 150,000" - (150,000) - - - 099  25/09/2010- 24/09/2015 098 297
Ea(29) 07/06/2011 880,000 - (400,000) (120,000) - 360,000 0860 07/06/2012 - 06/06/2017 085 2.1
27/05/2013 9,750,000 - 2,516,000) (1,440,000) - 5,794,000 0952 27/06/2014 - 27/05/2019 094 294
22,500,000 - (11,726,000) (2,280,000) - 8,494,000
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Notes:

1 Share options were vested in equal portions on 25
September 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 respectively,
and became exercisable for a period from the respective
dates and ending on 24 September 2015.

2 Share options were or are to be vested in equal portions
on 7 June 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 respectively,
and became or become exercisable for a period from the
respective dates and ending on 6 June 2017.

3 Share options were vested in equal portions on 1
September 2012, 2013 and 2014 respectively, and became
exercisable for a period from the respective dates and
ending on 31 August 2015.

4 Share options were or are to be vested in equal portions
on 27 May 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 respectively,
and became or become exercisable for a period from the
respective dates and ending on 27 May 2019.

5 Share options were or are to be vested in equal portions
on 27 May 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 respectively, and
became or become exercisable for a period from the
respective dates and ending on 27 May 2019.

6 Share options were or are to be vested in equal portions on
27 May 2014, 2015 and 2016 respectively, and became or
become exercisable for a period from the respective dates
and ending on 27 May 2017.

7 Ms. Brenda Yau Shuk Mee has been appointed as an
Executive Director with effect from 10 April 2015.

8 Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong has been appointed as an
Executive Director with effect from 10 April 2015.

9 Dr. Fan Cheuk Hung resigned as an Executive Director and
Managing Director with effect from 1 September 2015.

10  Dr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai resigned as a Non-executive
Director and the Chairman with effect from 11 December
2015.

(4) Fair Value of Share Options Granted

The fair value of share options granted during the year ended
31 December 2015 is set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

During the year, the Company has the New Option Scheme pursuant
to which options may be granted, inter alia, to directors of the
Company. Details of such schemes and the movements in options
are set out in the paragraphs entitled “Share Option Schemes”
above. Further details of options granted and/or shares allotted or
transferred to the Directors are disclosed in the paragraph entitled
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in the
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and lts
Associated Corporations” and note 10 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Director’s Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors (excluding Independent Non-executive
Directors) were interested in any business apart from the Group’s
business which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2015.

Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or
Similar Rights

The Company issued 58,666,667 convertible preference shares and
21,333,333 bonus convertible preference shares on 30 November
2012 and 20 May 2013 respectively, as part of the consideration for
the acquisition of ISP business. The convertible preference shares
are convertible into the ordinary shares at HK$0.75 per share subject
to satisfaction of the minimum public float requirements under the
Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2015, none of the
convertible preference shares was converted nor redeemed.

Save as above and other than the share option schemes described
in the paragraph titled “Share Option Scheme” above and in note
10 to the financial statements, the Company had no outstanding
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights at 31
December 2015. There was no issue or exercise of any convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the year ended
31 December 2015.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Retirement Schemes

The Group participated in mandatory provident fund schemes in
Hong Kong which are defined contribution plan generally funded
through payments to trustee-administrated funds. Particulars of
the retirement schemes are set out in note 2.17(c) to the financial
statements.

FERRRAQB R RAABER D%
BZRERAR

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

At 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the
following substantial shareholders (other than persons who were
directors and chief executive of the Company) in the shares and

R2015F12 A31 8 IRIFFFH KIS KFI 533614 A 7
BAYEFEZELMALE THNEERE (ARARES
MITBEFBIN RARE KRG RABROPHES 2

(“Summit View”)

g SERAERAR (TEF])

EmfEAA

underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register @A B T ¢
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO, were as follows:
Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying REQATROREBEROGZHERE
Shares of the Company
(a) Ordinary Shares (a) ZEER
Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary shares interest in
of HK$0.10 the issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity each held share capital
BEBREE
7 %50.107T 2 HE#ITRA
RRAR 514 ZERBROBE ZBOEzmBESL
(Note (ii)
CH =% (i) )
Hsin Chong Interests of controlled 169,116,777 48.64%
corporations (Note (i)
Ei=| R EE RS (B3E®))
Smart Lane Holdings Limited (“Smart Lane”)  Beneficial owner 169,116,777 48.64%
EmlEAA
Wilfred Wong Ying Wai Interests of controlled 57,846,436 16.64%
corporation (Note (iii)
FHEE R LB S (BT & (i) )
Ma Kwing, Pony Interests of controlled 57,846,436 16.64%
corporation (Note (i)
55 4 REEE S (3 (i) )
Summit View Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 57,846,436 16.64%
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(b)

Notes:

(i) Smart Lane was wholly-owned by Hsin Chong. By virtue
of the SFO, Hsin Chong is deemed to be interested in the
same lot of 169,116,777 ordinary shares held by Smart
Lane.

(i There were 347,676,000 ordinary shares of the Company in
issue at 31 December 2015.

(i)~ The Company is owned by Summit View as to 57,846,436
ordinary shares. Summit View is owned as to 50% by Dr.
Wilfred Wong Ying Wai and 50% by Ms. Ma Kwing, Pony. As
such, Summit View is deemed to be a controlled corporation
of Dr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai and Ms. Ma Kwing, Pony
under the SFO.

Convertible Preference Shares

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Wi

0] Smart LaneFi¥TE2EHE - REZHLBHE
&1+ 37 E 345 A Smart Lanedd B 2R — it
169,116,777 L @R B s o

iy  ARABR2015512A31H 2 B 317 E @A HD
347,676,000 ©

@iy ESHERNRGFS7,846,4360L T BN - IE =
AMTREEEIREMNZLE B AS0%ER -
Ett - RIBEFESH R EE - B SR AT HRE
BN WMzt SiEAE-

(b) AEBRELER

Number of Approximate
convertible percentage of
preference shares interest in
of HK$0.10 the issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity each held share capital
BHEEBREE
7B #0.107T 2 HEBTRA
BRR & B 54 TERELRHE ZHIERBESL
(Note (i) (Note (ii)
(B&Eq)) CH 35 (i)
Hsin Chong Interests of controlled 80,000,000 100%
corporations
e REEE R
Smart Lane Beneficial owner 80,000,000 100%
EmEAA
Notes: P =E

(i) The Company issued and allotted 58,666,667 convertible
preference shares and 21,333,333 bonus convertible
preference shares to Smart Lane on 30 November 2012 and
20 May 2013 respectively. By virtue of the SFO, Hsin Chong
is deemed to be interested in the same lot of 80,000,000
convertible preference shares held by Smart Lane.

(i) There were 80,000,000 convertible preference shares of the
Company in issue at 31 December 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the
Company had not been notified of any other persons (other
than persons who were directors and chief executive of
the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

[0} 72012411 A308 K%2013455208 * &K RA 75 7
M Smart Lane® 17 & fid 358,666,667 1% A & 14 (2 /&
% }%21,333,3338X 4T FI| A] 8 B S i - B IR B H &
HAE &0 - 1 S W8 A Smart Lanei® A 2 [ — it
80,000,000f% Al BE B LR P B % o

iy  ANABFR20155F12831 8 2 B 317 A R E AR ()
/580,000,0004% °

B ESCRTIRE &SN PA2015512 A31H » AN A A &
FBEMEMAL (KRREE RITHRAERIN RARE
& AR D P E SRR ML SR IRIEE S &
HEEDIE3B6IEARRIABTFHFE 2B LA

2015 H HEEEEEAERLA
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Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company and/or
its subsidiaries had entered into (or continued to be party to) the
following continuing connected transactions which are subject to
annual review and reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules:

(@) Tenancy Agreement, Sub-lease Agreement
and Carpark Agreements

Synergis Management Services Limited (“SMS”) or Hsin Chong
Interiors (Hong Kong) Limited, wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company, entered into tenancy agreement, sub-lease
agreement or carpark agreement with Hsin Chong or its
subsidiary, details of the transactions were disclosed in the
announcements of 7 January 2014 and 27 February 2015. The
annual caps, annual considerations and other details for the
year ended 31 December 2015 were as follows:

BRTEHFRFERMER

BEERG])HFEE

REZE2015F12A31B IEEER KRR & HEKB
RNAEIEEIM NHEET ERBIE1AAZE 2 FEEZ L E
5 (RBEBRZERFHIZREH)

(a) HEWHR 2HEBBEREFESHS

ARBEENBRARFEETERBAERARA ([F
NEER (BE) BRAEH
FEREMBAR Y EE WS »ERHENEE
L ZERS2HFBHEN B EA201451 A
7H N2015F2827H 2 A% - H £2015F12 A31
AEFEZFE LR FEREREMFBEIHERN
&

Annual  Nature and extent of
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars Annual cap consideration  the connected person’s interest
BEAL ELEE R # EELR FERE BEALREMEREE
(HKS) (HKS)
(%%7) (%)
Hsin Chong as lessor Renewal Sub-Lease Agreement 2 years from 1 January 2015 Lease of portion of 7/F of Hsin 1,000,000 935,878 Hsin Chong is a substantial shareholder
dated 27 February 2015 to 31 December 2016 Chong Center and controlling shareholder of the
Company and hence, a connected
person under the Listing Rules.
ME (ERLAEA) EEAHAN5F2A07A2  BOIF1A1AZ0165  BRMERLTEZHH HERRDRZEERER
NG 12A318 - BEME BRBR BhALTRATZ
BEAL
Cogent Spring Limited Tenancy Agreement 2 years from 1 January 2014  Lease of portion of 3/F, 5/F, 4,000,000 3,971,621 Cogent Spring is a wholly owned
(‘Cogent Spring’) as lessor dated 7 January 2014 to 31 December 2015 8/F and 10/F of Hsin Chong subsidlary of Hsin Chong who
Center is a substantial shareholder and
Cogent Spring Limited ( [Cogent B A014F1A7HZ B014FIA1BEN15E  BAHNERLIE 58 controling shareholder of the
Spring)) (fEBLEA) LT 128310 BERE BERI0ERTH Company. Hence, Cogent Spring
s a connected person under the
Cogent Spring as lessor New Carpark Agreement 2 years from 1 January 2015 Lease of car parking spaces of 230,000 196,604 Listing Rules.
dated 27 February 2015 to 31 December 2016 Hsin Chong Center Cogent Spring&31 2 2 2 B
Cogent Spring (fEA L) B A201552/218 2 E015F1A18 20168 AAHERLAEN & MAEARRRZEERRR
HRESHE 12R310  BERE ERIER - Rt - Cogent SpringA

LHRATZBEAL:
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(b)

(c)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

EEgHE
General Business Services Agreement (b) —BREBERBEHZ
The Company entered into a General Business Services AN FIEFER2014F12A31 BT — MR EB R
Agreement on 31 December 2014 with Hsin Chong pursuant Bl Bt NREERREHER - 8 £20155F
to which the Group is the service provider. The annual cap 12A31BIEFE —REBREHE2FE LR
for the General Business Services Agreement for the year &7B135,000,0007T °c — R EF RIS L 5 2 5F BN
ended 31 December 2015 was HK$35,000,000. Details of the ARNFIBHA2014F12A31HZ AE RERH A
General Business Services Transaction were disclosed in the 20152 A28 2 i (kN 1% 7& o
announcement of the Company dated 31 December 2014 and
its circular dated 2 February 2015.
Annual  Nature and extent of the
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars consideration  connected person’s interest
BEAL i A=k AR #E FERE BEAIEZMEREE
(HKS)
(%)
Hsin Chong General Business Services 3 years from 1 January 2015 Provision of property and 16,602,864  Hsin Chong is a substantial
Agreement dated to 31 December 2017 facility management shareholder and controlling
31 December 2014 services, cleaning services shareholder of the Company
and miscellaneous services and hence, a connected
by relevant members of the person under the Listing
Group to relevant members Rules.
of the Hsin Chong Group
#a B A2014F1283182—  @201551F1BE2017812 ASEEBKERT HERARANEERRR
REBRS = A31EAHRE mHFEEEEERE AR FERRER BmALTRAT
REMERREER RS ZEBEAL
BRIRT KRR R
Tender Services Agreement (c) RERBKHZ

The Company entered into the Tender Services Agreement
with Hsin Chong on 31 December 2014 pursuant to which the
Hsin Chong Group will provide tender services to the Group.
The annual cap for the Tender Services Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2015 was HK$1,300,000,000. Details

HR2014F12 A31 8 » AR B & 7] ARAZ R 17
BB ESEBRAEBIRERIZRGH
£2015F 12 A31HILFE - HIERBHENFE &
R &7 #1,300,000,0007T ° X S EAA A7) HE
B2014F12A31H 2 R E KA HEIR2015F2H2

of the transaction were disclosed in the announcement of the HZ MR RKEE -
Company dated 31 December 2014 and its circular dated 2
February 2015.
Annual  Nature and extent of the
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars consideration  connected person’s interest
BEAL e LR AR #fE FERE BEATEZMEREE
(HKS)
(B%)
Hsin Chong Tender Services Agreement 3 years from 1 January 2015 To provide tender services to 245,956,302  Hsin Chong is a substantial
dated 31 December 2014 to 31 December 2017 the Group shareholder and controlling
shareholder of the Company
and hence, a connected
person under the Listing
Rules.
b= HEA2014512A31E2 MH2015F1A1ERE AAEERERERY HMERRARAMEERRRIER
RIZIRT 25 2017123318 REI3E MR B A LHRET 26

AL

o055 siewEeEsRas 31
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EEERE
(d) Supporting Services Agreement (d) ZERBIH=E
The Company entered into the Supporting Services Agreement R2014F12 A31 8 » AR B EH & 7] TR IR 1%
with Hsin Chong on 31 December 2014 pursuant to which #BHESERRASERHERS (£
the Hsin Chong Group will provide supporting services ZOENER Z2 08 RIE EBHEE A
(which mainly involve staff costs in health, safety, quality, 2 HBREE EFREMNEHRBEESETRA) -
environmental, plant, surveying, site administration, building HZE2015F12A31HIEFE  TEMBEIHZNFE
services and special projects, etc.) to the Group. The annual PR A&7 #20,000,0007T > X H IR A A E B &
cap for the Supporting Services Agreement for the year A2014F12A31B 2 A5 R HE BEA2015F2 A2
ended 31 December 2015 was HK$20,000,000. Details of A 2 i kR R o
the transactions were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 31 December 2014 and its circular dated 2
February 2015.
Annual  Nature and extent of the
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars consideration  connected person’s interest
BEAL i A=k R #E fFEMf BEATRGHEREE
(HKS)
(B%T)
Hsin Chong Supporting Services 3 years from 1 January 2015 To provide supporting services 9,280,889  Hsin Chong is a substantial
Agreement dated to 31 December 2017 to the Group shareholder and controlling
31 December 2014 shareholder of the Company
and hence, a connected
person under the Listing
Rules.
b= A#A2014F1283182  B201551A1BE017F RASEREERSE MEARRRAMNEERE RIER
SRR G 12831 B BERF R RAfAETRAIT 2 E
AT
(e) Specialist Works Sub-Contracting (e) BEFfIEDHHE

Agreement

The Company entered into the Specialist Works Sub-
Contracting Agreement with Hsin Chong on 31 December
2014 pursuant to which the Group will engage the Hsin Chong
Group as its sub-contractor for providing specialist works to
the Group’s projects. The annual cap for the Specialist Works
Sub-contracting Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2015 was HK$600,000,000. Details of the transactions were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 31
December 2014 and its circular dated 2 February 2015.

2014128318 R AR EHEFT L EM T2
DHBE B AEERBZEFESEBIEAE D
Hpg AmAEE 2B REFFI TR - H Z=2015
F12A31BILFE ENIEDHBEZFE LR
/578 #600,000,0007C ° R S FHIBRARRI BE A
201412 A31H 2 R & M HA HEI 2201592 H2H
B AR o

Annual  Nature and extent of the

Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars consideration  connected person’s interest

BAL th B i #E FERE BEATEZMEREE
(HK$)
(B%L)

Hsin Chong Specialist Works Sub- 3 years from 1 January 2015 The Group to engage the Hsin 0 Hsin Chong is a substantial
contracting Agreement to 31 December 2017 Chong Group as its sub- shareholder and controlling
dated 31 December 2014 contractor for providing shareholder of the Company

specialist works and hence, a connected
person under the Listing
Rules.

Gl HEA2014F12A31B2  M2015F1A1EE AEEZEHEERER HERRL AN BRRRER

EMIRSH R 2017412 A318 B EIsF AHBEAREERNTE fR® - BAifm ETRAIT 2 E

BALe
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(f)

ISP Works Sub-Contracting Agreement

The Company entered into the ISP Works Sub-contracting
Agreement with Hsin Chong on 31 December 2014 pursuant
to which the Hsin Chong Group will engage the Group as its
sub-contractor for providing ISP works to the Hsin Chong
Group’s projects. The annual cap for the ISP Works Sub-
contracting Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2015 was HK$700,000,000. Details of the transactions were

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEgRE

H ZEREHRESHEE IR HG =
R2014F12A31 A AR RIEF EFT L ENEHM K
BHRIEE TRSHADE B FTEESESFRER
SEEAESHE UMFEEKEZEHERHEERN
EHMREHRIER TR -#£2015F12HA31H 1L F
EoEAEMNERER IR HHEEE LR
/75 #700,000,0007T ° R S eFER AR E HE A
2014F12A31H 2 A& R E HEf 2201592 H2H

disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 31 BN EE
December 2014 and its circular dated 2 February 2015.
Annual  Nature and extent of the
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars consideration  connected person’s interest
EAL & B AR FiE FERE BEATEZMEREE
(HKS)
(%)
Hsin Chong ISP Works Sub-Contracting 3 years from 1 January 2015 The Hsin Chong Group to 671,600,000  Hsin Chong is a substantial
Agreement dated to 31 December 2017 engage the Group as its shareholder and controlling
31 December 2014 sub-contractor for providing shareholder of the Company
ISP works and hence, a connected
person under the Listing
Rules.
Fiil] AEA2014F12A31R 2 @015 1AIRE HESEZEASEER MERARANMFERER
FARMRBEHRBEETR 2017512318 AEREF HEAHBEARHERN TS ERBRR BRfiALmRAIT
BElE RAEHEE T2 ZBEAL-
The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive EX (RREBEVERNTES) DEHUERLEXE

Directors) have reviewed and confirmed that all the continuing
connected transactions mentioned in (a) to (f) above conducted
in the year were entered into on the following basis:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the relevant agreements governing these
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
an unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group as above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

S
@QZEMEMAANFREETHRAERFERERZR S TR
RTFIRAEST:

(@) MAKERATER—REBEENET:

b) RB—REFEERNEFOET R

=

© BEETRERSOEBHHRRAFAIEL
AR R R B2 ) AT L o

]

REEBSMASBMHNEBEREKXERIS000
S [ B 75 B B AL S BB AN EEAE T1E] I
2 EBEHATI00 (BB LTR BTN ER
ERXZGHZEE G ARRZEAE X EY
AEEBERERSHENRS -RIELTRAUE
14A5616 BRI E A S BTN LS E e
RG BEHERBERNRME  WEEHLBRNLE
o A E) B A A% BRED R 1 2 AN M) B A P RR A o
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In addition, the auditor of the Company has confirmed to
the Board that nothing has come to their attention that
causes them to believe that the above continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2015:

(@ have not been approved by the Board;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Group where the transactions
involve the provision of services by the Group;

(c) were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(d) have not exceeded the relevant annual caps as
disclosed in the respective previous announcements of
the Company.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect
of the continuing connected transactions mentioned in (a) to (f)
above.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 38.2% (31 December 2014:
32.2%) of the Group’s total revenue and the revenue attributable to
the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 10.9%
(81 December 2014: 7.5%) of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the Group'’s total purchases for the
year (2014: less than 30%).

None of the Directors, any of their associates or shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital), had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers.

Bank Borrowings

The particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2015 are set out in note 26 to the financial statement.
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Donations

No donation was made by the Group for charitable and other
purposes during the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company'’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Related Party Transactions

Significant related party transactions of the Group are set out in
note 30 to the financial statements. In relation to those related
party transactions that also constituted connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Group as defined in the
Listing Rules, the relevant disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been complied with.

Public Float

At the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
of knowledge of its directors.

Auditor

The retiring auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, has
expressed its willingness to offer for re-appointment. A resolution will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to re-appoint
Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company for
the ensuing year and to authorise the directors to fix its remuneration.

On behalf of the Board

Joseph Choi Kin Hung
Executive Director and Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

=——— BAIVZHERSE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuada with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Synergis
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on
pages 88 to 144, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as
at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

*  for identification purposes only {£ {5
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
BAEBE

2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T ST
Revenue & 5 2,447,379 1,906,253
Cost of sales HE KA (2,261,438) (1,720,107)
Gross profit E A 185,941 186,146
Other income RN 7,463 7,422
General and administrative expenses — M R ATERF (108,333) (121,427)
Amortisation of intangible assets WA (8,283) (8,726)
Interest expenses B 6 (7,007) (7,317)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HEB AR ZEE 27 (2,257) =
Profit before taxation Bk 75 B A 7 67,524 56,098
Taxation I8 11 (12,243) (10,756)
Profit for the year F 3 A 55,281 45,342
Earnings per share for profit attributable to A2 B B A A FE (535 A 2
the equity holders of the Company BRAF
— basic —HEK 13 14.9 centsfll 11.9 centsfll
— diluted — 88 13 12.8 centsfll 10.8 centsflll
Dividends [i% & 12 21,380 29,028
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e 2 WA SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
EFE 2015 F 12 A 31 HIFF/E

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T PEHEToT
Profit for the year FREF 55,281 45,342
Other comprehensive loss: Hih2HEEE:
ltems that will not be reclassified Ee#TgsmoiE
to profit or loss: BmoEA:
Actuarial loss on long service payment liabilities RSB eBEZEEER (2,450) (1,524)
ltems that may be subsequently AHBSEHLES
reclassified to profit or loss: BmsHEA:
Exchange differences on translating foreign BMEBIINEBEECEL 8
operations (1,811) (99)
Other comprehensive loss for the year ERHMEEEE (4,261) (1,619
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZEBRAERE 51,020 43,723
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
meEERER

As at 31 December 2015
R2015 F 12 A 31 H

2015 2014
Notg HK$’000 HK$’OOO
B = BT T I
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERE Y] 14 6,883 8,891
Investment properties LAY 15 3,040 2,800
Intangible assets EREE 16 40,691 48,974
Goodwill EES 16 171,794 168,968
Deferred tax assets BETRIBEEE 25 91 144
Total non-current assets ERBEELTE 222,499 229,777
Currentassets  whw®&&®
Contracting work-in-progress FE R p) TR 17 299,158 180,871
Receivables JiE W BR 3R 18 470,877 326,089
Deposits and prepayments e RIBREK 18 35,545 56,136
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries EAEERS WJ% KA 19 58,633 53,444
Amount due from ultimate holding JE W B 5 42 ””“ TAIE
company 19 12,939 12,358
Taxation recoverable AT U [B] F 1A 83 244
Deposit, cash and cash equivalents R -RekBeEE 20 129,841 91,195
Total current assets REBEEERE 1,007,076 720,337
Current liabilites ~ hw&a®
Payables and accruals EREREETER 21 630,796 431,763
Bank loans RITE R 26 293,536 247,000
Amount due to non-controlling interests FEAS FEIE AR A 2 B IE 19 1,148 =
Amount due to other partner of joint FE 1 £ fth S R A A B pE 2R
operations 6 144
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEA R K Y B A R FIB 19 588 5,504
Taxation payable FEAST B IE 12,900 8,950
Total current liabilities REBEEERE 938,974 693,361
Net current assets REBEEFE 68,102 26,976
Total assets less current liabilities EERERARBEE 290,601 256,753
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Long service payment liabilities RHRGcEE 24 3,977 1,940
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIEEE 25 7,232 8,859
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELRE 11,209 10,799
Net assets EERE 279,392 245,954
Equity attributable to equity holders of ARQATAREIFE AEGES
the Company
Share capital i@N 22 42,768 41,589
Retained profits and other reserves IREB vaa 1) e L 178 23 227,143 187,729
Proposed dividends ¥R B 10,692 16,636
280,603 245,954
Non-controlling interests RS (1,211) =
Total equity AR 279,392 245 954

The notes on pages 93 to 144 are an integral part of these S93FE1448 2 A% SR AW IEHRER ZAMID -

consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 88 to 92 were approved by the B i§ ¥R & 55882 02H & & = € A 201643 H23 8 #t /ff
Board of Directors on 23 March 2016 and were signed on its behalf WHNATATRERESE

Joseph Choi Kin Hung £ &8
Chairman % &

Lui Chun Pong B #& #8
Director &%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

S A flE 3L A
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
EFE 2015 F 12 A 31 HIFF/E

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

SEREAAARELEEA
Employee
share
option Non-
Share Share Merger reserve  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve EEREMRE reserve profits Total interests equity
BRE  ROEE AHRE wE ERFE REEN @i FERER ERLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT A%t BETr A¥%Tr BT A¥Tr BT A¥Tr  BETx
At 1 January 2014 R2014E1 18 41,200 95,401 1,513 3,997 1,420 80,443 223974 225 224,199
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - 45,342 45,342 - 45,342
Other comprehensive loss HivzEER - - - - (95) (1,524) (1,619) - (1,619)
Total comprehensive (oss)/income 2E (BB WALE = = = = (95) 43818 43723 - B3
2013 final dividend paid (note 12) BIR2013FERHRE
(BizE12) - - - - - (14,4200 (14,420) - (14,420)
2014 interim dividend paid (note 12) BIR2014EERBRS
(H312) - = - - - (12392 (1239 - (1239
Share option scheme BRETE - - - 1,728 - - 1,728 - 1,728
Transfer upon share options lapsing BREXAMER - - - (1,759) - 1,759 = - =
Issue of shares upon exercise of RifEERE
share options &R 389 3,821 - (869) - - 3,341 = 3,341
Payment to non-controling interests ER-FELE
due to dissolution of a non-wholly WBARMMST
owned subsidiary FErRiER 2B - - - - = = = (225) (229)
At 31 December 2014 2014128318 41,589 99,222 1,513 3,097 1,325 99,208 245,954 - 245,954
At 1 January 2015 R2015E1 818 41,589 99,222 1,513 3,007 1,325 99,208 245,954 - 245,954
Profit for the year %R = = = = - 55281 55,281 - 55281
Other comprehensive loss HEt2AHE - - - - (1,811) (2,450) (4,261) = (4,261)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 28 (58) /A 88 - - - - (1,811) 52,831 51,020 - 51,020
2014 final dividend paid (note 12) BIR2014FEREBR &
(BizE12) - - - - - (16,844)  (16,844) - (16,844)
2015 interim dividend paid (note 12) Bik015FEFERE
(BisE12) - - - - - (10,688)  (10,688) = (10,688)
Share option scheme BREE - - - 958 - - 958 = 958
Transfer upon share options lapsing BREXRmER - - - (602) - 602 - - =
Issue of shares upon exercise of AT EaE
share options mETRA 1,179 11,713 - (2,689) - - 10,203 - 10,203
Increase in non-controling interests WE—RNEARMm
due to acquisition of a subsidiary BEGEEREREM - - - - - - - (1,211) (1,211)
At 31 December 2015 R2015€12831F 42,768 110,935 1,513 764 (486) 125,109 280,603 (1,211) 279,392
Note: B 5 -

Bonus convertible preference shares were issued on 20 May 2013 in accordance
with the 2012 result of ISP. During the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2015,
none of the convertible preference shares were converted.

TR A% 2= O 5 A5 I 1 BR 1B B 20124 2 ¥4 - AL M Al S @ e E R
20134520 AR 3 - RE E2014F K2015F12 A31 B ILFER « %
45 T SE IR (B SR RS 4R -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEBRTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
EZE 2015 F 12 A 31 HIFF/E

2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 BT T BT T
Operating activities BEEK
Cash generated from operations KEXBEEZRS 29 28,173 83,085
Income taxes paid BRI ATIEH (9,329) (9,309)
Net cash generated from operating REEBEE RS TFHE
activities 18,844 73,776
Investing activities REEK
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE B REE
equipment (2,702) (8,953)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEE #REX
and equipment BT 100 254
Proceeds from disposal of an investment HERE MRS RIE
property - 1,300
Interest received BURF B 85 67
Interest paid BB (6,906) (7,265)
Payment to non-controlling interests due HER—EEEENRB AR
to dissolution of a non-wholly owned s F IR A 2 2 FROE
subsidiary - (225)
Disposal of a subsidiary, net of cash HE—RERBAR
disposed of HEREEZHE 27 943 =
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash W —HK B AR
acquired MR 2 3B & 16 263 -
Time deposit over three months A= 8 A EHFER - 674
Net cash used in investing activities REXEBFEAZRELSTE (8,217) (9,148)
Financing activities Al g
Issuance of shares upon exercise of share ITiE R AR M T B 1T AR AD
options 10,203 3,341
Drawdown of bank loans BARITER 514,890 192,379
Repayment of bank loans BEIRITENR (468,354) (221,379)
Dividend paid ERE (27,532) (26,812)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMELBELZ, (EBZ)
financing activities REeFHE 29,207 (52,471)
Net increase in deposit, cashand cash EFH RERREZE
equivalents iz FE 39,834 12,157
Deposit, cash and cash equivalents at the FY2ER - RER
beginning of the year ReEE 91,195 79,153
Exchange loss on deposit, cash and cash ER-BHehkReFEZ
equivalents & 5 EiE (1,188) (119)
Deposit, cash and cash equivalents at FRZ2ER - RekREEE
the end of the year 129,841 91,195
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General Information

Synergis Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda as
an exempted company on 4 August 2003. The address of
its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda. The Company’s shares were
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 9 October 2003.

The principal business of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the provision
of property management and facility management services,
ISP business and ancillary business in Hong Kong, Chinese
Mainland and Macau.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise
stated, and were approved for issue by the Board of Directors
on 23 March 2016.

Basis of Preparation and Accounting
Policies

The consolidated financial statements of Synergis Holdings
Limited have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties which are carried at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the applicable requirements of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this financial
year and the comparative period.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving high degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4.

*  for identification purposes only (£ 4 5

B 3 SR AR M

—RER

Synergis Holdings Limited (FTE B EEEHFR A
a*) ([ARRQAE])R2003E8A4B BIF19816F H
REQRZEERESMEKLAER R AR 5E
3 = B b 11k & Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda ° 28 A &) J% 3 7220035
10A9BER BB AR SHAR AR ([BRAT])
ke

AARREWNBAR (B IAEE]) 2 T TEK
ARES PENE R EEREREDEERE
RREEIRR =R R IFRIE B 2150 R E
BhZET% o

BB EFIBREIN KR A BB REIABE T LY
R WER20165E3F238 KREE S T3 -

mEEERETEE

Synergis Holdings Limited (FTE B E£EER A
B ) ZIREMBRERDBRIBEMEERA 2 EBNE
HELER (BT HREER])MEE G W
BIRKRIZE LR ABOIRE  WERIE AR BT
B ESHIELBET

AP RFEE R BRREGE PBERRTDRBAIA
BMED (328 ) BRRERE -

FEEREEM GRS LN REVERRE - ARA
ETHREHE ERENAERAASESE
B ZBIR T (E L HIE o F RS HE S E e 2
85 BRI EFHREVBERRAEATE
SISO MY FEASEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7 SR AR BT

(@) New and Amended Standards Adopted

by the Group

The following new/revised HKFRSs, amendments and
improvements are mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2015.

HKAS 19 (2011)
Amendment

Annual Improvements

Project

Annual Improvements

Project

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Annual Improvement
2010 - 2012 Cycle

Annual Improvement
2011 - 2013 Cycle

(b)

The application of the above amendments and
improvements in the current year has had no material
effect on the Group’s reported financial performance and
position for the current and prior year and/or disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

New and Amended Standards have been
Issued and are Relevant to the Group,
but are not Effective for the Financial
Year Beginning 1 January 2015 and have
not been Early Adopted in Preparing
these Consolidated Financial Statements

Annual Annual Improvement 2012 — 2014
Improvements Cycle'
Project

HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 Consolidation Exception’
and HKAS 28
Amendment

HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Amendment Interests in Joint Operations’

HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative'
Amendment

HKAS 16 and Clarification of Acceptable Methods
HKAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation’
Amendment

HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Amendment Statements’
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(@

2.1

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
Amendment

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

3 Effective date to be determined by the IASB

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact
of the above new standards and amendments to
existing standards on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts
and Audit” of new Hong Kong Company Ordinance
(Cap.622) come into operation during the financial
year, as a result, there are changes to presentation and
disclosures of certain information in the consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of Consolidation

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases. Inter-company
transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7 SRR BT

(b)

96 Synergis Holdings Li

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments
in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment (note 2.9). Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income
statement (note 2.5).

Intra-Group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

imited Annual Report 2015

(b)
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(@)

(d)

Transactions with non-controlling
interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of
the Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to consolidated income
statement.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as a joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(@)

(d)

Bt F R B =

BEFERERRS

AEBRBHEEFEREZOARIEE
HAREBEERES ANETHRS - [AFE
R ERETEEMS  HERMIH
MEAA BB ERETREN B A

RIEEREFEZEZHE AR
M IEfE MR i R B 2 WS sk B 18 UN AT
ARz o

EARETHEAEFRIEATE
N EEBNEAREESENAEE
HRAnE REENEBHHERDTHE
ﬂ°®ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ R EARRM
EWW%%E@ ERBERE &%

RAKMBEE UL ZHEEME
T YA R RERR ) B B X R R A () B
BOBBENAEECEZLERBAE
EXBREARK - SHRSFNZAEEMBE
HBEAPHERNBEEN D REER
BER-

i PO Bt 8 X BB BT B & R R A HIDRL B
DIRBEATZE N AEEERBRAT
12 L PG 2 B FE H A 2 [ WA R AR
MBREN T BERE-

S B A E
AR R AR AR REBOER
BHBRALEE RS AOA A AR

WE&A%W1 %ﬁ%%%%é&
HOR B fE et Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BESN SERTR B 2 E AR EZE
BEMNENSREBNAEECEE
EHERFREEXRBEN T A AR
%T%gﬁ £ 57 B FE H b 2 1 A B
RHEREH O BERE-

20155 ¥ &

zeeEsmRan 97



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SRR B o

2.2

2.3

2.4

Joint Arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as
either joint operations or joint ventures; depending on
the contractual rights and obligations each investor has
rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement.
For the joint arrangements that specify that the parties
to the joint arrangements have rights to the assets
and obligations to the liabilities relating to the joint
arrangements, they are classified as joint operations. For
the remaining joint arrangements, they are classified as
joint ventures.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker identified as the Executive Committee, who are
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments and making
strategic decisions.

Foreign Currency Translation

(@) Functional and presentation
currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK dollars (HKS$), which is the
Company’s and the Group’s functional and
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gain and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement.
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(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recognised in the
income statement as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

2.5 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary
at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested annually
for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash—generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose
identified according to operating segment.
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2.6

2.7

Intangible Assets

(a) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks and trade names
are shown at historical cost. Trademarks and trade
names acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.

Trademarks and trade names that have a definite
useful life are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks over their estimated useful lives of 15
years.

Trademarks that have indefinite useful lives are
not amortized. They subject to impairment testing
annually and whenever there is an indication that it
may be impaired.

(b) Backlog orders

Backlog orders acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. The secured contracts
have a finite useful life and carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the
expected life of the contracts of 3 years.

(c) Non-competition agreement

Non-competition agreement acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. The non-competition
agreement have a finite useful life and carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of the contracts of 15 years.

Investment Properties

Investment property is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and is not occupied
by the companies in the Group. Investment property
comprises land held under operating leases and
buildings held under finance leases.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial
recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is revaluated bi-annually based on active
market prices, adjusted for any necessary difference in
the nature, location or condition of the specific asset.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in
the light of current market conditions. Changes in fair
values are recognised in the income statement.
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2.8

2.9

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in each asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that there is future
economic benefit to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method based on
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements
Motor vehicles
Furniture and equipment

Over the lease period
25% — 30% per annum
10% — 50% per annum

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
An assets’ carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note
2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in the income statement.

Impairment of Investment in
Subsidiaries and Non-Financial Assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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2.10 Contracting Work-in-Progress

2.11

Contracting work-in-progress is valued at cost incurred
plus an appropriate proportion of profit after deducting
progress payments and allowances for foreseeable
losses. Cost comprises direct materials, labour and
overheads attributable in bringing the work-in-progress
to its present condition.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount
due from customers for contract work for all contracts
in progress for which costs incurred plus recognised
profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress billings.
Progress billings not yet paid by customers and retention
are included within trade and retention receivables. The
Group presents as a liability the gross amount due to
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress
for which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses).

Financial Assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except that for maturities greater than 12 months after
the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-
current assets.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. Impairment testing
of receivables is described in note 2.12.

1 02 Synergis Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

210 EEPHNIE

2.11

H32 P ) TR A B NS & L ) 2 8 3
HERAEEN TR E BB EERIIE K
AeEfEEDH TREBRFERAAELZ
HERB S TURMERAS-

AT A KFMELRA I E B MR
NRREABBBHERERE A5E
REEZINREBREPZTRENAER &K
FRAXN 2 EEERZBRRES AR
WA RERRE S - WABETTAROZ
#E 2 B SR ERR L P EE AR R AN 0 | B R A
FREBREE AEEZB B2 AEN
BEPZIRRBAER-

MBEE

A B G H B A E B R B AR B MR
KN ERTBAMBAEZ BOME &
BENERERSREMBEEZER

ERRERERRBREER A EEEREE
BTG EBENITENBEE - ILF
HERRERBDEEA HIMABALE
BEFH12EAE AN BERIRDEE-

EHBARBEZHBEERRZ SR (BIA
SEFAEEEZEEZBH) TR RE
TR R AREINR HRAER - 1R E W
RReSRENEIRRLCE R MAK
B e E AR 2 BARNER K EHRE
HiEh RERILERMBEE B RE
Ui BR R AR B I ) K DA SR B AR B R

AEENEEEEAFGEEATBRER
AARBMBEEESRAMBEELDRE
JE U BR SR 2 R (BRI A B BT 5212 -



2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the use
of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. When a receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowances
account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited in the income
statement.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligations, and such amount
can be reasonably estimated. Where the Group expects
a provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method. Borrowings are classified as
current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

Deposit, Cash and Cash Equivalents

Deposit, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand
and deposits held at call with banks.
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2,16 Payables

Payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. They are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or else,
they are presented as non-current liabilities. Payables
are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.17 Employee Benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they are
accrued to employees. It is the Group’s policy to
forfeit any untaken annual leave with a specific
time period. Subject to regular assessment of staff
turnover rate, a provision will be made or reversed.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave. A
provision is made for the estimated liability up to
the balance sheet date.

(b) Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus are made
for the estimated liability for incentive bonus as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date, where there is a contractual
obligation or past practice that has created a
constructive obligation, and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made.

(c) Retirement benefit

The Group participates in mandatory provident
fund schemes in Hong Kong which are defined
contribution plan generally funded through
payments to trustee — administered funds. The
assets of the schemes is held separately from
those of the Group in independently administered
funds.
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(d)

(e)

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the
government in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), the subsidiaries in PRC participates in
the municipal government contribution scheme
whereby the subsidiaries are required to contribute
to the scheme for the retirement benefit of eligible
employees. The municipal government of the PRC
is responsible for the entire benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the scheme
is to pay the ongoing contributions required by the
scheme. The Group’s contributions to the scheme
are expensed as incurred.

Long service payment liabilities

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long
service accounts payable on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior
periods. That benefit is discounted to determine
the present value and reduced by entitlements
accrued under the Group’s retirement plans. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit
credit method by a qualified actuary. Actuarial
gains or losses was charged/credited to
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Share option scheme

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Binomial Option Pricing Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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218

2.19

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the income
statement for the year of the review. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
uncertain future events not wholly within the Group’s
control. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because outflow of
economic resources is considered not probable or the
amount cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability in that outflow becomes
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

Current and Deferred Income Tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Group’s entities operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates tax related situations
and establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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2.20

2.21

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Operating Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.
Revenue is shown net of returns and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.
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2.22

Property and facility management fees are recognised
when the services are rendered and in accordance
with the terms of agreements. There are two types
of agreement, namely management remuneration
contracts (“MR Contracts”) and lump sum contracts
(‘LS Contracts”). Under a MR Contract, the Group is
remunerated based on a fixed percentage of the costs
involved in the management of the property or facility,
and only such fee is recognised as the Group’s revenue.
Under a LS Contract, the Group is paid a lump sum fee
which normally covers the costs involved, thus the whole
of lump sum fee is recognised as the Group’s revenue.

Revenue from provision of other supporting services is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Revenue from contracting work is recognised based on
the stage of completion of the contracts, provided that
the stage of contract completion and the gross billing
value of contracting work can be measured reliably.
The stage of completion of a contract is established by
reference to the gross billing value of contracting work to
date as compared to the total contract sum receivable
under the contracts.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered to customers and title has passed.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Interest income and other contracting income are
recognised on a time proportion basis, taking into
account the principal amounts or refundable deposits
outstanding and the effective interest rates applicable.

Dividend Distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability when approved, whereas
dividend proposed but not yet approved is recognised as
an appropriation of retained earnings.
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3 Financial Risk Management

3.1 Financial Risk Factors

Risk management seeks to minimise any potential
material effects on the Group’s financial performance
from the following factors.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s operation in the Chinese
Mainland is exposed to exchange risk arising
from Renminbi. Hedging has not been
effected due to immateriality of the working
capital balances.

(i) Interest rate risk

At 31 December 2015, if interest rates on
Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings
had been 50 basis points (2014: 50
basis points) higher or lower with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year would have decreased/
increased by approximately HK$1,474,000
(2014:HK$1,308,000) as a result of higher or
lower interest expenses on floating rate bank
borrowings respectively.

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk primarily arises from credit
exposures to receivables. Current policies ensure
that sales and services are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history and subject
to periodic credit evaluations. Collection of
outstanding receivables is closely monitored on an
ongoing basis.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s two
largest customers accounted for approximately
28.4% of the Group’s total accounts receivable
(2014: approximately 26.4%). These customers
have a good credit history and the Group does
not consider there to be any significant credit
risk in this regard. Certain customers have
exceeded their respective credit terms during
the reporting period (note below on receivables).
However, management does not expect any
significant losses from non-performance by these
counterparties because of their good repayment
history.
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AR ERERR - BA AREER
HRRAERREMHEEDNET AR
REEELENER L EEHFEN
EEMR - R E BB AR IEBIFES

BEmER

R2015F12831H  AEBHR AR
F #4915 7N 5= (8] & UR BR TR 4R 5 4928.4%
(2014%F : 4926.4% ) - ZERBFPHEAR
FREERS  MALER ST &
EREREERE - & TEFNERHA
FEBaFESEmEER (R TXE
B GRIB Z MIE) c AT AR ZSE
THHFAERITFERCE SEEE
T REZER S FH RS2
EfREAEX -
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(@)

1 1 0 Synergis Holdings Li

Liquidity risk

The Group adopts prudent liquidity risk
management which includes maintaining
sufficient bank balances and cash, and having
available funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities.

Cash flow forecast is performed in the operating
segments of the Group and aggregated by
corporate finance team. Corporate finance
team monitors forecasts of the Group's liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to
meet operational needs.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet to the contractual maturity date.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the Directors do not consider that the bank will
exercise its discretion to demand immediate
payment, and believe that the bank loan will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in note 26. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, including interest
payment.

However, for bank loans containing a repayment
on demand clause, if the lenders were to invoke
their unconditional rights to call the loans with
immediate effect, including short term revolving
loans of HK$185,536,000 which is subject to
annual review by lenders and bank loans of
HK$108,000,000 with scheduled repayment
dates, will be on demand for repayment
immediately, excluding interest payments.

imited Annual Report 2015
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Financial risk factors
Liquidity risk (in HK$’000)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 SRR B o

B 5 B (R &=
nEBEERER GE¥%TIT)

Less Between Between
than 1 year 1 and 2 year 2 and 5 year Total
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12A318 PR-F —FZME MEZRE M@t
Term loans subject to I ERRERENH
a repayment on demand clause BHEX 28,023 86,368 - 114,891
Other bank loans HiRIER 185,818 - - 185,818
Payables and accruals ENRRRESER 604,438 26,358 - 630,796
Amount due to non-controlling B AR B 5B
interests 1,148 - - 1,148
Amount due to other partner of joint B E- it RI4E &
operations BHFE 6 - - 6
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  FET R Z Bt B 2 7308 588 - - 588
Total Foe 820,021 113,226 - 933,247
Less Between Between
than 1 year 1and 2 year 2 and 5 year Total
At 31 December 2014 120144124318 PR—F —FEMF MEERF h
Term loans subject to FERREKENK
a repayment on demand clause BHER 28,930 28,034 86,092 143,056
Other bank loans HRITER 115,190 = = 115,190
Payables and accruals ERRRRETER 419,921 11,842 = 431,763
Amount due to other partner of EREMEREE
joint operations BHFE 144 = = 144
Amounts dus to fellow subsidiaries & [F i B2 7208 5,504 - = 5,504
Total @t 569,689 30,876 86,092 695,657

3.2 Capital Risk Management

32 EXERER

AEENEAEREEREARERERE
& WHHRENEASEMBIEESKA -
REFXARENGRE AEEAFAEX
NFRROKRSEE RARREEERN &
TRk & & EORRETS

In managing its capital, the Group’s objectives are to
safeguard its ability to continue operation as a going
concern while keeping an optimal capital level to reduce
the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

3.3 Fair Value Estimation 3.3 AREME
ARAEBE 2 RDEEBR GG BitE
BREESHEAAEHESE -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current assets
approximate their fair values due to their short term
maturities.
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
estimates may not, by definition, equal the related actual
results. Those estimates and assumptions that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of each of the assets and liabilities are discussed
below.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

Management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation and amortisation charges for its
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
Such estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets of similar nature and functions.

(b) Receivables and deposits

Management determines the provision for impairment
of receivables and deposits based on assessment
of the recoverability of the receivables and deposits.
The assessment is based on the credit history of
its customers and debtors and the current market
condition, which requires the use of judgements and
estimates. Management reassesses the provision at
each balance sheet date.

(c) Construction contracts

As explained in note 2.21, revenue recognition on a
project is dependent on management’s estimation
of the total outcome of the construction contract, as
well as the work done to date. The Group reviews and
revises the estimates of contract revenue, contract
costs, variation orders and contract claims prepared for
each construction contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted construction income is determined in
accordance with the terms set out in the relevant
contracts. Budgeted construction costs are prepared
by the management on the basis of quotations from
time to time provided by the major contractors,
suppliers or vendors involved and the experience of the
management. In order to keep the budget accurate and
up-to-date, the management conducts periodic reviews
of the management budgets by comparing the budgeted
amounts to the actual amounts incurred. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in estimating the total
contract revenue, contract costs, variation works and
contract claims which may have an impact in terms of
percentage of completion and job profit taken.
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(d)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had an arbitration
claim in respect of disputes between the Group and the
employer in a building construction contract. The Group
has been negotiating with the employer. The case is
under examination by the arbitrator and the directors
are of the view that no provision is required as at 31
December 2015. The determination of the provision
involved significant management estimation.

Impairment of assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and
trademark have suffered any impairment in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in note 2.9. The
recoverable amounts of goodwill and trademark are the
higher of the assets’ fair values less costs to sell and
value in use.

A considerable amount of judgement and assumptions
are required in estimating the recoverable amount of
goodwill and trademark, including growth rate, gross
margin and weighted average discount rate applied to
the discounted cashflows.

The Group also assesses annually for an intangible
asset that is not being amortised, to determine whether
events and circumstances continue to support an
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. For the
trademarks held by the Group, management carries out
the assessment by performing an analysis of all of the
relevant factors, including the ability to hold and use
the trademarks and the market environment of relevant
industry, to consider whether there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to
generate net cash inflows for the Group.

Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on the higher of fair
value less cost to sell or value-in-use calculations. These
value-in-use calculations require the use of estimates.

No impairment was made during the year.
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(e) Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in judgement
Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC. Significant is required
in determining the provision for PRC income taxes.
There are a number of transactions and calculations
for which ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognizes
liabilities for potential tax exposures based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
affect the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

Segment Information

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker, identified as
the Executive Committee, who are responsible for allocating
resources, assessing performance of the operating segments
and making strategic decisions. The reportable operating
segments are:

° property and facility management services in Hong
Kong;

o property and facility management services in Chinese
Mainland including leasing services;

° ancillary business including security, cleaning, laundry,
etc.; and

o interiors and special projects

During the year, the Group has changed the composition of its
reportable segments to four operating segments (2014: Five),
mainly combining the result of repair and maintenance into ISP
due to segment performance assessment within the Group.
The corresponding segment information for the year ended 31
December 2014 have been restated.
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(@) Segment Results (in HK$'000) (a) DEPEE (BT )

Property and Facility

Management Services
NERREER RS
Property
and Facility
Management Interiors
and Ancillary and
Business Special Corporate
Hong Chinese Ancillary MER Projects (Note 1)
Kong Mainland Business ~ REEEE EREHR T8 Total
BE HER [ lIES S CEIES S S HIEE (Mat1) st
2015 20155
Revenue Wigs 582,409 91,771 89,358 763,538 1,683,841 - 2,447,379
Gross profit £ 61,281 14,380 17,951 93,612 92,329 - 185,941
Operating expenses BRERR (28,095) (14,277) (10,645) (53,017) (29,545) (21,786) (104,348)
Operating profit/(loss) mEnfl/ (BiB) 33,186 103 7,306 40,595 62,784 (21,786) 81,593
Amortisation of BREESH
intangible assets ‘ - - (8,283) (8,283)
Acquisition loan interest WEEF A RS
expenses - - (4,524) (4,524)
Interest expenses MERR (455) (2,028) - (2,483)
Other expenses HF% (1,256) (1,771) (958) (3,985)
Other income Hett A 4,345 861 - 5,206
Profit before taxation BB A& 43,229 59,846 (35,551) 67,524
Taxation A (2,883) (9,360) - (12,243)
Profit for the year 3 40,346 50,486 (35,551) 55,281
Property and Facility
Management Services
MERFHEE R R
Property
and Facility
Management Interiors
and Ancillary and
Business Special Corporate
Hong Chinese Ancillary NER Projects (Note 1)
Kor)g Mainland Busness ~ KEEER EREHL I Total
& FEIA WEES BHEG RRIER (BzE1) @t
2014 20145
Revenue Wrgs 624,913 85,995 84,060 794,968 1,111,285 - 1,906,253
Gross profit £ 67,100 18,656 19,101 104,857 81,290 - 186,147
Operating expenses BERZ (28,961) (20,788) (9,657) (59,406) (30,708) (26,464) (116,578)
Operating profit/(loss) mERT/ (BB) 38,139 2,132) 9,444 45,451 50,582 (26,464) 69,569
Amortisation of BREESH
intangible assets - - (8,726) (8,726)
Acquisition loan interest WEERZFIBFHX
expenses - - (5,370) (5,370)
Interest expenses FBRZ (148) (1,799) = (1,947)
Other expenses % (2,169) (959) (1,728) (4,850)
Other income A 4472 2,950 - 7,422
Profit before taxation BB Ai i A 47,612 50,774 (42,288) 56,098
Taxation HH (3,806) (6,950) = (10,756)
Profit for the year FREH 43,806 43,824 (42,288) 45,342
Note 1: Corporate mainly represents corporate and administrative ekt TREZARARIRITBUES AR HEZ/R
activities, and shared services. e
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(b) Customer Information

For the year ended 31 December 2015, revenue of
approximately HK$265,694,000 was derived from
one single external customer which was attributable
to ISP (for the year ended 2014: HK$142,280,000
was derived from one single external customers which
was attributable to property and facility management
services).

6 Interest Expenses 6

The entire amount was attributable to the bank loans (2014:
The entire amount was attributable to the bank loans).

(b) EF&EH
HE2015F12A31HIEFE  © B
265,694,0007T Z Wz = 2K B — % B I 2K
BEUTDBREARMNERIEAR 2 Wk
(B 2201445 |F € : #¥142,280,0007T 2
W 2RE —REBINREL  WTIERY
ENREEERE 2 W) °

FMEAX
2 BEWMEBEARITEHR (20145 2HLTE
RHEARTER) -

7  Profit before Taxation 7  BR®EADE R
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PR T IT
Profit before taxation is arrived B i ATE A E 0Bk (5FA)

after charging/(crediting): IS EE
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments B T A (BIEEEME)

(note 8) (F7E8) 712,261 720,696
Depreciation e 4,425 5,847
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B AT BN &

— audit services —BAZ R 1,269 1,138

— non-audit services —EBZIRTE 198 187
Operating lease rental on land, buildings and - 1EF MR A =R 2

office equipment LEHERS 11,923 11,521
Other contracting income Hih TREEGLHWA (3,028) (2,990)
Gain on disposal of an investment property HEREMFE 2 W - (400)

8 Staff Costs, Including Directors’ 8 BIRKX(BIEEEME)
Emoluments
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ook i
Wages and salaries TERY®
—included in cost of sales — St ABHE KA 618,969 622,297
— included in general and administrative —FTA—MRITHAX
expenses 67,515 70,760
Retirement benefit ROKEF 24,819 25,911
Share option expenses BRRERY 958 1,728
712,261 720,696
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PP EENE
9 Benefits and interest of directors 9 ESEAMARER
The following disclosures are made pursuant to section 383(1) VAR 3 58 Th iR 15 A AE) (55622 ) 55383(1)(@)1F
(@) to (f) of the Companies Ordinance Cap. 622 and Parts 2 to ZMEEAR (BEEEMNZER) R G ($622G
4 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits ) F2E FA4TIEL -
of Directors) Regulation Cap. 622G:
(a) Directors emoluments (in HK$'000) (a) EEM<E (B¥Tx)

Certain comparative information of the directors’ LRIBRBEA A GEHIRENS Ei% FHE

emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2014 2014F12AB1HIEFR 2 M 2 BT ARIA

previously disclosed in accordance with the predecessor ﬂEi&jTiZlJ AT BA R RERI (5622

Companies Ordinance have been restated in order to B)ZHBIEKRRTE -

comply with the new scope and requirements by the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

The remuneration of every director is set out below: BREZZHMEFINT :

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B 22015F12A31H L FE

Employer’s
contribution to
Estimated  aretirement
money value benefit
of other scheme®
Discretionary benefits*  EEXHBIHK
Fees Salary* Bonus*  HiEFz BRE Total

Name of Director EEpg He e BERA fHHE%ER e @t

Executive Directors HITES

Fan Cheuk Hung? B 134 1,760 284 121 237 2536

Terence Leung Siu Cheong? 2kE? 109 2,196 1,959 80 18 4,362

Brenda Yau Shuk Meg? R 109 1,482 315 48 74 2,028

Joseph Choi Kin Hung? g 9 68 324 - - 401

Lui Chun Pong* & R 9 14 - - = 23

Non-executive Director FHTES

Wilfred Wong Ying Wai' THE 149 3,114 927 109 15 4,314

Independent non-executive ~ BUEHTES

Directors

Stephen Ip Shu Kwan 91 240 - - 35 - 275

Kan Fook Yee iEss 240 - - 35 - 275

Wong Tsan Kwong BEK 240 - - 35 - 275

David Yu Hon To BER 240 - - 35 - 275

1,479 8,634 3,809 498 344 14,764

* Except for the independent non-executive * FRBIEITE RSN - X S RRIEBIR
directors, the amounts represented emoluments in BHEEEARRRINENE A RFTETT
respect of services provided in connection with the 2 B 2 RIS UER 2 B &
management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiaries undertaking.

g Re-designated as a Non-executive Director g 2015911 A1 E@EEJQJ{E?F%M?%%SI\E
with effect from 1 November 2015 and F2015F 12 A11HRBE BHEIERITES
resigned as a Non-executive Director with effect from
11 December 2015

2 Resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 1 2 H2015F9 A1 BiE BT HITES
September 2015

3 Appointed as Executive Directors with effect from 10 8 H2015F4R10R R EZERAMITES
April 2015

4 Appointed as Executive Directors with effect from 11 2 H20156F 12 A11HREZEARNITES
December 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

HZE2014512A31B L FE

Employer’s
contribution to
Estimated  a retirement
money value benefit
of other scheme*
Discretionary benefits*  EEXHBHK
Fees Salary* Bonus*  HitiEFIZ BAlstEz Total
Name of Director ESfg e i BERL HHE%ERE R @it
Executive Directors HiTES
Wilfred Wong Ying Wai THEE 150 3,461 1,464 164 17 5,256
Fan Cheuk Hung B i 150 2,460 747 178 246 3781
Catherine Chu' KRR 65 443 - 47 20 575
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Tenniel Chu? KRR % - - 6 - 101
Barry John Buttifant? 2L 29 - - 2 - 31
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEE
Directors
Stephen Ip Shu Kwan 30 220 - - 14 - 234
Kan Fook Yee e 220 - - 14 - 234
Wong Tsan Kwong Vo 220 - - 14 - 234
David Yu Hon To MEE 220 - - 14 - 234
1,369 6,364 2,211 453 283 10,680
* Except for the independent non-executive directors, * BRIBZIEMITESIN ZeBERREHEA
the amounts represented emoluments in respect of FAERARAINENBRRMETZE
services provided in connection with the management % 2 RIS WER 2 B &
of affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries
undertaking.
1 Resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 6 g 2014 F6 A6HBBFTNITES
June 2014
2 Resigned as a Non-executive Director with effect from 2 201456 A6 H BT IENITES
6 June 2014
3 Resigned as a Non-executive Director with effect from 8 20142 A 18H BB IENTTES
18 February 2014
(b) Interest of Directors (b) EERR

M

During the year, no retirement benefits, payments
or benefits in respect of termination of directors’
services were paid or made, directly or indirectly,
to the directors; nor are any payable (2014: Nil).
No consideration was provided to or receivable by
third parties for making available directors’ services
(2014: Nil).

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings
in favour of directors, their controlled bodies
corporate and connected entities (2014: Nil).

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year (2014:
Nil).
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B 7 R R B &
(c) Five Highest Paid Individuals (0 ENEREHF AL
During the year, the five individuals whose emoluments FAAEERUGRFATEENA
were the highest in the Group include four directors (20145 M) EF FE 2B FHRH
(2014: two) whose emoluments are included in note 9(a). 39 cFA B FHM—F (2014F : =
The emoluments payable to the other one (2014: three) B)EREHFALTZHESFBWOT
highest paid individuals during the year are as follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PR T IT
Salaries, allowances and e EUREYN =
benefits in kind 1,717 4,879
Discretionary bonus BIETEAL - 1,400
Pension — defined contribution scheme iR k& — & 3zt 2l - 80
Share options expense FE R 65 337
1,782 6,696
The emoluments of the above individuals fell within the AL e N FATEE:

following bands:

Number of individuals

AE
2015 2014
Emolument band i < & (2]
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 75 #1,000,001 7T £ % #2,000,0007T 1 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 75 #£2 000,001 7T £ /% #3,000,0007T - =
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 75 13,000,001 7T £ /% #4,000,0007T - 1
1 &
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the FR - AEETERETNANESFALTS
Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as an RS - {ERIRE AN A SN A R &K B
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as KB sk VE A BERL I (E -
compensation for loss of office.
10 Share Option Scheme 10 EBRR#ESTE
The Company has the Old Option Scheme and New Option RAElRE EBRRE S R ERERT S (FER
Scheme (details of which have been set out on pages 68 to 76 RAFRFECETCE ) - RIEBERIETE - EFF
of this annual report). Under the option schemes, the directors BEMBEEAEEBAL BREAQRIHENB
may at their absolute discretion grant options to eligible RElZEEXESE L BRE-
persons who are employees or directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries.
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Movements in the share options under the Option Scheme WAREA - IRIREARE & 2 BERRE 2 2 85I
during the last 2 years are shown as follows: R

Average Number of

exercise price share options

FIGITEE BREZE

(HKS$ per share) ‘000

(BRABBIT) (Fh)

As at 1 January 2014 R2014F1H1H 0.90 31,400

Exercised BT 0.86 (3,890)

Lapsed B3 0.91 (4,950)
As at 31 December 2014 and 2014512 A31H &

1 January 2015 20151 A1H 0.90 22,560
Exercised [EEGRES 0.88 (11,786)
Lapsed B R 0.92 (2,280)
As at 31 December 2015 12015128318 0.95 8,494

During the year, the weighted average closing price of the RAFEE RARAIRONEEBREETEA A
share of the Company immediately before the dates on HA 2 A 39 Ui (B A 7S 162.800T (20144 « /B
which the share options were exercised was HK$2.80 (2014: 1.257%) °

HK$1.25).

Out of 8,494,000 outstanding options (2014: 22,560,000),
1,494,000 options (2014: 5,470,000) were exercisable with the
average exercise price of HK$0.94 (2014: HK$0.88).

728,494,00017 1) K 17 F &) f#E A% #& (20144 :
22,560,00017 ) # + H A11,494,00017 i A% # (2014
F :5,470,00010 ) R AITTERY - FIITHEE BB
0.947T (20144 : B #0.887T) °

Share options outstanding have the following expiry date and BARITE AR 2 BB RATEELDT
exercise price:

Average Number of
Expiry date 2|EA exercise price share options (‘000)
FiTEE BREHE (TR)

(HK$ per share)

(FRE®TT) 2015 2014
31 August 2015 20158 A31H 0.76 - 1,500
24 September 2015 201599 A24H 0.82 - 3,500
24 September 2015 201599 A24H 0.996 - 150
27 May 2017 2017F5A27H 0.952 800 1,200
6 June 2017 20176 A6H 0.86 360 910
15 October 2018 2018F10H15H 0.85 100 2,400
27 May 2019 2019F5H27H 0.952 7,234 12,900
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B 7 R R B &
11 Taxation 11 BiE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of RERZHWBEBNESHDIREEFE 2 G5t ERN
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits for the year after m AR B EFEE 2 PR EBRIATE16.5%
application of available tax losses brought forward for both B - AL B 2 BN FRIB IR AFE (G5 ER
years. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on PEMAEEEMERR 2IBITHEAE -
the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.
The amount of tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated REBRRENR (A ZRBESBENT
income statement represents:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T PR T IT
Current taxation & HAR IR
Hong Kong profits tax BB MEH
— provision for the year —FAEE 14,208 10,698
— (over)/under provision in prior years —BAEFE (B8 /TR
e (340) 10
Overseas tax BN IR
— provision for the year —FREE 3 1,601
— over provision in prior years —BEFEBERE (39) -
Deferred taxation (note 25) EIEFETE (FI7E25) (1,589) (1,553)
12,243 10,756
The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from REBRBANRN 2 HIBHEE AN RRAEBRR 2
the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate MEEEEZERBAZIEBOT
of the home country of the Company as follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Profit before taxation B B4 A s 1 67,524 56,098
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% B E16.5%1 & 11,142 9,256
Effect of different taxation rates in BB igER T RRE 8
other tax jurisdictions 277 159
(Oven)/under provision in prior years BEFE (B8 TREE (379) 10
Income not subject to taxation BAEZRFREA (41) (184)
Expenses not deductible for taxation OGIEE 1753
purposes 1,542 366
(Utilisation of unrecognized tax losses)/ (BARERRZHIEBRE)
Unrecognised tax losses REFERZBIIEEE (298) 1,149
12,243 10,756
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B 3 R MY =
12 Dividends 12 RE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
(@)  Dividends attributable @ AFEERMLHEKE:
to the current year:
Interim dividend paid of 2.5 HK cents B AR HA IR BB k2 541
(2014: 3.0 HK cents) (20144 : FE#3.01L) 10,688 12,392
Final dividend proposed of 2.5 HK cents EERHER BB B2.50
(2014: 4.0 HK cents) (20144 : 7 ¥&4.010) 10,692 16,636
21,380 29,028
(o)  Dividends attributable to the previous (b)) B F—EAEE  NERIE
year, approved and paid during REMZRE:
the year:
Final dividend of 4.0 HK cents REARE B8 # 4,011
(2014: 3.5 HK cents) (20144F : FE#&3.51L) 16,844 14,420

At a meeting held on 23 March 2016, the Company’s board
of directors resolved to recommend a final dividend of 2.5 HK
cents for the year ended 31 December 2015. This proposed
final dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these
financial statements, until it has been approved by the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.
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13 Earnings Per Share

(@)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
Group’s profit attributable to the equity holders less
dividends to convertible preference shareholders by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt F R B =

13 BRER

(@)

SRERBFDHRBBERBAREAEE
it MR P B B SR R R A 2 BB BRI
FADBTEBRMEFHEGE -

2015 2014
Profit attributable to equity holders fEHERE ARG (BT )
(HK$'000) 55,281 45,342
Less: dividends to convertible B EREERREREAZ
preference shareholders BB (¥ TFIT)
(HK$’000) (4,000) (5,600)
Profit attributable to ordinary LmR RSB AL R A
shareholders (HK$'000) (BEFIT) 51,281 39,742
Weighted-average ordinary shares BEITTRRINETHEE (TR)
issued ('000) 343,163 332,952
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BRERZRN GBEBI) 14.9 11.9

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the Group’s profit attributable to the equity holders
by the weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding
after adjusting for the potential dilutive effect in respect
of outstanding employee share options and potential
ordinary shares to be issued on convertible preference
shares during the year.

(o)

FREERNRIERT A ARGEAEERE TR
VAR 38 B 45 1 1) R 7T 168 (R B8 P P e B ek Pl 3t
BRBETHTEELTBRZEEZE(ELR
BERZBETEBRINETIEE -

2015 2014

Profit attributable to equity holders R ARG RN CE¥ETT)

(HK$’000) 55,281 45,342
Weighted-average ordinary shares BETTRRINETHEE (TR)

issued ('000) 343,163 332,952
Adjustments for share options ('000) FERRRE 2 SR B (T AR) 7,575 5,270
Adjustments for potential ordinary 1B FEIT2EELRR AR

shares to be issued ('000) (FA%) 80,000 80,000
Weighted-average ordinary shares STESREERN 2 EER

for calculating diluted earnings per mEFEHE (F&R)

share ('000) 430,738 418,222
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FREERF (BEAL) 12.8 10.8
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Bt 7 SR AR BT

14 Property, Plant and Equipment

14 Y% HERRE

Leasehold Motor Furniture and
improvements vehicles equipment Total
HENFEEE RE HERZE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BT
Cost KA
At 1 January 2014 R2014E1A1H 6,181 4,069 49,899 60,149
Exchange differences ERER 6) ©) (32) 47)
Additions AE 672 280 3,001 3,953
Disposals & 479 (365) (578) (1,422)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31H 6,368 3,975 52,290 62,633
Exchange differences ERESE (17) (59) (216) (292)
Additions AE 185 88 2,429 2,102
Disposals HE - (263) (1,320) (1,583)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RRBAR (186) = (759) (945)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12H31H 6,350 3,741 52,424 62,515
Accumulated depreciation 2HHE
At 1 January 2014 R201451 A18 (5,444) (2,545) (41,155) (49,144)
Exchange differences ERAZER 8 6 18 32
Depreciation e (600) (765) (4,482) (5,847)
Disposals HE 475 179 563 1,217
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12H31H (5,561) (3,125) (45,056) (53,742)
Exchange differences ERZER 12 56 194 262
Depreciation il (297) (568) (3,560) (4,425)
Disposals HE = 244 1,106 1,349
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBAA 186 - 738 924
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12A31A (5,660) (3,393) (46,579) (55,632)
Closing net book value FRBEFE
At 31 December 2015 M2015F12A31H 690 348 5,845 6,883
At 31 December 2014 M2014F12A31R 807 850 7,234 8,891
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e
15 Investment Properties 15 REWE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
At 1 January (as previously report) M1 A1E (BEERS) 2,800 3,170
Unrealised gain arising from AABEEEE 2 KRBT
change in fair value 240 530
Disposal HE - (900)
At 31 December M®12H31H 3,040 2,800
Properties in Hong Kong held under medium-  RIEFHAAEFE T EWE
term lease (more than ten years but less (FB10F 1B L HR50%F)
than fifty years) 3,040 2,800

Note: The investment properties were valued as of year-end

(a)

date on the basis of their open market value by an
independent professional property valuer, Jones Lang
LaSalle Limited.

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group measures its investment properties at fair
value. The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 December 2015 has been determined on the
basis of valuations carried out by independent valuers
not related to the Group. The Group engaged Jones
Lang LaSalle Limited to value its investment properties.
Discussion of valuation processes and results are held
between the Group’s senior management and valuers
at least once every six months, in line with the Group’s
interim and annual reporting dates. At each reporting
date the Group’s senior management:

- verifies all major inputs to the independent
valuation report;

- assess property valuations movement when
compared to the prior period valuation report; and

- holds discussions with the independent valuers.

Change in Levels 2 and 3 fair values are also analysed
at each reporting date during the bi-annual valuations
discussions date between the Group’s senior
management.

Mia: REMERFRABISENELEMTE

BITARD R AR M EREME -

() XEBEZHERRF
AEBREARBEHEEREME - LB
REYER2015F12 831 H Z AR B TR
AN EE B 2R B E v B S (i ERD T 2 hEEE
FoANEEZBRHEMITERARNEERE
MEBETHE - AEB S AT IEE R (EER
ZELBXNEAR (BAEBEZHHARFERE
BE—R)#ET—RHERFRERT®-
REREBH AEBSREEE:

- BRBUGERSANMEERHA
g

— HEIF-HRNHERSETLREF
EYELEED R

- HERVHEMETHR-
AEESREREBTHE_REE=MR2A

BZEPNEREAPET - FMEZGE
A EIT AT o
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B 35 AR B o

other observable inputs (Level 2)

Fair value of the investment properties are derived using
the direct comparison method. This valuation method is
based on comparing the property to be valued directly
with other comparable properties, which have recently
transacted. However, given the heterogeneous nature
of the properties, appropriate adjustments are usually
required to allow for any qualitative differences that may
affect the price likely to be achieved by the property
under consideration.
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(b) Fair value hierarchy (b) 2REEHR

The following tables analyses the fair value of investment TR TRABRZIEEMEAREIT

properties at different levels defined as follows: BHEESR 2 EE ﬁD T

= quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for — REEEFEBERERMS LEZ®RE
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1). (REHE) (F—HR) -

= inputs other than quoted prices included within — FAE—RAZHMEUIINZEESE
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, B2 EREASE  TwERE (AE
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that )k (FTEBER) (B24&) -
is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

—  inputs for the asset or liability that are not based — WHERUEBEMSHBECEEXE
on observable market data (that is, unobservable ia\ ) /\%(T)‘5 (TR AZIE) (£
inputs) (Level 3).

Quoted

prices in Significant
active market other Significant
for identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
EEEE BAHAh BX
RIERTE L T B 52 IRk
ZRE WABE BWABE
(E—#) (B=#) (B=#)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
PR T T AT T PR T IT

Recurring fair value BREMEARETE
measurements

Investment properties LAY - 3,040 -

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 AEBEN F—R F_HMRE=H 2B

during the year. fmEEo

Fair vale measurements using significant FERAERHMAGRGAREZA

REE(F=R)

BEAMEZ DA EEAEELBAGH - it

(RTINS T A5E 2 PRSI 52 1

AT & LB (T2 BB A KR A
B 2 i TR A
HUBE AR T A Y BRI
AE R B EAELER-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and Special Projects business and Hsin Chong abp Company
Limited in 2012 and 2015 respectively include goodwill,
trademark, backlog orders and non-competition agreement.

In December 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of
70% equity interest of Hsin Chong abp Company Limited from
its fellow subsidiary, Hsin Chong Construction (Asia) Limited; at
a cash consideration of HK$1 (note (a)).

Through the transaction of acquisition of Hsin Chong abp
Company Limited, the management anticipated that the
Group will take advantage of its resources and strengths to
complement the Interiors and Special Projects business.

The acquisition related costs of the business combinations
were not significant and had been charged to general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The revenue and the results contributed by these acquisitions
of the Group for the period since the date of acquisitions were
insignificant to the Group. The Group’s revenue and results for
the period would not be materially different if these acquisitions
had occurred on 1 January 2015.

e
16 Intangible Assets and Goodwill 16 BEEEREBE
Non-
Backlog  competition
Goodwill || Trademark orders  agreement Total
G BE  AZRITE  THRIHE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cost 2
At 1 January 2014 & 1 January 2015 R2014F1 18 &2015%1 818 168,968 48,826 15,934 2,393 67,153
Addition for the year ERLEM 2,826 = = = =
At 31 December 2015 RN20155128318 171,794 48,826 15,934 2,393 67,153
Accumulated amortisation Zitl
At1 January 2014 Ro014%1A1R - (3,526) (5,754) (173) (0,453)
Amortisation for the year EREE - (3,255) (6,311) (160) (8,726)
At 31 December 2014 #2014E12A31H - (6,781) (11,085) (333) (18,179)
Amortisation for the year EREE - (3,255) (4,869) (159) (8,283)
At 31 December 2015 #2015F12A31H - (10,036) (15,934) (492) (26,462)
Net Book Value BEFE
At 31 December 2015 #2015F12A31H 171,794 38,790 - 1,901 40,691
At 31 December 2014 M2014F12A31H 168,968 42,045 4,869 2,060 48,974
Intangible assets arising from the acquisition of the Interiors 20124 R2015F 9 pl g = A RS BRI B

EGRNEEBARARELEZETLEEDHE
ERE AR ATHFIERTHFHE-

R2015F 128 AEBTHK B HER ZMBARIFE
BER (M BERARKEFEEEZERAAZ
m%%% BN BEBE1T (K@) °

BEERY ERKENEE
AEEBINBEERLES
JHHE X

%ﬁﬁﬁ AlZzX5:

REAKE Rk

ZWEEB 2 ERERAHRALTEX WER
HZE2015F12A31B L FEZHRABRRAAR
A ﬂx&ﬁﬁ(ﬁﬂi

ZEWESEAWREEEASEHMEE 2 s
MEEHALEMEBTEXN WZERESFED
R2015F1 A1 AE AL AEERZBB 2 W K
BErrTeHREAER-
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B 7 R R Y &
(a) Assets acquired and liabilities (@) RIWEBHFMWEBEEERFTER
recognised at the date of acquisition afE
Total
5t
HK$’'000
BT
Current assets REEE
Contracting work in progress B R TR 3,729
Receivables JFE YRR TR 258
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEE 263
Total current assets REEEHE 4,250
Current liabilities nEAE
Payables and accruals FERERF R EGEA 2,335
Amount due to related companies FE T R B A R RRIR 5,952
Total current liabilities RBEEERE 8,287
Net current liabilities REBEETERE 4,037
(b) Non-controlling Interests (b) FIERER
The non-controlling interests (30% ownership interest) RURE B HRRER 2 JF R 25 (B0%FT B &
recognised at the acquisition date was measured with W) ISR EIFERER Z AR BERTE
reference to the fair value of the non-controlling interests £ %8578 %1,211,0007T °
and amounted to HK$1,211,000.
() Goodwill Arising on Acquisition () WBEEELZESE
Total
45T
HK$’'000
BT
Consideration RE -
Plus: non-controlling interests o0 e R R 1,211
Less: fair value of identifiable net assets B T BB EEFEC ARE
acquired (4,037)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEREELZEE 2,826
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17

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business combination. Annual
assessment of any impairment of goodwill is based on the
recoverable amount of the Interiors & Special Projects segment
derived from cash flow projections based on approved
management budget over a three-year period. Cash flows
beyond the three-year period are extrapolated with zero growth
rate. A discount rate of 14.7% was adopted to reflect specific
risk relating to the segment. The key assumptions adopted
are the discount rates, growth rates and projected operating
profit, which were determined based on past performance
and management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable changes
in any of the above key assumptions will not cause the carrying
amount of goodwill to excel the recoverable amount.

The trademark refers to the use of the “Hsin Chong” in
Hong Kong. Other than the value included in the acquisition
consideration, there is no on-going fee for utilizing the
trademarks. Although there is no expiry date, management has
adopted a 15 year useful life for amortisation purpose.

Backlog orders refers to the contractual sales that are
outstanding at time of acquisition, totalling around HK$300
million, from which there is a set of expected benefits to
be received and accordingly management has adopted
amortisation over 3 years.

Based on the non-competition agreement, management has
adopted amortisation over 15 years.

Contracting Work-in-Progress

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt F R B =

FESREERRERSHTPEEN R 2 NEE
MEELEES u°&'ﬂﬁ;§ﬁﬁﬁhzaﬁt/ﬁm 5
2 ERBRRENRS MIBAGE & E AR KR
BB » R Y E & FHETFE TG o FTE = F 5
NEMBR SRR REREE  WRATIRE
14.7% AR R b5 3 2 e Rk - FTRA®E
EZRFATRE - WRERBEHLERT EHERK
& E*E?Fiﬁﬁi‘%ﬁ&kéfiﬁm%?@zmﬁﬁtﬁiﬁ

IE*Eﬁiﬂ&ﬂleﬁ:“E’]E&ﬂ/\@—fﬁ
""""" YT SENNECRHERAKRE SR

PRI MBS A [Hsin Chong J BI1R % < BRET A
WK ENEEN ﬁﬂ@‘iﬁﬁﬁhﬁ’]ﬁf%ﬁﬁ &
EWEIAA  EIEEIRISF A ERFHETE

REMRFTEERIEE B RAEENAOHEE 614
#9785 #300,000,0007T * I #& F U BY — Z 1] 78 Hf F|
&= B E IR B IR AT -

RETBF W EEERISFHETHE-

FEANTRE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Gross amounts due from customers for FEREF 2z TRRIEEE
contract work 299,158 180,871
Contract costs incurred plus attributable FREE A& %K 25 I FE A 3 F1 R
profits less foreseeable losses Al 78 R E 1B 1,526,845 1,235,523
Less: progress payments received and B R WG T S R
receivable (1,250,872) (1,056,217)
Contracting work-in-progress FERH TR 275,973 179,306
Representing by: 2575
Gross amounts due from customers for FEREZEFHIRETSIE
contract work included in stocks and EREF 2 TRKIEERE
contracting work-in-progress 299,158 180,871
Gross amounts due to customers for contract BT BRZX K fET & FHIE N & 4
work included in payables and accruals ENEFPZIRRIBEEE (23,185) (1,565)
275,973 179,306
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B 7 R R Y &
18 Receivables, Deposits and Prepayments 18 FEWERR - RE&RANFE
As of 31 December 2015, accounts receivable of 2015512 A31 8 - 2 % Hi{B R R E 2 FE W BR 5%
HK$76,221,000 (2014: HK$75,104,000) were past due but not A5 176,221,0007T (20144 : ¥ #75,104,000
impaired. These related to a number of independent customers T0) o WS RE BRI W BB R GRS BB o K
for whom there is no recent history of default. The credit period SEEKER ZEEH—MNTFI0HZE60H (2014
of the Group’s accounts receivable generally ranges from F:30%260H) - HBHBHE S B 2 BIERFZER
30 to 60 days (2014: 30 to 60 days). The ageing analysis of BOMTAT
accounts receivable by due date is as follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PR T IT
Accounts receivable FEWBR X
Not yet due i) 7~ 8 B 239,032 150,959
1 to 30 days 1230H 28,894 31,942
31 to 60 days 31£260H 28,939 10,985
61 to 90 days 61290H 5,761 11,249
Over 90 days 90H KA £ 12,627 20,928
315,253 226,063
Retention receivables EWRE S 122,303 69,030
Other receivables H b e BR =X 33,321 30,996
Receivables FE W BR X 470,877 326,089
Deposits and prepayments REeRBENRIE 35,545 56,136
506,422 382,225
At 31 December 2015, retention receivables amounted to 201512 H31H « & & 4% %121,121,0007T
approximately HK$121,121,000 (2014: HK$67,853,000) were (20144 : #%67,853,0007T ) K FEUIRE € JH R E
held by customers for construction work. ETIREFPFEE-
The majority of the Group’s accounts receivable are REE 2 KEB 5 R R R R B EHE ° FR20154F
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. There were no accounts 12A31H » WA ERERURME (20145 : &) - IR
receivables impaired as of 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil). The LHHPABRNEAEERR A il BUER R Z R
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the EE - ANQFWEFEEAMERRERER-
carrying value of the accounts receivable mentioned above.
The company does not hold any collateral as security.
19 Balances with Fellow Subsidiaries, 19 AEMBAR RAERARRIKE

Ultimate Holding Company and
Non-controlling Interests

Balances with fellow subsidiaries, ultimate holding company
and non-controlling interests are unsecured, interest free,
repayable on demand with no fixed terms of repayment and
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Balances included receivables in trade nature amounted to
HK$678,000 (2014: HK$6,686,000) and HK$50,505,000
(2014: HK$45,527,000) due from ultimate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries respectively, which are not yet due and
fully performing.
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B 7 R R B &
20 Deposit, Cash and Cash Equivalents 20 FR-HEeERREEE
Group
RE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T PR T oT
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEHE 128,190 90,508
Term deposits with original maturities BRHBEA=EAUTH
less than 3 months TEBSRITER 1,651 687
129,841 91,195
The majority of the Group’s deposit, cash and cash equivalents AEBZEFER ReRBSSERNIBHNEE RS
is denominated in Hong Kong dollars. iz e
21 Payables and Accruals 21 ERERRREGTER
The credit period of the Group’s accounts payable generally AEEREMERRZEEH KN TI0ZE60H (2014
ranges from 30 to 60 days (2014: 30 to 60 days). The ageing F:30260H) - HBHHE S B2 EAKRKZER
analysis of accounts payable by due date is as follows: RO :
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PR T IT
Accounts payable FESERX
Not yet due i) 7K 360 Hf 372,109 238,348
1 to 30 days 1230H 43,250 19,612
31 to 60 days 31260H 9,684 6,549
61 to 90 days 61290H 2,545 8,074
Over 90 days 90H A £ 11,998 14,536
439,586 287,019
Retention payables, other payables EARES HitENERR
and accruals EstE& R 191,210 144,744
630,796 431,763
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B 3 R MY =
22 Share Capital 22 A
Number of
shares Amount
g = &8
‘000 HK$’000
T A% BRI
Issued and fully paid: BEZEITRHE -
Ordinary shares AR
At 1 January 2015 201551 A1H 335,890 33,589
Share issued upon exercise of options RIRIE IR AT 811 1 2 B AR
granted under the Share Option Scheme 1T m TR AR (D 11,786 1,179
At 31 December 2015 MA2015%12H31H 347,676 34,768
Convertible preference shares A B IRB SR
At 1 January 2015 7201551 A1H 80,000 8,000
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12831H 80,000 8,000
Ordinary shares and convertible preference EZETRHEZ ZERK
shares issued and fully paid A B2 PR B IT R
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12H31H 427,676 42,768
At 31 December 2014 M2014F12 H31H 415,890 41,589

23

24

Capital and Reserves 23
Details of movement in the reserves of the Group are set out

on page 91.

Long Service Payment Liabilities 24

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees
who have completed at least five years of service with the
Group. The amount payable is dependent on the employee’s
final salary and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements
accrued under the Group’s defined contribution retirement
scheme that is attributable to contributions made by the
Group. The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any
remaining obligations.

1 32 Synergis Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

BAR#E
AEERBERDHERNENE

RUBRBEREE

REEE (BEED)  ARBEFEERARAEE
REFEZEAFHIALMAEE THEATELRE
MEENE—EENSHE - MXNNEBEDIRERE
BNERFHS MRFFHMET  YINREBER
SEREHRFRING T B N B RT3
2RI o AN B B (B E A R E R FIERE
BEfERHES-
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e
The liability recognised in the balance sheet is present value of REEBBERNERZEBDARBNERZE
unfunded obligation and its movements are as follows: BEREZHNOT:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At 1 January Mm1B1H 1,940 1,642
Net charge to the income statement B &k ik FE
Current service cost BIVER AR 75 Ak AN 110 134
Interest cost FI BB AR 16 13
126 147
Net credit to other comprehensive income 70 Lt 2 EII A R 5 A S48
Remeasurements: BHEE:
Actuarial loss arising from: BATEEBEEAZBEERS:
Liability experience KR 2,091 1,572
Financial assumptions B ISR % 359 (498)
2,450 1,624
oter  H®
Benefits paid EENEEE (539) (1,373)
At 31 December M12H31H 3,977 1,940
The principal actuarial assumptions used for accounting RETENRAZCEEBERIWT :
purposes are as follows:
2015 2014
% %
Discount rate BRI X 0.7 0.9
Long-term salary increase rate KRG SRR 4.0 3.5
Long term average expected return on BHMAREEEEEZ
mandatory provident fund scheme assets REIF9 TEHA B3R 4.0 45
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 75 3 2R B =
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in AERAINEEHEAFTEBREFHHHXMLEST
the significant principal assumptions are as follows. R o
Impact on defined benefit obligation
AERMEEZE
Change Increase Decrease
in assumption in assumption in assumption
BB B® 12 08238 W B
Discount rate 0.25% Decrease by 0.7% Increase by 0.7%
AL IR WA0.7% ¥ $N0.7%
Long-term salary increase rate 0.25% Increase by 2.4% Decrease by 2.4%
ROHFEERE ¥ N2.4% W2.4%
Long-term average expected return on mandatory
provident fund scheme assets 0.25% Decrease by 1.9% Increase by 1.9%
BEMEATEEEEEE 2 R TR @R W1.9% ¥ H01.9%
The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an N ESRESTEERRF —ERZARE  mE
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. MERZANEEEE BER L FERRE T A8
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some BAR RREEREZZEH S AEEN &
of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating FEREENRERREZEATENE K
the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant RRERS - A TR A (REd B A TE s B AL
actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the ANEEZEATRNEEMNIEE) -
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit
credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been
applied.
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation 72015412 431 H 7€ 18 FIl & (£ &9 hn#& 19 B R
is 2.7 years as at 31 December 2015. B2 TF -
25 Deferred Taxation 25 EEMHIE
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences BEFRIBERANGERAELE R 2o MEZREEE
under the liability method using tax rates substantively enacted MERERTEGE EEHIEAERE FHE ¥
as at the balance sheet date. The movement on the net CLOINE
deferred tax liabilities account is as follows:
Group
EH
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Beginning of the year F9) 8,715 10,268
Deferred taxation recognised in consolidated ~ R4R A B RER 2 IELEF 1H
income statement (note 11) (FFzE11) (1,589) (1,553)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 27) & — B AR (KaE27) 15 -
End of the year FR 7,141 8,715
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B #5 ¥R R B =
The movement on the deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior BERIBEENEE (RERBR AR EHELE
to offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) ERATME AN 2 BT
during the year is as follows:
Group
AEE
Deferred tax liabilities Deferred tax assets
EERELE BEHEEE
Accelerated Accounting
tax Intangible tax
depreciation assets Total depreciation Total
MEBIBHE B EE @ enhiEnE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

At 1 January 2014 R2014F1A1H 1,129 9,620 10,649 (381) (381)
Credited to consolidated income REBBRERTA

statement (351) (1,439) (1,790) - -
Charged to consolidated income Rire Bax ik

statement = = = 237 237
At 31 December 2014 R20144 12318 778 8,081 8,859 (144) (144)
Credited to consolidated income RESBRERTA

statement (260) (1,367) (1,627) = =
Charged to consolidated income RirEBax Ik

statement - - - 53 53
At 31 December 2015 R2015512A31H 518 6,714 7,232 (91) (91)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried MAEENRIBEBEMERNEEHBEEEERRN
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax BEZBBHRRAE I LEBRRERT &M E
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The Group RAEH - AKE 2 AERRIBEEE BEEE
has unrecognised tax losses of HK$52,877,000 (2014: 52,877,0007T (20144F : % #56,997,0007T ) * A] 4
HK$56,997,000) to carry forward against future taxable a3 DA $H R 2R 2 FE SR A » B 2B 532,802,000
income. Tax losses amounting to HK$32,802,000 will expire at T2 RIEEB BN EE R B IE2020%F (20144 : &
various dates up to and including 2020 (2014: HK$38,035,000 #£38,085,0007T ' B £ & B 120195 ) 9~ [E B 5
(up to and including 2019). The remaining tax losses do not e o 84T 8O T T8 B 18 30 4 i B HA

have expiry dates.
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B 35 AR B o

ERZAEARTEMNAISEMHAEELE AN

HAREHE MELTHEY RFE— B - A

H%%ELZ‘R’IEﬁ?éﬁiLkﬁlﬁ’EﬁEﬁﬁ%’ cFEFTA
BERER TR EGAEERBRRAIIK.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the

same fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after

appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance

sheet.
Group
rE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Deferred tax assets EREHIEEE (91) (144)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEEE 7,232 8,859
7,141 8,715
26 Bank Loans 26 RITER
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T AT T
Portion due for repayment within one year 16 A EIHEZE T G 209,536 139,000
Portion due for repayment after one year, 1B EIBEE S - MR IREK
which contains a clause of repayment on EZEIER
demand
(i) in the second year ()ZB24F 84,000 24,000
(i) in the third to fifth years, inclusive (VEIFEEF (BIEERME) - 84,000
Total bank loans RITERAARE 293,536 247,000
Notes: B 5
(a) As at 31 December 2015, the Group had bank loans (a) M2015F12831H AL BHRTEREE

of HK$244,992,000 (2014: HK$247,000,000) and
HK$48,544,000 (2014: Nil) denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Macau Pataca respectively.

244,992,0007T (20144 : B #6247, ooo 0007T)
K % ¥48,544,0007T (20144 : #&) » 5 Bl Jh LA
PR IR -

(o)  The bank loans of the Group carried weighted average ) AEBZRITERZMEFHENEE2.7%
interest rates of 2.7% (2014: 2.9%) per annum. (20144 :2.9% ) °

(©) The Group’s bank loan of HK$108,000,000 (2014: (c) AEE 2 R1TE H A7 %108,000,0007T (2014
HK$132,000,000) is subject to a floating charge over the -/%MBZ,OO0,000TE) CETBEMB AR
assets of its subsidiaries. BEEZBHL -

(d)  The carrying amounts of loans approximate their fair values. d EXNEEEEEAREES-
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27 Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

Optimum Engineering Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group, was disposed in December 2015 at a cash

consideration of HK$1,770,000.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt F R B =

27 HE—ENBARZERE

AEBZ2EWNBRARZETIRERARER2015
FI2AME B NREAB1,770,0007T

Total
st
HK$’000
PR T IT
Net asset disposed EHEEEFE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WS KRR 21
Deferred tax assets BETIBE E 15
Total non-current assets EMBEELTE 36
Current assets REEE
Contracting work in progress FEPH TE 8,261
Receivables JiE U BR 3R 18,549
Deposits and prepayments %4 RIBNFIE 750
Cash and cash equivalents ReMEeEE 827
Total current assets MBI EERRE 28,387
Current liabilities nEEE
Payables and accruals FETBRR KR FEET & F 24,004
Taxation payable FEfHBETE 392
Total current liabilities mE B EERE 24,396
Net current assets REBEEFE 3,991
Total assets less current liability EERERRBEE 4,027
Consideration R1E 1,770
Less: fair value of identifiable net assets BT E R BRI B EFE
disposed NI (4,027)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMNBARZEE 2,257
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEEZRERAFE
Cash received BEWIR e 1,770
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FILEReRREE (827)
Net cashflow in respect of the disposal of HE&E—EHEB AT
a subsidiary RBEeRHFE 943
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B 7 R R Y &
28 Operating Lease Commitments 28 REHEAE
The future aggregate minimum lease rental expenses under RENAHEGECEHEARBASIHHRERS
non-cancellable operating leases payable are as follows: BERBEENAT
Land and buildings Office equipment
TiREF BAERE
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT BETR BETT
Within one year —FR 10,686 10,442 524 392
In the second to fifth years inclusive £=FZERHF (BEEREMTE) 4,280 3,543 664 960
14,966 13,985 1,188 1,352
29 Notes to Statement of Cash Flows 29 BEREXRMETE
Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from A RS EE 2R HRER
operations
2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 BT T ST T
Profit before taxation B B A1 4 ) 67,524 56,098
Share option expenses BRERS 958 1,728
Depreciation e 4,425 5,847
Amortisation of intangible assets R EERH 8,283 8,726
Net finance cost B & A H R 6,906 7,250
Fair value gains AN EkE (240) (530)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME BBENKREZ
plant and equipment BB, (W) 134 (49)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RNB AR ZER 27 2,257 =
Gain on disposal of an HEREMFE 2 W
investment property - (400)
Operating profit before working capital LEESEHA 2
changes R T 90,247 78,670
(Increase)/decrease in contracting FEREHTE
work-in-progress (&m),mb (122,819) 58,577
Increase in receivables JE W BR SR 38 N (163,656) (381)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and e RIEMNFIE
prepayments A (HEhn) 19,841 (36,880)
Decrease in amounts due to JE {<F HL th 3£ R A8 & A K
other partner of joint operations TE Rk A (138) (42)
Change in net balances with FEN RS T RS
related companies (16,638) (65,100)
Change in net balance with RS TR
non-controlling interests 1,148 -
Increase in payables and accruals and FERIRF - B EA R
long service payment liabilities EHRE S A EEMN 220,188 48,206
Exchange translation & 5, - 35
Cash generated from operations CEREREE RS 28,173 83,085
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30 Related Party Transactions

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt F R B =

30 BEAELXRS
(a) TEEEABEH M

(@) Key management personnel

(b)

compensation

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the
key management personnel compensation was
approximately HK$18,427,000 (2014: HK$19,834,000).

HE2015F12A31BILFE T EEEAS
3 B 40 /% 78 #518,427,0007T (20144F: 7B
19,834,0007T ) ©

Significant related party transactions (b) EXBEALRE
Summary of the significant related party transactions REEETIERBEATRSHMENT
carried out by the Group is as follows:
2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
h=g BT T BT T
Service charges paid to M IR R ZA RS E
— ultimate holding company — ERARYE AR A A 0] (7,254) (8,896)
— fellow subsidiaries —RRKER A 0] (11,418) (22,151)
Facility management income from 2R —f R ZKE Q7 2%
a fellow subsidiary HEEUA (ii) - 396
Rental expenses paid to ERINGIFENEE A
— ultimate holding company — S RZER AT (i) (936) (654)
— fellow subsidiaries — [RI Z B &8 2 &) (i) (4,760) @,771)
Services income from KB T3 RRZREKA
— ultimate holding company — R ARVERR A A (iv) 3,728 3,381
— fellow subsidiaries —REWERA (iv) 15,984 14,854
Contracting work’s income from RETHRBZAEL
TRREA
— ultimate holding company — R ER AR v) - 6,109
— fellow subsidiaries —RZRKE R A ) 248,653 292,044

Notes:

U

(i)

)

(V)

Service charges paid in respect of administrative
services provided by ultimate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries to the Group which were
reimbursed at cost based on time and expenses
allocated to the Group.

Facility management income earned for services
rendered to a fellow subsidiary are charged, which
was mutually agreed by both parties.

Rental expenses paid to ultimate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries based on actual usage and
market rent.

Services income earned on services including
leasing services, consultancy fee, security, repair and
maintenance, laundry, cleaning, etc. rendered, which
were mutually agreed by both parties.

Contracting work’s income earned from ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries, which was
mutually agreed by both parties.

(i)

)

()

e NG AT ES O] PN S
IR ¢ TERSHE RBER - iR
BAREAEE Y BHRNTRRAR
fifo

R BAUA TR T 5 5 A — R &
B /8 2> RIER A 2 AR5 T U AR

AR AR A R LR R B AR N2
MEeRsx  IREERRZ LT SHESE
Eia

SRR (RIEHEE R - BERE RS

Rz HERRE ARBRERS)
FRER Z BRFS U - THIREE 75 197 5E T 4R

I A REZERABRRRMBRT 2
BHIRRA BEFTNETHERE -

2015 H HEEEEEERLA
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B 3 R MY =
31 Balance sheet and reserve of the 31 AR ElEEABRRAEE
Company
Balance Sheet of the Company KAREERER
As at 31 December 2015 R2015F12H31H
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T ST
Non-current assets FRBEE
Subsidiaries LIPEENG] 85,179 87,512
Total non-current assets FREBEEREE 85,179 87,512
Currentassets  &m&®E
Deposits and prepayments e KB HIE 299 299
Amounts due from subsidiaries i by =N E ] 264,911 282,112
Deposit, cash and cash equivalents ER-BHekBeEE 208 261
Total current assets MEEEHEE 265,418 282,672
Current liabilites ~ =#sa&
Payables and accruals ENERKESER 2,600 2,828
Bank loans RITEX 108,000 132,000
Total current liabilities RBaEARE 110,600 134,828
Netcurrentassets  nh@meE¥E 200000 154818 147,844
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERRBAE 239,997 235,356
Net assets EEFE 239,997 235,356
Equity attributable to equity holders of AABREFEAELES
the Company
Share capital A& A 42,768 41,589
Retained profits and other reserves RB & R E b EE 186,537 177,131
Proposed dividends R A% B 10,692 16,636
Total equity R 239,997 235,356
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the ARRlEEBBERLEESEEN2016F3H238 #it
Board of Directors on 23 March 2016 and was signed on its B WHRNATALTREESE -
behalf.
Joseph Choi Kin Hung £ {8 Lui Chun Pong = #& #8
Chairman /& Director &%
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B 7 R 2R B =
Reserve of the Company NN
Employee
Share Share  Contributed share option Retained Total
capital premium surplus reserve profits equity
EERRE
R R EE BARE i REEF EHAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2014 R2014E1A41A 41,200 95,401 82,601 3,997 11,575 234,774
Profit attributable to equity RARRERB AEERT]
holders of the Company = = = = 24,953 24,953
2013 final dividend paid BIR2013EE R AR B
(note 12) (BzE12) - - - - (14,420) (14,420)
2014 interim dividend paid BIR014EEFHRE
(note 12) (Hi3E12) - - - - (12,392) (12,392)
Share option scheme B2l - - - (900) - (900)
Issue of shares upon exercise of  F1T1E B M & 4T (D
share options 389 2,952 - - - 3,341
At 31 December 2014 R201451273318 41,589 98,353 82,601 3,097 9,716 235,356
Profit attributable to equity KRARRERE AEERT]
holders of the Company - - - - 24,303 24,303
2014 final dividend paid BEIR014EERHARE
(note 12) (FzE12) - - - - (16,844) (16,844)
2015 interim dividend paid BIR2015EEF AR
(note 12) (Hi3E12) - - - - (10,688) (10,688)
Share option scheme FERRER 2l - - - (2,333) - (2,333)
Issue of shares upon exercise of  FR1T{E B M & AT (D
share options 1,179 9,024 - - - 10,203
At 31 December 2015 R2015512A31H 42,768 107,377 82,601 764 6,487 239,997
Note: B 5

BABBIENMEB R BGEKRE 2 EARQF 72003
FEEBARRRBASHBRRPMETZARER
DEEMEHEZE - RIBEAFEIBIFREE (KB
71)  ARAA BHARBREAEBREL DK -

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
consolidated shareholders’ funds of the subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition
of these subsidiaries at the time of the Group’s reorganisation in
2003. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the Company may make distributions to its members out of the
contributed surplus.
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B 35 AR B o

32 Holding Companies 32

The directors regarded Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.), a
company incorporated in Bermuda, as its ultimate holding
company and Smart Lane Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as the immediate
holding company.

ZERAE

% E fHsin Chong Group Holdings Limited
(FTE&SEERBRAT) (FIHHsin Chong
Construction Group Ltd.31 & &&E £ B AR A R*)
(REREFMAYN AR BEFRIZER AR
fmSmart Lane Holdings Limited (IR B R B S

AR H AR BEEER AR

33 Principal Subsidiaries 33 XEMBAF
Place of Issued and Effective
incorporation paid up/ percentage of
Name and operation Principal activities registered capital interest held
AL B ) BRITRER/ JiiEeit
A% KEwE TEEK KA ERESL
2015 2014
Interest held directly:
ERERE
Synergis Holdings (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands ' Investment holding 100,000 ordinary shares ~ 100% 100%
HERLES BREER of HK$0.1 each
10,0008 SR E B8 %
01T Z Bk
Interest held indirectly:
BEGERL -
Synergis Management Services Limited Hong Kong Provision of property management 206,837 ordinary shares ~ 100% 100%
HEEERBERAR B services and investment holding of HK$1 each
RUENEEBRBRREER 206,837 XA AR
1L EBR
§ynergis Facility Management Limited ~ Hong Kong Provision of facility management services 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
NEREERARAA o PR R B E RS HK$1each
2REBREEEEITLZ
LER
Service Pro Limited Hong Kong Provision of property services 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
H R ARAA B A IES HK$1each
REREEEKITZ
EER
SecurExpert Solutions Limited Hong Kong Provision of security and consultancy 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
HERERBERDA B services HK$1 each
AR = R R R REREEEKITZ
Laundrimate Service Limited Hong Kong Provision of laundry services 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
KRERBERAT B REARRH HKSfeach
REBREEEBITLZ
Master Clean Service Limited Hong Kong Provision of cleaning services 200,000 ordinary shares ~ 100% 100%
RERBERAT B R ERBH of HKS1 each
200,000 R E BB
1T EBR

*  for identification purposes only (£ 4 5
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B 7 R 2R B =
Place of Issued and Effective
incorporation paid up/ percentage of
Name and operation Principal activities registered capital interest held
MBI R . BRITRMR/ REER
a8 g Bt TEEK A EEEAHL
2015 2014
S-Club Limited Hong Kong Sales of products, provision of copying 1 ordinary share of HK$1 ~ 100% 100%
BB services and property holding 1REEBB 1T SR
HEEM REEHRERFENE 3
Hsin Chong Interiors Hong Kong Provision of fitting-out, renovation and 5,000,000 ordinary share  100% 100%
(Hong Kong) Limited s addition and alteration works of HK$1 each
MEENEM (BHE)ERDA REZARE BIANERAERIE 50000008 KA ES
iz LAk
Hsin Chong Construction (Engineering) Hong Kong Provision of demolition work, addition 22,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
Limited BE and alteration works and special share of HK$1 each
HEEER(IRR)BRAR construction projects 22,000,0000 &R EE
REFBZIRENMBRERIZRESR BTz EER
BEIEA
Everich Construction Macau Provision of renovation and fitting-out MOP$25,000 100% 100%
(Macau) Limited A works R FI#25,0007T
EmEE (R AR AR REBHRENRMHLRZ
Hsin Chong abp Company Limited Hong Kong Provision of curtain walling, cladding & 100,000 ordinary share 70% -
HEEZERARA & related products of HK$1 .
RESE EREEEER 100,000R EN (/& # 17T
ZEER
Synergis Property Management PRC (wholly Provision of property management, repair - RMB31,000,000 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 2 owned foreign and maintenance of sophisticated AR #31,000,0007%
HEMEEE (R BERAR? enterprise) equipment and indoor cleaning
R (NEBER services, and property management
%) consultancy services
REMETE REREELERERT
NEZIRE A RMEEEBRRY
Synergis Property Services (Beijing) Co. PRC (wholly Provision of property and facility RMB32,000,000 100% 100%
Ltd. ? owned foreign management services, property agent A R #32,000,0007T
HENERE (LER)ERAF? enterprise) and property consultancy services
PEMEBEL RENIBREEERY FHELRL
%) N5t R AR 7S
' This is an investment holding company with no specific place of T RAR A HREERAR  WERABKCEHE -
operation.
2 These are not registered company names but merely for 2 ZEWIEFEMARBTE  EEHHER -

identification purposes only.

20155 HEEEKEERAR
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34 Joint Operations

34 HERKE

Name Place of operation Principal activities Participating shares
= REHE TEXH 1
2015 2014
Hsin Chong-Wah Cheong Hong Kong Construction 50% 50%
Joint Venture (01) B i
Hsin Chong-Wah Cheong Hong Kong Construction 50% 50%
Joint Venture (02) B e
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFEBERE ==

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT BETT BT BT
Operating Results RexE
Revenue Wiz 2,447,379 1,906,253 1,680,076 908,460 678,810
Profit before taxation BB ATE R 67,524 56,098 45,804 25,994 20,886
Taxation HE (12,243) (10,756) (11,413) (7,332) (4,909)
Proft for the year ERET 55,281 45,342 34,391 18,662 15,977
Non-controling interests FERER - - 1 27 24
Profit attributable to equity holders of aHBBRAARRESE A
the Company 55,281 45,342 34,392 18,689 16,001
Assets and Liabilities BERBE
Assets EE
Property, plant and equipment VER SYET 6,883 8,891 11,005 13,738 14,630
Investment properties RENE 3,040 2,800 3,170 3,090 2,680
Intangible assets BN EE 40,691 48,974 57,700 66,426 -
Goodwil B 171,794 168,968 168,968 168,968 -
Deferred tax assets BREHEAE 91 144 381 174 102
Current assets RBEE 1,007,076 720,337 666,034 528,568 210,633
Total assets BEET 1,229,575 950,114 907,258 780,964 208,135
Liabiltes ~ &&
Current liabilities nEAf 938,974 693,361 670,768 561,838 99,520
Deferred tax liabilties BEHBEER 7,232 8,859 10,649 12,214 1,232
Long service payment liabilties RERBEER 3,977 1,940 1,642 2,081 1,803
Total liabilities BEeE 950,183 704,160 683,059 576,133 102,555
Non-controlling interests FERER (1,211) = 225 226 253
Equity attributable to equity holders of the RRRIRERE ABIEER
Company 280,603 245,954 223,974 204,605 125,327
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MAJOR PROJECTS
FEIRRER

. . Ny
Major Projects In-Progress RIFETHPZ2EEIRER
Commencement Anticipated

Description Group’s Interest  Date Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer

FiE AE@fhEE BIAE BHRTAE BF/BHAEE

INTERIORS AND SPECIAL PROJECTS

EREBESHIER

URA Project SYP/1/001 at Third Street/Yu Lok Lane/ 100%  October 2012 February 2016 Maxjet Company Limited
Centre Street at Sai Ying Pun, Hong Kong*

ERRERE= /ML TH-TRERRBER ZE-CFFA SN EREBAF
SYP/1/001#

Proposed Commercial Development at Nos. 34 Wong 100%  April 2014 February 2016 Best City Enterprise Limited
Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong Main Contract
Works

BRFEMUEMTREEERER “Z-MEMA “Z-REZA HECEBRARF

Proposed Commercial Development at Nos. 2 - 22 Tang 100%  April 2014 March 2016 Choice Glory Limited
Lung Street, Hong Kong Main Contract

BRERG-2FBEERER —Z-NEMA —Z-RE=A FYRBERRA

Main Contract for Major Renovation Works at Butterfly 100%  November 2014 July 2016 Link Asset Management
Plaza Limited

WS AR B T2 —T-mE+—-A —T-R"EtA FREEEEARAA

Main Contract for Podium Renovation at Lee Gardens 100%  September 2013 May 2016 Perfect Win Properties
One, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong Limited

ERMEENE - BAAEMBBRMHT IR “T-=FNA “Z-RELA EREXBRAA

Main Contract for Proposed Residential Development at 100%  November 2015 April 2017 Joint Rise International (HK)
No.28-32 Aberdeen Street, Central, Hong Kong Limited

BT RBEHS-2EMEEREEE “T-1F+-A “Z—+tFMA AKER (FE)ERAA

Main Contract for Residential Development at Discovery 100%  January 2016 May 2017 Hong Kong Resort Company
Bay North Phase 16 Limited

R ELF6HETEFRRIER “Z-RE-A “Z—+FRf BEREBRAF

Main Contract for Fortune Pharmacal New Factory 100%  December 2015 November 2017 Fortune Pharmacal Co. Ltd.
Development, 50-68 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Yuen Long

TR T ¥R LAES0E68 EREEL KR “Z-RF+ZA I S EREEBRAA
FRIAH

Fitting-out works for M+ Museum Project at West 100%  December 2015 February 2019 West Kowloon Cultural
Kowloon Cultural District, Hong Kong* District Authority

ERBAX(CR M+ B EEETR “Z-1F+ZA “Z-NEZA BAXEERR

Main Contract Works and MVAC Installation Works for 100%  March 2015 December 2016 CDW Building Limited
Renovation of CDW Building at Castle Peak Road & Mei
Wan Street, Tsuen Wan

EEFURBRRERGRELBAERN AR IR “Z-1E=R —Z—R¥tZA

i Sub-contract value being awarded by group companies or joint venture
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Properties held for investment at 31
December 2015

MAJOR PROPERTIES &
FEYE =

MA2015F12A31HEFEREZ W

Percentage of

Description Use Status Lease Term Group’s Interest
AEBE G
- AE 971 HEFH EEADL
Car Park Nos. P250, P251, P252, P253,  Carpark Rental Medium 100%
P254, P255, P256 and P257, Sun Hing
Garden, No.2 On Po Lane, Tai Po, New
Territories. 24/64,299th shares of and in
Tai Po Town Lot No. 26
T SR 4 & e BB 255 B B TE B P250 JHE L g} A 100%

P251 » P252 + P253 « P254 - P255 »
P256 & P25756% B {1 A 37 T 1 ER 2658 55
64,29917 7 2417

o054 ® EgEeEaran 147



NEER

Board of Directors

Exg

Audit Committee
EREEE

Remuneration
Committee

FMESSE
Nomination Committee

REEES

Executive Committee
HITEEE

Financial Calendar

Announcement of interim results

Payment date for interim dividend
Announcement of annual results

Annual General Meeting for 2016
Ex-dividend date for proposed final dividend
Payment date for proposed final dividend

o This title has been changed to Managing Director with effect form o

5 April 2016.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Joseph Choi Kin Hung
(Chg/rman)

(F5&)
Brenda Yau Shuk Mee

(Co-Managing Director)”
HORE

(B fEEFARATHE)
Terence Leung Siu Cheong

(Co-Managing Director)”
RIKE

(B fEE FARATTE)
Lui Chun Pong

gEx%cut/ve Director)

(P7TEE)
Stephen Ip Shu Kwan*
Epip-e
Kan Fook Yee*
R
Wong Tsan Kwong*
%,}gg NS
David Yu Hon To*
BEE"

*

o

Independent Non-executive
Director

Y BUIFHTEE

David Yu Hon To (Chairman)
BEE (/)

Kan Fook Yee

BEEES

Wong Tsan Kwong

=R

Stephen Ip Shu Kwan (Chairman)
B2 (£E)

Joseph Choi Kin Hung

Kan Fook Yee

ki

Kan Fook Yee (Chairman)
EiEes (L)

Joseph Choi Kin Hung
B

Stephen Ip Shu Kwan

e

Joseph Choi Kin Hung
e

Brenda Yau Shuk Mee

iR =t

Terence Leung Siu Cheong
2IKE

Lui Chun Pong

=ETE
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19 August 2015
2 October 2015
23 March 2016
20 May 2016
24 May 2016
8 June 2016

Special Committee

BEZEEE

Company Secretary
NEAME

Auditor

ZELEm

Principal Bankers

FEAERRT

Registered Office
HEMPEE

Head office and
Principal Place of
Business in
Hong Kong
FTEEEME

Principal Share
Registrar and
Transfer Agent

FTERGBFELE

Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar
and Transfer Office

BEEROBFERTIE

Stock Code
B A3 1R 5%

Board Lot
BFEEEN
Website

Huk

Email Address
EE:S:uE Y

BEAH

AP HEE

H ARG SR EE B 1
DN FEEE

2016 FREAFAE
FORARE B 2 BFH
BORAHIRERE B

Kan Fook Yee (Chairman)
fiteen (F/2)

Stephen Ip Shu Kwan
P

Wong Tsan Kwong

David Yu Hon To

BEE

Wong Long Kee

F A

PricewaterhouseCoopers

BB EEAT

The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited
BEELBEERITARAA
Chong Hing Bank Limited
BIEHIRIT R R AR

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton, HM 11
Bermuda

10th Floor, Hsin Chong Center

107-109 Wai Yip Street

Kwun Tong

Kowloon, Hong Kong

BB

B % 4107-1095%

MEF L1088

MUFG Fund Services
(Bermuda) Limited

The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO8

Bermuda

Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

ERPRESSLTHRAA

EBEF 2R RBR1835

A MR D7E1712-17165748

02340

4,000 shares
4,0000%

www.synergis.com.hk

info@synergis.com.hk

201548 A19H
2015%F10A2H
201643 A23H
201645 A20H
201695 H24H

201656 A8H

IEET B2016F4 A5 R E B R E FEKIR -
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SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
MEEEKEEARAA

Hsin Chong Center, 107-109 Wai Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel :(852) 2579 8313

Fax : (852) 2751 8784

BB NEEREZEE107-1095EFH & F 0
B L : (852) 2579 8313
{£5 : (852)2751 8784

www.synergis.com.hk
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